
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford 
Tel: 07895 213735 

 

E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 24 November 2021 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
A MEETING OF THE 
 

Cabinet 

 
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 2 DECEMBER 2021 AT 6.00 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   

 
Members of the Cabinet 

Member Portfolio 

David Rouane (Chair) Leader of the Council 

Robin Bennett (Vice-Chair) Cabinet member for economic development and 
regeneration, and deputy leader (statutory deputy leader 
during the following months: May, July, September, 
November, January and March) 

Maggie Filipova-Rivers 
(Vice-Chair) 

Cabinet member for community wellbeing, and deputy 
leader (statutory deputy leader during the following 
months: April, June, August, October, December and 
February) 

Pieter-Paul Barker Cabinet member for partnership and legal and democratic 

Sue Cooper Cabinet member for environment, climate change and 
nature recovery 

Andrea Powell Cabinet member for corporate services, policy and 
programmes 

Leigh Rawlins Cabinet member for finance and property assets 

Anne-Marie Simpson Cabinet member for planning 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC PRESENT 
 

Reports considered with the public present are available on the council’s website. 
 

1  Apologies for absence   
 

To record apologies for absence.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 5 - 7) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 4 
November 2021.   

 
3  Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   

 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   

 
6  Recommendations and updates from other committees   

 
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 

 

7  Review of gambling policy  (Pages 8 - 44) 
 

To consider the report of the head of housing and environment.   

 
8  Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22  

(Pages 45 - 59) 
 

To consider the head of finance’s report.   

 
9  Council tax base 2022/23  (Pages 60 - 63) 

 
To consider the head of finance’s report.   

 



  3 

 

10  War pensions and war widow(er)'s pension disregard top up 
in housing benefit  (Pages 64 - 66) 
 

To consider the head of finance’s report.   

 

CABINET DECISIONS 

 

11  Distributing the SO Charitable Lottery's Central Fund  (Pages 

67 - 72) 
 

To consider the head of corporate services’ report.   

 
12  Joint statement of community involvement  (Pages 73 - 186) 

 
To consider the head of policy and programme’s report.   

 
13  Planning enforcement statement  (Pages 187 - 203) 

 
To consider the head of planning’s report.   

 
14  Customer transformation strategy  (Pages 204 - 226) 

 
To consider the head of corporate services’ report.   

 
15  Housing and homelessness IT solution  (Pages 227 - 231) 

 
To consider the head of corporate services’ report.   

 
16  Exclusion of the Public   

 
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 

1 to 7 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   

 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC EXCLUDED 
 

The council hereby gives notice that it intends to hold part of this Cabinet meeting in 
private to consider the following items for the reasons set out in the ‘exclusion of the 
public’ item above.  These reports are not available on the council’s website. 

 

17  Minutes  (Pages 232 - 233) 
 

To adopt and sign as a correct record the exempt minutes of the Cabinet meeting 



  4 

 

held on 4 November 2021.   

 
18  Housing and homelessness IT solution  (Page 234) 

 
To receive the exempt appendix of the head of corporate services’ report.   

 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 
 



 

Minutes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

Cabinet 

 
Held on Thursday 4 November 2021 at 6.00 pm 
at 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Cabinet members: Councillors David Rouane (Chair), Robin Bennett (Vice-Chair), Sue 
Cooper, Maggie Filipova-Rivers, Leigh Rawlins and Anne-Marie Simpson 
Officers: Steve Culliford and Mark Stone  
 

Remote attendance:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Pieter-Paul Barker and Andrea Powell  
Officers: Patrick Arran, James Carpenter, Mark Hewer, Simon Hewings, Jeremy Lloyd, 
Suzanne Malcolm, Adrianna Partridge, Chris Traill and David Wilde 
Guest: Councillor Sam Casey-Rerhaye  
 
 

41 Apologies for absence  
 
None 
 

42 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30 September 2021 
as a correct record and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

43 Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
None 
 

44 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None 
 

45 Public participation  
 
(1) Carole Lindsey, speaking as a market trader, made a statement regarding the poor 

condition of the public conveniences at Thame Market House, by the High Street car 
park.  She asked for her photographs to be displayed to illustrate the issue.  Traders 
wished to know what the council planned to do to improve the public conveniences, 
the only ones in the town centre.  She called on the council to consider establishing a 
forum with the market traders to improve communication as the traders wished to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

work with the council to ensure a thriving town centre.  Mrs Lindsey asked the council 
to advise on the timescale to refurbish the public conveniences.   

 
The Cabinet member responsible for the service thanked Mrs Lindsey for her 
statement and agreed to investigate this matter further.   

 
(2) Councillor Sam Casey-Rerhaye addressed Cabinet on item 7—the use of community 

infrastructure levy funds to support the council’s capital projects.  Councillor Casey-
Rerhaye asked whether the Climate and Ecological Emergencies Advisory 
Committee would be able to feed in green project suggestions to the projects working 
group.   

 

46 Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet noted an update from other committees, including the matters discussed at recent 
meetings of the Scrutiny Committee and the Licensing Acts Committee.  There were no 
recommendations for Cabinet to consider at this meeting.   
 

47 2021/22 Community Infrastructure Levy funding for South 
Oxfordshire District Council capital projects  
 
Cabinet considered the report of the interim head of development and corporate landlord.  
This set out a proposal to use community infrastructure levy to fund capital projects.  The 
report set out a process and criteria to assess potential projects through a councillors’ 
working group with officer input.   
 
The Cabinet member reported that the aim was to set a process to assess projects and 
progress those that met the corporate objectives.  The aim was to hold the first working 
group meeting in November.  The projects would then be considered for inclusion in the 
next year’s budget.  The Cabinet member believed there was scope to consider any green 
projects suggested by the Climate and Ecological Emergencies Advisory Committee.   
 
Cabinet supported the proposal and looked forward to the working group’s proposals for 
projects in 2022/23.  The preferred projects should support the council’s corporate 
objectives.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) agree the proposed structure for identification of projects by a member working 

group; and  
 
(b) authorise the interim head of development and corporate landlord and the head of 

finance, in consultation with the Leader and the Cabinet member for economic 
development and regeneration, to prepare terms of reference for the member 
working group.   

 

48 Technology strategy  
 
Cabinet considered the head of corporate services’ report on the joint technology strategy.  
This updated the current strategy agreed in 2018, allowed the council to develop its 
technology infrastructure to meet the needs of the corporate plan, allowed the council to 
provide for future needs as it moved to new offices, and allowed it to adapt to changes in 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 

IT provision.  The strategy was set out in appendix A to the report, published with the 
agenda.   
 
Cabinet welcomed the updated technology strategy and noted that it would support all 
objectives set out in the corporate plan, not just reduce costs.  The council would be 
investing in key systems to provide better services to the public.  Cabinet particularly 
welcomed the emphasis on reducing the council’s carbon footprint.  Cabinet also 
welcomed the proposed customer relationship system proposals, and strategic move 
towards cloud-based services.  The strategy would allow the council to move forward and 
adapt to changes in the IT environment.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the update on the projects incorporated in the Joint Technology 
Strategy and to support the continuing implementation of the programme.   
 

49 Exclusion of the Public  
 
RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following items of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
i. it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
ii. the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information. 
 

50 Minutes  
 
The exempt minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30 September 2021 were adopted as 
a correct record.     
 

51 Technology strategy  
 
Cabinet noted the exempt appendices to the joint technology strategy update report.   
 

52 Property, asset management and technical services IT solution  
 
Cabinet approved investment for a project to consolidate and upgrade the IT systems used 
for the property, asset management and technical services.   
 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Housing and Environment 

Author: Laura Driscoll 

Telephone: 01235 422561 

E-mail: laura.driscoll@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: all 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Maggie Filipova-Rivers 

Tel: 07850 141623 

E-mail: maggie.filipova-rivers@southoxon.gov.uk   

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2021 

 

 

Review of Joint Gambling Policy 

Recommendations 

Cabinet is recommended to consider the recommendations of the Licensing Acts 
Committee and to recommend Council to: 
 
(a)    adopt the proposed Joint Gambling Policy 

(b)    authorise the Head of Housing and Environment to make minor editorial changes to 
the Joint Gambling Policy 

(c)    authorise the Head of Housing and Environment to publish the Joint Gambling 
Policy in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy 
Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006.  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To consider the recommendations of the Licensing Acts Committee on the Joint 
Gambling Policy following the statutory consultation. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The relevant strategic objectives are ‘Openness and accountability’ and ‘Improved 
Economic and Community Wellbeing’. The policy will also ensure the council is 
meeting its statutory responsibilities. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

mailto:laura.driscoll@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:maggie.filipova-rivers@southoxon.gov.uk


Background 

3. The council’s current Joint Statement of Gambling Policy came into effect from 31 
January 2019. The policy is subject to statutory review every three years so is due for 
review by 31 January 2022. 

Proposed policy 

4. The proposed new policy is attached at Appendix A.  

5. A summary of changes that were made prior to the consultation, and an explanation of 
the reasons for the changes, can be found at Appendix B.  

Consultation results  

6. The consultation ran from 13 July 2021 to 10 August 2021. It was a public consultation, 
and in addition was sent to: 

 All the responsible authorities as defined in the Gambling Act 2005 

 All councillors 

 Town and Parish Councils 

 Licence holders  

 Trade bodies, associations and representatives 

 Gamcare, Gamble Aware and Gamblers Anonymous (UK) 

 Trading Standards 

 Public Health  

 Community organisations such as the Samaritans and Citizens Advice 

7. A report on the results of the consultation can be found at Appendix C. There were five 
responses to the consultation, and where applicable the report details how the comments 
and suggested amendments have been incorporated into the proposed new policy.  

8. There is no reason, from the consultation responses, not to recommend the adoption of 
the Joint Statement of Gambling Policy to take effect from 31 January 2022. The policy 
will next be due for review by 31 January 2025. 

Gambling policy adoption process 

9. The Licensing Acts Committee considered the Joint Gambling Policy on 21 October 
2021 and decided to recommend Cabinet to recommend Council on 9 December 2021 
to adopt the policy and to authorise the Head of Housing and Environment to make 
minor editorial changes and to publish the policy as required by regulations. 

10. The Gambling Act 2005 specifically excludes the Cabinet from decisions on whether to 
have a “no casinos” resolution in the policy. In all other respects, it is the role of the 
Cabinet to recommend the Gambling Policy to Council for adoption and to authorise 
the Head of Housing and Environment to make minor editorial changes and to publish 
the policy as required by regulations. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Implementation 

11. Once the Council has adopted a new gambling policy it must publish a notice of intention 
to adopt the new policy four weeks before the new policy comes into force. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

12. There are no anticipated climate and ecological implications arising from the adoption 
of the proposed policy. 

Financial Implications 

13. There are no anticipated financial implications arising from the adoption of the 
proposed policy. 

Legal Implications 

14. The policy has been drafted to reflect current legislative requirements and statutory 
guidance. The policy must be taken into consideration when making decisions in 
respect of matters relating to the Gambling Act 2005. 

Risks 

15. Failure to properly consider the policy could result in the councils not complying with 
the legislation or statutory guidance. Having a clear policy helps to ensure that 
licensing decisions are fair, consistent and comply with the legislation.  

Other Implications 

16. There are no other implications.  

Conclusion 

17. Cabinet is recommended to consider the outcome of the consultation and recommend 
Council to: 

(a) adopt the proposed Joint Gambling Policy 

(b) authorise the Head of Housing and Environment to make minor editorial changes to 
the Joint Gambling Policy. 

(c) authorise the Head of Housing and Environment to publish the Joint Gambling Policy 
in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006.  

 
 

Appendices 

 Appendix A – Proposed Joint Statement of Gambling Policy 

 Appendix B – Summary of changes 

 Appendix C – Report on results of consultation  

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Page 1 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Statement of Principles 

 

Gambling Act 2005 

 

Joint statement of licensing policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This policy was adopted by the Vale of White Horse District Council at the meeting of Council 
on 8 December 2021 and South Oxfordshire District Council at the meeting of Council on 9 
December 2021 and comes into force from 31 January 2022 and will be reviewed by 31 
January 2025.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 28 

CONTENTS 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties 4 

3. Local Area Profile and Operator Risk Assessments 6 

4. Exchange of Information and Enforcement 7 

5. Locality and the licensing objectives 8 

6. Premises Licences and Primary Gambling Activity 10 

BUILDINGS DIVIDED INTO MORE THAN ONE PREMISES / ACCESS TO PREMISES 11 
ADULT GAMING CENTRES 13 
LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES 13 

TRACKS 14 
CASINOS 15 
BETTING PREMISES 15 
BINGO PREMISES 16 

PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS 17 

7. Determination, Conditions and Reviews 17 

DETERMINATION OF APPLICATIONS 17 

CONDITIONS 18 
REVIEWS OF PREMISES LICENCES 19 

APPEALS AGAINST A DECISION OF THE COUNCILS 20 

8. Permits 20 

UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE GAMING MACHINE PERMITS (FECS) 21 
(ALCOHOL) LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMITS 21 
CLUB GAMING AND CLUB MACHINE PERMITS 22 

PRIZE GAMING PERMITS 23 

9. Small Society Lotteries 24 

10. Temporary use notices and occasional use notices 25 

11. Travelling Fairs 27 

Annex 1 - Licensing authority delegations 28 

  

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



Page 3 of 28 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Gambling activities are regulated by the Gambling Act 2005 (‘the Act’). Section 349 of 
the Gambling Act 2005 states that the councils are required to publish a statement of 
licensing principles’ (‘policy’) which it proposes to apply when exercising its functions 
under the Act. Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire District Councils are 
licensing authorities for the purposes of the Act and this policy statement shall apply to 
those two districts. The councils have a duty to consider applications relating to 
gambling in accordance with the fundamental principles of the Act and must therefore 
balance the needs of businesses, licence holders and operators to grow, with the 
public interest, safety and health of the public and the potential impact these activities 
can have on vulnerable persons, or persons who may be susceptible to gambling 
related harm. 

 
1.2 The Licensing Authority, in carrying out its functions under section 153 of the 

Gambling Act 2005, shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling. The ‘aim to 
permit’ principle does not mean ‘will permit’ as it provides a wide scope for the 
authority to impose conditions on licences, refuse, review or revoke premises licences 
and permits if there is a conflict with this policy and the legislation. The Licensing 
Authority will carry out its functions in accordance with: 

a) The relevant codes of practice issued under section 24 of the Act 
b) The relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission under section 25 of 

the Act 
c) Being reasonably consistent with the three licensing objectives (subject to (a) 

and (b) above 
d) The councils published ‘statement of licensing principles’ (subject to (a) to (c) 

above. 
 

1.3 This statement of licensing principles is intended to be reasonably consistent with the 
three licensing objectives set out in the Act. They are: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated 
with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 

 
1.4 The Act requires that the following persons and bodies be consulted in relation to any 

revisions to this statement of licensing principles: 

 The Chief Officer of the police 

 Persons and bodies representing the interests of gambling businesses in the 
council districts of South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse 

 Persons and bodies who represent the interest of persons who are likely to be 
affected by the exercise of the licensing authority’s functions under the 
Gambling Act 2005.  

 
  

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Page 4 of 28 

1.5 The Act gives the councils various regulatory functions in relation to gambling. The 
councils’ main functions under the Act are:  

 licensing premises for gambling activities 

 considering notices given for the temporary use of premises for gambling 

 granting permits for gaming and gaming machines in clubs and miners’ welfare 
institutes 

 regulating gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises 

 granting permits to family entertainment centres (FECs) for the use of certain 
lower stake gaming machines 

 granting permits for prize gaming 

 considering occasional use notices for betting at tracks 

 registering small societies’ lotteries 

 maintaining a register of premises licences (for casinos, bingo halls, adult 
gaming centres, family entertainment centres, betting shops and race tracks). 

 
The councils are required to provide information annually to the Gambling 
Commission on the numbers of permits and registrations issued as well as the 
outcome of any premises licence reviews. 
 
The councils maintain statutory registers of premises licensed under the Act. The 
registers can be viewed on the relevant council’s website or by prior request at the 
council offices. 

 
1.6 In reviewing this statement of licensing principles, the councils declare that they have 

had regard to the licensing objectives stated in the Act, any guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission and any responses arising from the consultation process. The 
policy does not override the right of any person to make an application, make 
representations about an application or apply for a review of a licence. Each 
application and representation will be considered on its own merits and in accordance 
with the Act. The policy has been agreed taking into account the Human Rights Act 
1998 and the Equality Act 2010. 

  

2. Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties 

2.1 Under the Act responsible authorities are public bodies who must be notified of 
applications and who are entitled to make representations to the licensing authority in 
relation to applications for and in relation to, premises licences. The responsible 
authorities for both councils are: 

 the licensing authority 

 the Gambling Commission 

 the Chief Constable of Thames Valley Police 

 Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 the planning authority (within the relevant council) 

 the local town council, parish council or parish meeting 

 the environmental protection team (of the relevant council) 

 a body designated in writing by the licensing authority as competent to advise 
about the protection of children from harm  

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Page 5 of 28 

 HM Revenue & Customs 

 any other persons prescribed in regulations by the Secretary of State. 
 

Contact details for the above authorities can be found on the relevant council website. 
 

2.2 In the event that the premises are a vessel, the following bodies are also responsible 
authorities:   

 the Environment Agency 

 the Canal & River Trust 

 the Secretary of State for Transport (who acts through the Maritime and 
Coastguard Agency) 

 
2.3  In exercising the councils’ powers under section 157(h) of the Act to designate a body 

competent to advise them about the protection of children from harm the following 
principles have been applied:  

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of a 
licensing authority’s area 

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 
rather than any particular vested interest group 

 
 Having regard to the above principles, the councils have designated the Oxfordshire 

Safeguarding Children Board at Oxfordshire County Council for this purpose.  
 
2.4 Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a 

review of an existing licence. The Act defines interested parties as persons or bodies 
who, in the opinion of the licensing authority: 

a) live sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities, 

b) have business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or 
c) represent persons who satisfy (a) or (b)  

 
2.5 Whether a person is an interested party is a decision that will be taken by the relevant 

council on a case-by-case basis, judging each case on its merits. However, the 
following factors will be taken into account: 

 the size of the premises (for example, larger premises may affect people over a 
wider geographical area) 

 the nature of the activities planned or already taking place 

 the distance of the premises from the location of the person making the 
representation 

 the potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be 
taken by those visiting the establishment) 

 the circumstances of the complainant (which may be relevant to the distance 
from the premises, for example, it could be reasonable for an authority to 
conclude that ‘sufficiently close to be likely to be affected’ could have a different 
meaning for (a) a private resident (b) a residential school for children with 
truanting problems and (c) a residential hostel for vulnerable adults 

 the catchment area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit); and 
whether the person making the representation has business interests in that 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Page 6 of 28 

catchment area, that might be affected (this is particularly relevant when 
representations are made by another gambling business who state their 
business interests may be affected, however whether there is demand for the 
premises shall not be taken into account). 

 
2.6  This list is not exhaustive and other factors may be taken into consideration if the 

councils deem it necessary. 
 
2.7 The councils consider the following people / bodies to fall within the category of those 

who represent persons living close to premises, or having business interests that 
might be affected by the authorised activities: 

 trade associations 

 residents’ and tenants’ associations 

 district, county, town and parish councillors 

 MPs 

 school headteachers 

 community groups 

 charities 

 faith groups 

 medical practices 

 bodies that exist to help people with gambling addictions such as GamCare or 
Gamblers Anonymous. 

 
2.8 In other cases, the councils shall require written evidence that the person / association 

/ body represent an interested party. 
  

3. Local Area Profile and Operator Risk Assessments 

3.1 New social responsibility code 10.1.1 has been introduced within the Licence 
Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), which require gambling operators to assess 
the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities 
at each of their premises, and to have policies, procedures and control measures in 
place to mitigate those risks. The risk assessment produced shall take cognisance of 
the council’s local area profile and the risks identified in it and any other matter that is 
relevant in this policy. The risk assessment should be site specific and not a generic 
‘one size fits all’ document. The purpose of the local area risk assessments is to allow 
operators, stakeholders and the councils to have a greater understanding of the local 
environment and mitigate the possible risks to the licensing objectives.  

 
3.2 The councils will maintain a local area profile (LAP) containing information on the 

makeup of their area and any actual or potential risks from gambling premises that the 
councils have identified by observation, data or consultation. The local area profiles 
are available on the relevant council’s website to assist operators in developing their 
risk assessments as required under the revised code of practice published by the 
Gambling Commission. 

 
3.3  Operators are required to submit their risk assessments as part of an application for a 

new premises licence, variation to existing licence or on request from the licensing 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



Page 7 of 28 

authority. Applicants shall be expected to demonstrate how their application will be 
consistent with the licensing objectives and taking into account the local area profile 
produced by the councils and publicly available data in relation to crime, anti-social 
behaviour and problem gambling in the specific locality’. Operators are also encouraged 
to make use of other sources such as the Gambling Commission’s ‘National Strategy to 
Reduce Gambling Harms’; publicly available public health data, any council related 
policies relating to the safeguarding of children and vulnerable persons and publicly 
available data in relation to crime and anti-social behaviour in the specific locality. Failure 
to produce a satisfactory local risk assessment could lead to any application attracting 
representations. 

 
3.4 The risk assessments should consider actual and potential risks to the licensing 

objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at a premises. The licensing 
authority has an expectation that all local risk assessments will take into account the 
local social profile of the area. The assessment should detail the policies, procedures 
and control measures to mitigate those risks. 

 
3.5 Operators will be made aware of any significant changes in the local area profile 

during the life of this policy so that their risk assessments can be updated. 
 

4. Exchange of Information and Enforcement 

4.1 The councils regard the lawful and correct treatment of information as important to the 
successful and efficient performance of their functions, and to maintain the confidence of 
the people / bodies they deal with. The councils will ensure that information is kept and 
shared lawfully and correctly and in accordance with the General Data Protection 
Regulations. 

 
4.2 The councils may share information in accordance with the following provisions of the Act: 

 sections 29 and 30 (with respect to information shared between the councils 
and the Gambling Commission) 

 section 350 (with respect to information shared between the councils and the 
other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act). 

 
4.3 The purpose of information exchange is not only to fulfil the requirements under the 

Act, but also to enable both the Gambling Commission and the councils to carry out 
work related to their regulatory functions in a risk-based manner, using the best 
available information. 

 
4.4 In the exercise of the above functions, consideration shall also be given to the 

common law duty of confidence, the law relating to defamation, the guidance issued 
by the Gambling Commission and to the councils’ policies in relation to data protection 
and freedom of information. 

 
4.5 Any information sharing between the councils and Thames Valley Police must also be 

carried out in accordance with the information sharing protocol under the Oxfordshire 
memorandum of understanding. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Page 8 of 28 

4.6 The councils seek to secure compliance with the law in a variety of ways. Most contact 
with individuals and businesses is informal, providing advice and assistance over the 
telephone, during visits and in writing. Formal measures will include warnings, licence 
reviews and prosecution. The objective of these measures will be to ensure 
compliance with the licensing objectives including any general or specific licence 
conditions. Any enforcement action will be taken in accordance with our enforcement 
policy which is based on the principles of the Regulators’ Code. 

 
4.7 Part 15 of the Act details inspections that may be made to check for compliance with 

the Act. The councils will adopt a risk-based approach to the inspection of gambling 
premises which will be operated in conjunction with the councils’ current enforcement 
policy. This will allow for the targeting of high-risk premises or those where a breach 
would have serious consequences. Premises that are low risk and/or well-run will be 
subject to a less frequent inspection regime. 

 
4.8 Section 346 of the Act gives the councils the power to instigate criminal proceedings in 

respect of the offences specified in that section. The councils will ensure that 
enforcement is carried out in a fair and consistent manner in accordance the councils’ 
enforcement policy. 

 
4.9 The councils will endeavour to work with, and avoid duplication with, other regulatory 

regimes so far as possible. 
 
4.10 Concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt 

with by the councils but will be referred to the Gambling Commission. 
 

5. Locality and the licensing objectives 

5.1 The Licensing Authority shall carry out its functions under the Act so that they are 
consistent with the three licensing objectives and will expect applicants and licence 
holders to do the same.  

 
5.2 In order to prevent gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being 

associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime, consideration will 
be given by the Licensing Authority to the following: 

 Where an area has an issue with high rates of crime and/or anti-social 
behaviour, the council will consider whether a gambling premises are suitable 
to be located there and whether additional licence conditions such as the 
provision of CCTV, minimum levels of staffing and licensed door supervisors 
may be appropriate 

 Whether there is a history of crime and disorder at the premises or it is being 
used or has been used by those in criminal activities such as disposing of the 
proceeds of crime 

 Whilst issues of nuisance are not specifically included within the licensing 
objectives, these may be considered if these instances of nuisance are 
persistent and could constitute criminal offences 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Page 9 of 28 

 To the layout of the premises and analysing whether it is designed in a way to 
minimise crime and disorder – for example, so staff have clear lines of sight on 
their customers and any particular sensitive areas of the premises 

 Whether sufficient risk identification, strong management measures and a good 
understanding of any issues within the proposed locality have been submitted as 
part of an application and local area risk assessment. Any applicant will have to 
provide evidence that they meet criteria set out in this policy and any local area 
profile. Additional information may also be required in relation to how applicants 
will deter their premises from being used for illegal activities or as a cover for 
illegal activities if that is requested by the Licensing Authority or police.  

 
5.3 To ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, the Licensing Authority 

will consider: 

 Whether the layout and fitting of the premises has been designed to ensure 
gambling is being conducted in a fair and open way 

 Whether sufficient and strong measures in relation to the operation and 
management of the premises are proposed to ensure gambling is conducted in 
a fair and open way 

 That the operators of the premises have a good compliance history with 
enforcement authorities and the Gambling Commission’s codes of practice. 

 
5.4 To ensure the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling, the Licensing Authority will consider: 

 Whether the operator has a specific training programme to ensure that all staff 
are able to identify children and vulnerable people and take appropriate action 
to exclude them from all or part of the premises 

 If the premises is an adult only environment that the operator has a robust proof 
of age policy such as Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 and that all staff are trained 
in its use to prevent access to the premises by children 

 Whether the layout, fitting and lighting of the premises is sufficient so staff have 
clear sight lines 

 Whether sufficient or strong measures in relation to the operation and 
management of the premises are proposed so as to ensure no child or 
vulnerable person is harmed by gambling 

 Whether any promotional material associated with the premises could attract 
young and vulnerable persons to the premises 

 Whether the operator has taken cognisance of any local safeguarding policies 
in relation to children and vulnerable persons and any national strategies such 
as the Gambling Commission’s ‘National Strategy to Reduce Gambling Harms’ 
or any other similar document  

 Whether the operator is aware of issues around potential Child Sexual 
Exploitation (CSE) and has strong policies and processes in place to identify 
and deal with issues. Such policies should include staff training, awareness of 
children who look uncomfortable in the company of adults inside the premises 
or immediately outside or children attending the premises regularly to meet 
older people. Staff should also be aware of how to report any potential issues 
around CSE. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Page 10 of 28 

5.5 The above considerations set out in paragraphs 5.2-5.4 are not exhaustive. The 
Licensing Authority will expect applicants to consider all measures necessary to be 
consistent with the licensing objectives. The location of the premises may be a 
significant factor if, for example, it is located near a school, hostel, refuge or other 
sensitive premises or in an area of high deprivation. Persons under the age of 18 
cannot be admitted to many types of gambling premises. New gambling premises or 
variations to existing premises that are in close proximity to sensitive premises should 
demonstrate that they have robust policies and procedures in place to prevent harm to 
children and vulnerable persons. 

 
5.6 It is noted that the Act and Commission Guidance does not define the term ‘vulnerable 

persons’. The Commission states that “it will, for regulatory purposes, assume that this 
group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who gamble beyond 
their means and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions 
about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs”. This is the definition of 
‘vulnerable persons’ that the council will use in its consideration of applications. 

 
5.7 It is also noted that the Act does not define ‘harm’ or its context. The council considers 

harm to mean anything from the physical and mental which is not confined to an 
individual For example, a problem gambler at harm from gambling can have negative 
effects on their families, friends and communities. This is the broad interpretation of 
harm that the council proposes to use when assessing applications and local area risk 
assessments. Licence holders are expected to demonstrate that they have robust 
policies and procedures in place to identify problem gamblers and any harm they may 
cause to themselves or others. 

 
5.8 In relation to locality, the demand or ‘clustering’ of gambling premises cannot be taken 

into account. However, the location of gambling premises has a significant impact on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. Any application will have to demonstrate that 
they do not undermine the licensing objectives or exacerbate issues in the locality that 
could do so. Applicants will be required to provide evidence that they have considered 
the potential impact of their proposed business on the licensing objectives and how 
they plan to mitigate those affects.  

 

6. Premises Licences and Primary Gambling Activity 

6.1 Any person or business that wishes to offer gambling for which an operating licence 
from the Gambling Commission is required and which is premises based must apply 
to the licensing authority for a premises licence. A premises licence can authorise the 
provision of gambling facilities on: 

 Casino Premises 

 Betting premises including tracks 

 Adult Gaming Centres 

 Family Entertainment Centres 

 Bingo premises 
 

The Act makes it clear that the primary activity should be that described in the 
premises licence type. Each premises type will be subject to mandatory and/or 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



Page 11 of 28 

default conditions and any conditions by the council – if appropriate for ensuring 
consistency with the licensing objectives. 
 

6.2 In the Act, a premises is defined as ‘any place’. No more than one premises licence 
can apply to any place, however one premises may hold more than one premises 
licence so long as the building can be genuinely separated  

 
6.3 Where two or more licences are applied for within the same building and the council 

does consider separation genuine, the applicant(s) must still demonstrate how they 
will uphold the licensing objectives, with particular reference to how they plan to 
control the access from one part of the building into the other, in order to protect 
children from accidentally or otherwise accessing types of gambling to which they 
are not authorised. 

 
6.4 The council will expect applicants to operate premises in line with the Commissions 

Guidance and conditions on their operator’s licence. The council will monitor the 
operation of premises and report any potential breach of operating licence conditions 
to the Commission. Applications for new premises licences, or to vary an existing 
licence, will be expected to be clear that the premises will provide substantive 
facilities for the primary gambling activity permitted by the premises licence. For 
example, a betting (other) premises licence application that only has four gaming 
machines but no betting counter or associated betting facilities shown on the 
proposed plans, may not be considered as providing sufficient facilities for the 
primary gambling activity permitted by that licence and therefore may not be 
compliant with the Gambling Commissions LCCP or its Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities. If an application is found not to be operating a premises in accordance 
with the Gambling Commissions Codes of Practice or the Guidance issued to 
Licensing Authorities the council has the power to refuse the application as it would 
not meet the principles as set out in Section 153 of the Act. 

 

Buildings divided into more than one premises / Access to premises 

6.5 Section 7.5 of the Gambling Commission guidance does, in principle, provide for a 
single building to be subject to more than one licence provided they are for different 
parts of the building and the different parts of the building could reasonably considered 
‘a different premises’. An example given is a shopping mall with multiple self-contained 
units. To agree to any application for a premises licence or variation, the applicant 
would have to evidence and the council would have to be satisfied that the premises 
are genuinely separate and not artificially created. Some of the factors the council will 
take into account would be whether there are separate registrations for business rates 
in place at the premises, whether the premises are operated and owned by the same 
person or organisation, whether the different units are operated independently of each 
other and whether they can be accessed through distinct entrances.  

 
6.6 When considering proposals to divide a building into genuinely separate premises, the 

council will also need to be satisfied that the form of separation between the premises 
is appropriate. The separation between one premises and another must be clearly 
defined, permanent and constructed so the public cannot go from one premises to 
another. Roping off, moveable partitions and different coloured carpets are examples 
of methods used by some proprietors to artificially sub-divide premises and the 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Page 12 of 28 

councils will not consider premises ‘divided’ as such as two separate premises. If 
applicant’s wish to utilise staff in two adjacent premises then they will need to 
demonstrate that there are robust control measures in place to ensure the safety and 
security of staff and there are processes in place to prevent members of the public 
utilising any connecting access point.  

 
6.7 Access provisions for each type of gambling premises are set out in section 7.23 of 

the Gambling Commission guidance and set out to prevent customers being able to 
enter the premises directly from another licensed premises. This is called ‘direct 
access’. The Commission Guidance, Act and regulations do not define ‘direct access’ 
but it does say that licensing authorities may consider that there should be an area 
separating the premises concerned, for example, a street or café which the public go 
to for purposes other than gambling, for there to be no direct access. Regulations 
define street as ‘including any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, square, court, alley 
or passage whether a thoroughfare or not’. 

 
6.8 It is the council’s opinion that any area which separates licensed premises, and from 

which those premises can be accessed must be genuinely separate premises which are 
actually used by members of the public other than those using the licensed premises. 
The council does not consider that provisions which prohibit direct access to licensed 
premises are satisfied where licensed premises are separated by an area that has been 
created artificially within a building for persons attending the gambling premises to 
attend for non-gambling activities, for example, refreshments or ATM machines.  

 
6.9 If the council were satisfied that a building could be divided into separate premises which 

would satisfy the statutory provisions, the council will expect an applicant to provide 
documentary evidence that the premises are configured so that children have no 
observation or participation – accidental or otherwise – of gambling activity they are 
prohibited from taking part in. Entrances and exits from one premises to the other should 
be permanent, separate and clearly identifiable. And customers should only be able to 
participate in the activity named on the premises licence for that part of the building.  

 
6.10 Any application that is received which seeks to create different premises in the same 

building purely to increase gaming machine entitlement through creating artificial 
unlicensed areas in between two areas will likely be objected to. The Act, regulations 
and Commission’s Guidance support the principle that different premises within a 
single building should not be artificially created, that separation between premises 
must be adequate and direct access between certain licensed premises is prohibited. 
Applications that seek to place two licensed premises in one premises with an artificial 
unlicensed area separating them will also not be acceptable due to the artificial nature 
of the premises and access issues. It may be possible to have a foyer area or 
passageway which separates one licensed premises from another. However it must 
be accessible and generally used by members of the public other than those using the 
gambling premises. An example would be a hotel lobby which has an entrance to a 
casino and an adult gaming centre off it. In this example, the foyer would be used by 
patrons of the hotel and their guests who have no intention of availing themselves of 
the gambling facilities.  

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



Page 13 of 28 

Adult gaming centres 

6.11 Operators of an adult gaming centre must obtain an operating licence from the 
Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the relevant council. This will 
allow the operator to make category B, C & D machines available to their customers. 

 
6.12 In considering licence applications for adult gaming centres, the applicant will have to 

evidence that they meet the requirements of this policy – particularly those set out in 
sections 3 and 5 – and demonstrate how any application is cognisance of the 
requirements of the Act, regulations, Commission guidance and the licensing 
objectives. Because gaming machines provides opportunities for solitary play and 
immediate payouts, they are more likely to engender repetitive and excessive play. 
The council in considering premises licences and will specifically have regard to the 
need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by 
gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be 
sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under 18 year olds are not attracted 
to, or gain access to, the premises The councils will also expect applicants to 
demonstrate that there will be sufficient measures in place to promote all of the 
licensing objectives.  

 

Licensed family entertainment centres 

6.13 Operators of a licensed family entertainment centre will require an operating licence 
from the Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the relevant council. This 
will allow the operator to make category C and D machines available to their customers. 

 
6.14 Children and young persons will be able to enter licensed family entertainment centres 

and play category D machines. They will not be permitted to play category C machines. 
 
6.15 As family entertainment centres will particularly appeal to children and young persons, 

consideration shall be given to child protection issues. Where category C machines 
are available in licensed family entertainment centres the councils will require that: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises separated from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a designated entrance 

 only adults are admitted to the area where the category C machines are located 

 access to the area where the category C machines are located is supervised 

 the area where the category C machines are located is arranged so that it can 
be observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder, and 

 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are notices prominently 
displayed indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 the applicant will have to evidence that they meet the requirements of this 
policy – particularly those set out in sections 3 and 5 – and demonstrate how 
any application is cognisance of the requirements of the Act, regulations, 
Commission guidance and the licensing objectives. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Page 14 of 28 

Tracks 

6.16 Tracks are sites (including racecourses and dog tracks) where races or sporting 
events take place. Operators of tracks will require a premises licence from the relevant 
council, but they do not need to obtain an operating licence from the Gambling 
Commission (although they may have one). 

 
6.17 Tracks may be subject to one or more than one premises licence, provided each 

licence relates to a specified area of the track. 
 
6.18 It is a mandatory condition of all track licences that children and young persons are 

excluded from any areas where facilities for betting are provided and any area where a 
gaming machine, other than a category D machine, is situated. In relation to the areas 
used for betting, special dispensation from this rule is provided for dog tracks and horse 
racecourses on days when racing takes place. On these days families will be entitled to 
attend a track or racecourse and children may enter the areas where facilities for betting 
are provided. This race day dispensation does not apply to the areas where gaming 
machines of category B & C are provided and the councils will therefore expect that 
suitable measures are in place to prevent children from entering such areas. 

 
6.19 Holders of betting premises licences in respect of tracks who also hold a pool betting 

operating licence may make up to four gaming machines available (categories B2 to 
D) on the track. The councils will therefore expect the applicant to demonstrate that 
suitable measures are in place to ensure that children are prevented from entering 
areas where machines (other than category D machines) are made available. 

 
6.20 The councils will attach a condition to track premises licences requiring the track 

operator to ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in or near the betting 
areas, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the 
public, for example, the rules could be printed in the race card or made available in 
leaflet form from the track office. 

 
6.21 The councils will require the following information from applicants for premises 

licences in respect of tracks: 

 detailed plans for the racetrack itself and the area that will be used for 
temporary ‘on-course’ betting facilities (often known as the ‘betting ring’) 

 in the case of dog tracks and horse racecourses, details of the fixed and mobile 
pool betting facilities operated as well as any other proposed gambling facilities. 

 the applicant will have to evidence that they meet the requirements of this 
policy – particularly those set out in sections 3 and 5 – and demonstrate how 
any application is cognisance of the requirements of the Act, regulations, 
Commission guidance and the licensing objectives. 
 

6.22 Plans submitted with the application should be clearly marked to show what licensable 
activities will take place where and how children will be separated from category C 
machines.  

 
6.23 The councils will accept occasional use notices for tracks in accordance with section 

39 of the Act. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



Page 15 of 28 

Casinos 

6.24 The Act states that operators of a casino must obtain an operating licence from the 
Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the relevant council. 

 
6.25 In July 2012 a Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee reviewed the Act and 

recommended that any local authority should be able to make its own decision about 
whether to have a casino in its district. The Committee also recommended that the 
licences for casinos that were licensed under the pre-existing Gaming Act of 1968 be 
made portable, allowing operators to relocate to any local authority (with the 
authority’s consent). 

 
6.26 Vale of White Horse District Council: Policy not to allow applications for a casino 
 

Section 166 of the Act gives the council the power to pass a ‘no casino’ resolution, 
meaning that applications for a casino would not be considered. The council has 
adopted a ‘no casino’ resolution on the basis that this rural district with market towns is 
an inappropriate place for a casino, that casinos are better located in large towns or 
cities, and the council should also protect the most vulnerable people from gambling in 
casinos. This resolution is required to be renewed within three years. 

 
6.27 South Oxfordshire District Council: Policy not to allow applications for a casino 
 

Section 166 of the Act gives the council the power to pass a ‘no casino’ resolution, 
meaning that applications for a casino would not be considered. The council has 
adopted a ‘no casino’ resolution on the basis that the district was not a suitable 
location for a casino, that it could bring the potential for criminal exploitation and risk of 
money laundering, the need to protect the vulnerable from gambling harm, and the 
risk of harm from addiction to gambling. This resolution is required to be renewed 
within three years. 

 

Betting premises 

6.29 Betting premises are those premises which take bets other than at a track (commonly 
known as a licensed betting office). Operators of betting premises will require an 
operating licence from the Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the 
relevant council. 

 
6.30 It is unlawful for anyone under the age of 18 to place a bet. Persons under the age of 

18 shall not be permitted to enter a premises licensed for betting. 
 
6.31 The councils expect applicants to demonstrate how they will ensure that neither children 

nor vulnerable persons are able to place a bet, for example by detailing proof of 
identification and self-barring schemes and staff training. The applicant will have to 
evidence that they meet the requirements of this policy – particularly those set out in 
sections 3 and 5 – and demonstrate how any application is cognisance of the 
requirements of the Act, regulations, Commission guidance and the licensing objectives. 
The council also needs to be satisfied about the primary use of the premises as a 
betting premises meaning applicants will be expected to demonstrate that they can offer 
sufficient facilities for betting and they have the right to occupy the premises.  

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Page 16 of 28 

 
6.32 At the time of writing, the holder of a betting premises licence may make available for 

use up to four gaming machines of category B (B2, B3 or B4), C or D. 
 
6.33 The councils may, in accordance with section 181 of the Act, enforce the number of 

betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in which those machines are 
made available for use. When considering whether to impose such conditions, the 
councils will take into account the following: 

 the size of the premises 

 the number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and 

 the ability of staff to monitor that machines are not used by children and young 
persons or by vulnerable people. 

 

Bingo premises 

6.34 Operators of premises offering bingo (cash or prize bingo) will require a bingo operating 
licence from the Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the relevant 
council. In considering licence applications for bingo premises, the applicant will have to 
evidence that they meet the requirements of this policy – particularly those set out in 
sections 3 and 5 – and demonstrate how any application is cognisance of the 
requirements of the Act, regulations, Commission guidance and the licensing objectives. 

 
6.35 The council will need to be satisfied that bingo can be played in any premises for 

which it grants a bingo premises licence. This is a relevant consideration where the 
operator of an existing bingo premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an area 
of the existing premises from its ambit and then applies for a new premises licence, or 
multiple licences for that or those excluded areas. 

 
6.36 The councils note the unusual circumstances in which the splitting of a pre-existing 

premises into two adjacent premises might be permitted and that it is not permissible to 
exceed 20 percent of the total number of B3 machines available for use in the premises.  

  
6.37 Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises, however they are not 

permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines are present, 
these must be separated from areas where children and young people are allowed. 
Where category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are 
admitted the councils will require that: 

 all such machines are located in an area separate from the remainder of the 
premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than 
through a designated entrance 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised 

 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed 
by staff of the operator or the licence holder and 

 at the entrance to and inside any such area there are prominently displayed 
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 

6.38  To avoid a situation where a premises holds a bingo premises licence primarily to 
benefit from the gaming machine allowance, the licensing authority will need to be 
satisfied that bingo can be played in any premises for which a premises licence is 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



Page 17 of 28 

issued. Particular consideration will be given when the operator of an existing bingo 
premises applies to vary the premises licence to exclude an area of the existing 
premises and then applies for a new licence for the excluded area. 

 

Provisional statements 

6.39 Section 204 of the Act provides for a person to make an application for a provisional 
statement in respect of premises they expect to be constructed, altered or expect to 
acquire the right to occupy. For example, a developer may wish to apply for a 
provisional statement to see whether a premises licence would be issued prior to 
entering into a contract to buy or lease the premises. Equally, a provisional statement 
may be applied for where there is already a premises licence but the application is for 
a different type of gambling. 

 
6.40 An applicant need not hold an operating licence from the Gambling Commission 

before applying for a provisional statement and the councils shall not consider the 
likelihood of an operating licence being granted in determining whether to grant the 
provisional statement.  

 
6.41 If a provisional statement has been granted, the fee for the subsequent premises 

licence application will be less and the councils are constrained in considering 
matters; no further representations from responsible authorities or interested parties 
may be considered unless they concern matters which could not have been 
addressed at the provisional statement stage or they reflect a change in the 
applicant’s circumstances. 

 
6.42 The councils may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those 

attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 

 which could not have been raised by way of representations at the provisional 
statement stage 

 which, in the council’s opinion, reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances 

 where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan and 
information submitted with the provisional statement application. (There must 
be a substantial change to the plan and the council shall discuss any concerns 
with the operator before coming to a final decision). 

 

7. Determination, Conditions and Reviews 

Determination of applications 

7.1 All applications for the grant, variation or review of a licence or permit will be 
considered on their own merits. The Act makes it clear that neither issues of demand 
for a premises nor compliance with planning or building regulations are to be 
considered when councils make decisions about applications. With regard to premises 
licences, the councils will consider all applications in accordance with the ‘aim to 
permit’ principles contained in section 153 of the Act.  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



Page 18 of 28 

7.2 Licensing authorities are obliged to consider representations from ‘responsible authorities’ 
and ‘interested parties’. Only representations that relate to the licensing objectives or raise 
issues under the licensing authority’s policy statement or Commission’s guidance or codes 
of practice are likely to be relevant. If the Licensing Authority deems a representation 
frivolous and/or vexatious, it will notify the party concerned. 

 
7.3 When determining an application, the licensing authority will assess it based on 

compliance with the contents of this policy, the Act, codes of practice, the Gambling 
Commission Guidance and how it will be consistent with the licensing objectives. 
Applications that do not comply with the above, provide little evidence or are found to 
have a history of regulatory non-compliance may attract representations.  

 

Conditions 

7.4 The Act provide that premises licences can be subject to conditions in multiple ways. 
They may have been set out specifically in the Act or though regulations. They may be 
the default/mandatory conditions set out in the Act or they may be attached to 
premises licences by licensing authorities if they deem them appropriate. 

 
7.5 Conditions on premises licences should relate only to gambling as considered 

appropriate in the light of the principles applied by licensing authorities under section 
53 of the Act. It would not be appropriate to duplicate restrictions already imposed on 
an operator by the Commission or other legislation. 

 
7.6 An example of conditions set out in the Gambling Act would be: 

 Section 172 specifically outlines the permitted gaming machines for each 
premises type. 

 Section 176 requires the Commission to issue at least one code of practice for 
access to casinos by young persons – in particular ensuring that under 18s do 
not enter the premises and ask for evidence of age before admittance of any 
person who may look under 18. 

 Section 177 attaches a condition to casino premises and bingo premises that 
they may not issue credit in connection with the gambling that takes place on 
those premises. 

 Section 178 states that if a condition is attached to the premises licence in 
respect of the requirement for door supervision that they are licensed and 
accredited in line with the Private Security Industry Act 2001. 

 Section 182 provides a condition in relation to access by children and young 
persons to tracks in that the licence holder must ensure that children are 
excluded from any area where betting facilities or gaming machines (other than 
category D machines) are provided 

 
The above is not an exhaustive list but all have been included in primary legislation 
with the aim of promoting the licensing objectives. 

 
7.7 The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2007 sets out conditions that must be attached to all premises. Conditions 
under these regulations relate to mandatory conditions that must be attached to 
premises licences and default conditions that should also be attached to premises 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



Page 19 of 28 

licences unless the licensing authority decides to exclude them. Examples of 
mandatory conditions relate to the display of the summary of the premises licence in a 
prominent place on the premises and the layout of the premises must be in 
accordance with the plan. There are also mandatory conditions attached to each 
premises type and these along with the default conditions can be found on the 
Gambling Commission website. It will usually be the case that the mandatory and 
default conditions are the only conditions required to be attached to any licence. 
However, where risks are identified either by a responsible authority, or by the 
applicant in their local risk assessment, additional conditions may be added. 

 
7.8 Conditions that cannot be attached to a premises licence by the licensing authority 

include any that makes it impossible for an operator to comply with the conditions of 
their operator licence issued by the Commission, any condition that relates to limiting 
quantities of gaming machines or categories of gaming machine or any condition 
relating to changes in stakes, fees, winnings or prizes. 

 
7.9 The Licensing Authority has produced a document of model conditions that any 

applicant may wish to consult and then include within any application if they deem 
them necessary to comply with the expectations set out in this policy, the Act, codes of 
practice, guidance and to ensure that those measures are consistent with the licensing 
objectives. The council may look to impose or modify these conditions if it believes it 
necessary to comply with all of the above and if the premises is in an area identified 
as having particular issues in relation to crime or is situated in a high risk location. This 
document can be located on the councils’ websites.  

 

 Reviews of premises licences 

7.10 After a licence has been granted, an option to review that premises licence is a key 
tool in dealing with breaches of conditions, policy or the undermining of the licensing 
objectives. Section 197 of the Act provides that an application for a review of a 
premises licence may be made by a responsible authority or interested party. There 
are regulations governing reviews (The Gambling Act 2005 (Premises Licences) 
(Review) Regulations 2007) which state that the person applying for the licence to be 
reviewed must do so in writing using a prescribed form, stating the reasons why a 
review is being requested and submitting it to the relevant council with any supporting 
documents. They must then send the same information to all (other) responsible 
authorities within seven days. Failure to do this will mean that the review process is 
halted until the documents are received by all parties. 

 
7.11 The relevant council must grant the application for a review unless it thinks the 

grounds on which it is sought: 

 are not relevant to this policy, or any guidance or codes of practice issued by 
the Gambling Commission, or the licensing objectives 

 are frivolous 

 are vexatious 

 ‘will certainly not’ cause the council to revoke or suspend a licence or to 
remove, amend or attach conditions to the premises licence 

 are substantially the same as the grounds cited in a previous application or 
substantially the same as representations made at the time the licence was 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



Page 20 of 28 

granted, depending on how much time has passed (the licence should not be 
reviewed based on the same arguments that have already been considered 
by the relevant council). 

 
7.12 Within seven days of receiving the application to review a premises licence, the relevant 

council will publish notice of the application in accordance with the relevant regulations.  
 
7.13 Representations in response to the application must be made within the 28 days 

which follow publication of the notice and the relevant council must carry out the 
review as soon as possible after the 28 days has ended. 

 
7.14 If the relevant council deems action is justified, its options are to: 

 add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the relevant council 

 exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (relating to for 
example, opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion 

 suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months 

 revoke the premises licence. 
 

7.15 The relevant council will notify the licence holder, the applicant for the review, any 
person who made representations, the Gambling Commission, the Chief Constable of 
Thames Valley Police and HM Revenue and Customs of the outcome of the review as 
soon as possible. 

 

Appeals against a decision of the councils 

7.16 The Act details the process for appeals against the councils’ decisions regarding 
licences, permits, provisional statements and temporary use notices. In all cases 
appeals are to the local Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the appellant’s receipt of 
the councils’ decision. 

 
7.17 Any party may apply for a judicial review if they believe that a decision taken by the 

relevant council is: 

 beyond the powers available to it 

 subject to procedural impropriety or unfairness 

 irrational (a decision so unreasonable no sensible person could have reached it). 
 

8. Permits 

8.1 Details of current machine categories including maximum stakes and pay-outs 
permitted and the entitlement of certain premises to certain categories and numbers of 
machines can be found at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. A summary of gaming 
machine categories is included at Annex 4 for information, however the stakes are 
subject to change. 

 
8.2 The councils will expect applicants to be able to demonstrate a full understanding of 

the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permitted in their premises and 
that staff are trained to have a full understanding of them. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


Page 21 of 28 

8.3 The holder of a permit must comply with any code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission about the location and operation of any machine(s). 

 

Unlicensed family entertainment centre gaming machine permits (FECs) 

8.4 Unlicensed FECs are able to offer category D machines if granted a permit by the 
relevant council. If an operator of a family entertainment centre wishes to make 
category C machines available in addition to category D machines, they will need to 
apply for an operating licence from the Gambling Commission and a premises licence 
from the relevant council. 

 
8.5 The councils can grant or refuse an application for an FEC permit, but cannot attach 

conditions. 
 
8.6 As unlicensed family entertainment centres appeal to children and young persons, the 

councils expect applicants to pay particular attention to the example measures 
detailed in this policy.  

 
8.7 In considering the protection of children, the councils will expect the applicant to show 

not only how they intend to protect children from gambling but also that they have taken 
into account wider child protection considerations in their policies and procedures. The 
efficacy of such policies and procedures will be considered on their merits. 

 
8.8 The councils will not grant a permit for unlicensed family entertainment centres if the 

applicant has a relevant conviction (as set out in Schedule 7 to the Act). Applicants will 
be required to undergo an enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check. 

 

(Alcohol) licensed premises gaming machine permits 

8.9 The Gambling Commission has published several useful leaflets and guidance about 
gaming machines and other types of gambling specifically to provide information to 
premises authorised to sell alcohol. These can be found at: 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. 

 
8.10 Premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises are automatically 

entitled to two gaming machine permits, of categories C and/or D. The holder of the 
premises licence authorising the sale of alcohol will need to notify the council and pay 
the prescribed fee. 

 
8.11 The councils can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any premises if: 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
licensing objectives 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 
282 of the Act 

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 

 an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises. 
 

8.12 If the holder of the premises licence wishes to have more than two machines in the 
premises, they will need to apply for a permit. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


Page 22 of 28 

 
8.13 As children may be present in alcohol licensed premises, the councils expect 

applicants to pay particular attention to the measures detailed in this policy around 
public safety – in particular relation to children and vulnerable people. 

 
8.14 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises licence 

for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to be applied for 
and dealt with under the Gambling Act, not the Licensing Act. 

 
8.15 The councils can decide to grant the application with a smaller number of machines 

and/or a different category of machines than that applied for, however conditions 
cannot be attached to the permit. 

 

Club gaming and club machine permits  

8.16 The numbers and categories of machine permitted are different to non-clubs. The 
current details of maximum stakes and pay-outs permitted for each machine category 
and numbers of machine(s) permitted can be found at 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. 

 
8.17 The councils may grant members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes (but not 

commercial clubs) club gaming permits which authorise the establishments to provide 
gaming machines, equal chance gaming and games of chance.  

 
8.18 If a members’ club or a miners’ welfare institute does not wish to have the full range of 

facilities permitted by a club gaming permit, they may apply to the councils for a club 
machine permit under section 273 of the Act.  

 
8.19 To qualify, members’ clubs must have at least 25 members and be established and 

conducted ‘wholly or mainly’ for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is 
permitted by separate regulations. A members’ club must be permanent in nature, not 
established to make commercial profit and controlled by its members equally. 
Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of the Royal British Legion, sports 
and social clubs, bridge and whist clubs and clubs with political affiliations. 

 
8.20 The councils must satisfy themselves that the club genuinely meets the requirements 

of the Act to obtain a club gaming permit and therefore may ask for supporting 
documents. The following is a list of matters that will be considered: 

 the procedures for guests accepted into the club 

 how the club is advertised 

 the running of the club, for example committee meetings, financial accounts 
and election of committee members. 

 
This list is not exhaustive and the councils may ask for any documents they feel are 
necessary in determining whether a club is genuine, even if it has already been 
granted a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
8.21 An application may only be refused on one or more of the following grounds: 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


Page 23 of 28 

 the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club 
or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of 
permit for which it has applied 

 the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young 
persons 

 an offence under the Act or a breach of a condition of a permit has been 
committed by the applicant while providing gaming facilities 

 a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or 

 an objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or the police. 
 

8.22 Under section 72 of the Act there is a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for clubs which 
hold a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Gambling 
Commission or the police and the grounds upon which a council can refuse a permit 
are reduced. 

 
8.23 The grounds on which an application under the fast track procedure may be refused are: 

 that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed 
under schedule 12 of the Act 

 that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming; or 

 that a club gaming permit or club gaming machine permit issued to the 
applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled 

 
8.24 The councils may grant or refuse an application for a club gaming or club machine 

permit but cannot attach any conditions to it. However there are a number of 
conditions in the Act that the holder must comply with. These are contained in the 
Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. This 
can be found at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Prize gaming permits  

8.25 Section 288 of the Act defines gaming as prize gaming if the nature and size of the 
prize is not determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for, or 
raised by the gaming. 

 
8.26 Casinos, bingo premises, adult gaming centres and licensed family entertainment 

centres do not require a permit in order to offer prize gaming. 
 
8.27 Travelling fairs do not require a permit to offer equal chance prize gaming, provided 

that taken together the facilities for gambling are ancillary to the fair. 
 
8.28 Children and young persons may only participate in equal chance prize gaming. 
 
8.29 Applicants for a prize gaming permit should set out the types of gaming that they 

intend to offer. The applicant should be able to demonstrate: 

 that they understand the limits on stakes and prizes that are set out in 
regulations; and 

 that the gaming offered is lawful. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


Page 24 of 28 

 
8.30 The councils can grant or refuse an application for a permit, but cannot attach any 

conditions to it. However, there are four conditions in the Act that permit holders must 
comply with. These are: 

 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 
which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played 
and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the 
game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played 

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize), and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

 
8.31 Councils can only grant a permit if they have consulted the chief officer of police about 

the application. Applicants must disclose any relevant convictions they may have to the 
council and the council will consider any objections that the police make about the 
suitability of person or the premises, including its location and the potential for disorder. 

 

9. Small Society Lotteries 

9.1 The Licensing Authority is responsible for registering small society lotteries. The Act 
defines a lottery as a simple lottery or complex lottery. An arrangement is a simple lottery 
if persons are required to pay a prize to participate, one or more prizes are allocated to 
one or more members and the allocation of prizes are carried out using a process which 
relies wholly on chance. A complex lottery is similar in terms of the payment to participate 
and allocation of prizes to a member but differs in that prizes are allocated by a series of 
processes and the first of those processes relies wholly on chance. 

 
9.2 The Act defines a society as such that it is established and conducted for charitable 

purposes as defines in the Charities Act 2006; for the purpose of enabling participation 
in, or of supporting sports or a cultural activity or for any other non-commercial 
purposes other than that of private gain.  

 
9.3 Participation in a lottery is a form of gambling and anyone seeking to run a lottery 

should conduct it in a socially responsible way. This includes having effective 
procedures in place to minimise the risk of lottery tickets being sold to children. The 
councils would therefore expect that operators of licences ensure that nobody under 
the age of 16 is a player by utilising an age verification policy similar to that used by 
pubs and shops that sell alcohol.  

 
9.4 Lotteries may involve the issuing of physical or virtual tickets (such as in the form of an 

email or text message). All tickets must state the name of the promoting society, the 
price of the ticket (which must be the same as the price of all tickets for that draw), the 
name and address of the person at the society who is responsible for the draw and the 
date of the draw. It is also recommended that operators of lotteries keep records of 
any unsold or returned tickets for a period of one year. 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



Page 25 of 28 

9.5 Lottery tickets shall not be sold to a person in any street, bridge, road, footway, 
subway, alleyway, passageway or court. Tickets can be sold in the street from a static 
area such as a kiosk or door to door subject to relevant licences and permits being 
obtained from the council. 

 
9.6 Prizes awarded in small society lotteries can be either cash or non-monetary. The 

value of prizes must not exceed the limits set out by the Act – in effect that combined 
with any expenses incurred during the running of the lottery – they must not comprise 
more than 80 percent of the total proceeds of the lottery. Donated prizes would not be 
counted as part of this but are still subject to the limit on a single maximum prize limit 
of £25,000. Any prizes involving alcohol should be subject to age checking processes 
before being awarded. 

 
9.7 The Act sets out a number of offences that relate to lotteries including running licences 

without a licence, misusing the profits of a lottery, purporting to be a small society 
lottery when not, failing to submit a return document after the lottery or obstructing or 
misleading council officers, the police, the Commission or any other relevant law 
enforcement body. Small society operators are likely to be prosecuted should such 
offences come to light.  

 
9.8 When assessing any registration by a society, the licensing authority will assess 

whether the proposed society meets the definition within the Act in that it must be non-
commercial, that the value of tickets to be put on sale in a single lottery is less than 
£20,000 or £250,000 in a year. The small society operator must only register where 
their principal office is located. It would generally not be acceptable for a society to try 
and register more than once with any authority or separate authorities if they have the 
same aims and objectives as this would likely constitute a breach of the threshold 
limits stated in the Act. Any registration that is granted will only be for a year and is 
renewable for the correct fee before the anniversary of the expiry.  

 
9.9 Operators of small society lotteries are required to submit a return to the licensing 

authority after each lottery. This must be done no later than three months after the 
draw and must be signed by two members of the society. The return must contain the 
arrangements for the lottery such as the date and the value of any prizes; the total 
proceeds of the lottery; the amount deducted by the operator of the lottery for costs 
and prizes the amount applied to the purposes for which the promoting society is 
conducted (this must be at least 20 percent of the proceeds) and whether any 
expenses were incurred that were not paid via a deduction from the proceeds. 

 
9.10 The council has produced some guidance in relation to small society lotteries which is 

available on the relevant website. The Gambling Commission has also produced a 
number of helpful resources and factsheets which can be accessed on 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk  

 

10. Temporary use notices and occasional use notices 

10.1 Temporary use notices (TUNs) allow the use of premises for gambling where there is 
no premises licence but where a person or company holding a relevant operator’s 
licence wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


Page 26 of 28 

 
10.2 The Licensing Authority can only grant a temporary use notice to a person or company 

holding a relevant operating licence. The Licensing Authority, on receipt of a notice, 
will consider whether gambling should take place or should take place with 
modifications to the notice. The Licensing Authority will consider: 

 The suitability of the premises 

 The location of the premises – in particular its proximity to any sensitive 
premises such as schools 

 Whether CCTV coverage; the use of door supervisors and the employment of 
sufficient staff are in place for the entirety of the notice period 

 Whether the notice giver has the council any concern at previous events 
relating to the licensing objectives, guidance issued by the Commission, the 
codes of practice or the council’s statement of licensing policy.  

 
10.3 A TUN must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less than three months and 

one day before the day on which a gambling event will begin and must be given by the 
holder of an operator licence using the prescribed form. The notice must be copied to 
the Gambling Commission, the police for the relevant area, HMRC and, if applicable, 
any other licensing authority where the proposed premises is situated.  

  
10.4 If objections are received to a temporary use notice (from the police, Gambling 

Commission, HM Revenue & Customs or any other licensing authority in whose area 
the premises are situated), the council must hold a hearing to consider the 
representation (unless all the participants agree that a hearing is unnecessary). 

 
10.5 If the council, after a hearing has taken place or been dispensed with, considers that the 

temporary use notice should not have effect, it must issue a counter-notice which may: 

 prevent the temporary use notice from taking effect 

 limit the activities that are permitted 

 limit the time period of the gambling or 

 allow the activities to take place subject to a specified condition. 
 

10.6 The councils will apply the principles set out in this statement to any consideration as 
to whether to issue a counter-notice. 

 
10.7 The council has very little discretion as regards Occasional Use Notices (OUNs) to 

accept bets at “tracks”, aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a 
calendar year is not exceeded. The council will, however, consider the definition of a 
“track” and whether the applicant will need to demonstrate that they are in fact 
responsible for the administration of the “track “or is an occupier, and therefore 
permitted to avail themselves of the notice. It should be noted that the definition of 
track in the Act is wider than dog tracks or horse racecourses and includes places 
where races or other sporting events take place. This could include major halls, hotels 
and other venues in the districts. If notices are given for a single track which would 
permit betting to occur for more than 8 days per year the council has an obligation to 
issue a counter notice preventing such a breach occurring. 

 
10.8 Local sporting clubs or other venues seeking to become tracks through a contrived 

sporting event have utilised OUNs to solely or primarily facilitate betting taking place on 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



Page 27 of 28 

events occurring away from the identified venue – for example the Grand National. The 
Gambling Commission have not yet introduced a new licence condition limiting the 
betting to the outcomes of races, competitions or other sporting events taking place at 
the track in question but is keeping it under review as this is likely a misuse of OUNs. 

 
10.9 The process of obtaining an OUN is set out in the Act. The notice must be sent to the 

licensing authority and copied to the chief officer of police for the relevant area. 
Provided that the notice will not result in betting facilities being available for more than 
eight days in a calendar year, there is no provision for the issuing of any counter 
notices or for the consideration of objections.  

 

11. Travelling Fairs 

11.1 The Act defines a travelling fair as, ‘wholly or principally’ providing amusements. 
 
11.2 To be exempt from requiring a permit for gaming machines, the fair must be on a site 

that is not used for a fair for more than 27 days per calendar year (regardless of 
whether it is the same or different travelling fairs which occupy the land). 

 
11.3 Fairs may provide an unlimited number of category D machines provided the facilities 

for gambling amount to no more than ancillary amusement to the fair. 
 
11.4 Whilst the gaming machine providers may be exempt from the requirement to hold a 

permit, they must comply with the legal requirements about how the machines operate. 
 
11.5 The councils will liaise with neighbouring authorities to ensure that land used for fairs 

which crosses local authority boundaries is monitored.  
 
 

  

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



Page 28 of 28 

Annex 1 - Licensing authority delegations 

Matter to be dealt with Full Council Licensing Acts Panel Officers 

Final approval of three year 
licensing policy statement X 

  

Policy not to permit casinos 
X 

  

Fee setting (when appropriate) 
X 

  

Application for premises licences 
(new, variation and transfer) and 
provisional statements 

 

 
 

X 
Where representations 
have been received and 
not withdrawn 

X 
Where no representations 
received or all have been 
withdrawn 

Determine review of a premises 
licence 

 
X 

 

Initiate review of a premises licence   X 

Application for club gaming/ club 
machine permits 

 

 
 

X 
Where objections have 
been made and not 
withdrawn 

X 
Where no representations 
received or all have been 
withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/ club 
machine permits 

 
 X 

Applications for other permits  
 X 

Cancellation of licensed premises 
gaming machine permits 

 
  

 
X 

Consideration of temporary use 
notice 

 
 X 

Decision to give a counter notice to 
a temporary use notice 

 
 X 

 
 

Revocation of premises licence due 
to failure to pay annual fee 

 

 

 X 

Registration of small society lotteries  

 X 

Cancellation of registration of small 
society lottery due to failure to pay 
annual fee 

 

 X 

 
X indicates the lowest level to which decisions can be delegated 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



Appendix B - Summary of key changes to gambling policy 

 
The below table summarises the key changes made to the old policy prior to the consultation 

exercise. The section numbers refer to the proposed new policy.  

 

Section Change 

3.1 Added paragraph and further detail on social responsibility and local risk 
assessments. This is to assist applicants when making applications. 

5 New section on locality and the licensing objectives including what factors the 
licensing authority will take into account when applications are received.  

6 Added some additional detail to each of the different premises sections, 
including our expectations of what applicants should consider. Also included 
further detail in 6.5 – 6.10 in relation to council expectations on separation and 
access to gambling premises to assist applicants. 

7.6 - 7.9 Added details of conditions set out in law, the mandatory and default conditions 
and the councils new ‘pool of conditions’ to assist applicants with their 
applications. 

9 New section on small society lotteries. This was not included in the previous 
policy and gives detail on what these lotteries are and links to relevant guidance 
for people considering running one.  

10.7-10.9 Information provided about Occasional Use Notices as this was not included in 
the previous policy 

Annex 1 Updated to add some details of additional processes for clarity and amending 
the level for one item so that officers can cancel club gaming and club machine 
permits as is generally due to a failure to pay the annual fee and officers are 
required to do this without referral to a Panel 

General Removed annexes with details of consultees which will be published separately 
with the consultation report and responsible authorities which are already 
published on our websites 

General Removed annexes with gaming machine category and provision details as these 
are available separately and may be subject to change 

 

The below changes made to sections 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3 are changes that are required by 

legislation. These changes were not part of the consultation and are included below for 

information only. 

1.1 Added detail to confirm the duties for the licensing authorities under the Act to 
publish a policy, state the geographic area it applies to and approach of the 
authority. This is a requirement of the legislation. 

1.2 Added detail in the paragraph on the matters and documents the licensing 
authorities will take into account when carrying out gambling functions. This is a 
requirement of the legislation. 

1.3 Added paragraph on the licensing objectives, fundamental to the role of 
licensing authorities. This is a requirement of the legislation. 

 
Page 39

Agenda Item 7



Appendix C – Report on results of consultation 
 

 

Response 1 - GambleAware 

Thank you for consulting us on your draft Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005. 

 

Due to resource constraints on a small charity, we are not able to offer specific feedback on your 

policy. However, you may find GambleAware’s recently published interactive maps useful, which 

have been designed for use by local authorities. The maps show the prevalence of problem 

gambling severity in each local authority and ward area as well as usage of, and reported demand 

for, treatment and support for gambling harms. 

 

GambleAware also strongly commends two publications by the Local Government Association 

which set out the range of options available to local authorities to deal with gambling-related harms 

using existing powers: 

 

https://www.local.gov.uk/tackling-gambling-related-harm-whole-council-approach 

https://www.local.gov.uk/gambling-regulation-councillor-handbook-england-and-wales 

 

GambleAware is also fully supportive of local authorities which conduct an analysis to identify areas 

with increased levels of risk for any reason. In particular we support those who also include 

additional licence requirements to mitigate the increased level of risk. Areas where there are higher 

than average resident or visiting populations from groups we know to be vulnerable to gambling 

harms include children, the unemployed, the homeless, certain ethnic-minorities, lower socio-

economic groups, those attending mental health (including gambling disorders) or substance 

addiction treatment services.   

 

Finally, GambleAware is a leading commissioner of prevention and treatment services for gambling 

harms. It provides these functions across England, Scotland and Wales and its work is underpinned 

by high quality research, data and evaluation. We encourage all local authorities to signpost people 

to the National Gambling Helpline on 0808 8020 133 and also www.begambleaware.org. Both are 

part of the National Gambling Treatment Service and offer free, confidential advice and support for 

those who may need it. 

 

Officer comment:  

In 3.3 of the policy, we have added reference to the fact there is publicly available data in relation to 

crime, anti-social behaviour and problem gambling in the specific locality, to assist applicants in 

creating their local risk assessments.  

 

Response 2 – an individual/member of the public  

The only section completed by this respondent was in respect of the ‘no casino’ resolution, as follows:  

 

Vale of White Horse District Council should continue with its 'no casino' resolution 

Strongly agree (no further comments provided) 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council should continue to allow applications for casinos 
Strongly disagree (no further comments provided) 
 
Officer comment:  

The committee reports will allow for consideration of a ‘no casino’ resolution.  

Page 40

Agenda Item 7

https://www.local.gov.uk/tackling-gambling-related-harm-whole-council-approach
https://www.local.gov.uk/gambling-regulation-councillor-handbook-england-and-wales


Appendix C – Report on results of consultation 
 

 

Response 3 - Gosschalks on behalf of Betting and Gaming Council 

We act for the Betting and Gaming Council (BGC) and are instructed to respond on behalf of the 
BGC to your consultation on the review of your Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles. 
 
The Betting and Gaming Council 
 
The Betting and Gaming Council (BGC) was created in 2019 as the new standards body for the 
UK’s regulated betting and gaming industry. This includes betting shops, online betting and gaming 
businesses, bingo and casinos. Its mission is to champion industry standards in betting and gaming 
to ensure an enjoyable, fair and safe betting and gaming experience for all of its members’ 
customers. 
 
The BGC has four principal objectives. These are to – 
 

 create a culture of safer gambling throughout the betting and gaming sector, with particular 
focus on young people and those who are vulnerable 

 ensure future changes to the regulatory regime are considered, proportionate and balanced 

 become respected as valuable, responsible and engaged members of the communities in 
which its members operate 

 safeguard and empower the customer as the key to a thriving UK betting and gaming 
industry 

 
Before we comment on your draft policy document, it is important that the backdrop against which 
the comments are made is established. 
 
Betting and Gaming in the UK 
 
Betting and gaming is an incredibly important part of the UK leisure and hospitality industry, 
employing over 70,000 people, including 50,000 in betting, 13,000 in casinos and 10,000 people 
directly employed online. The betting and gaming industry contributes £8.7 billion Gross Value 
Added to the UK economy & contributes £3.2 billion to HM Treasury. In addition, casinos contribute 
over £120 million to the tourism economy each year. 
 
Betting and gaming is widely enjoyed in the UK. Around 30 million people participate in some sort of 
gambling, whether that is on the National Lottery, placing a bet in betting shops, playing in casinos 
or at bingo. The overwhelming majority of these people do so safely without reporting any problems. 
Any consideration of gambling licensing at the local level should also be considered within the wider 
context. 
 

 the overall number of betting shops is in decline. The latest Gambling Commission industry 
statistics show that the number of betting offices (as of March 2020) was 7681. This is 
reducing every year and has fallen from a figure of 9137 in March 2014. These figures do 
not take into account the COVID 19 period which betting offices saw a further 374 betting 
offices close. 

 planning law changes introduced in April 2015 have increased the ability of licensing 
authorities to review applications for new premises, as all new betting shops must now apply 
for planning permission. 

 In April 2019 a maximum stake of £2 was applied to the operation of fixed odds betting 
terminals 

 successive prevalence surveys and health surveys tells us that problem gambling rates in 
the UK are stable and possibly falling. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Appendix C – Report on results of consultation 
 

 

 
Problem Gambling 
 
Problem gambling rates are static or possibly falling. The reported rate of ‘problem gambling’ 
(according to either the DSM-IV or the PGSI) was 0.8% of the adult population in 2015, in 2016 it 
was 0.7% and in 2018 it was 0.5% of the adult population. 
 
This is termed statistically stable but is encouraging that we might finally be seeing a reduction in 
problem gambling due to the raft of measures that have been put in place recently both by the 
industry, the Gambling Commission and the Government – from a ban on credit cards, restrictions 
to VIP accounts, new age and identity verification measures and voluntary restrictions on 
advertising. These rates have remained broadly the same since the introduction of the Gambling 
Act 2005. 
 
Whilst one problem gambler is too many, both the Government and regulator both say there is no 
evidence that problem gambling has increased in recent years. 
 
During the Covid-19 period of lockdown, both the Gambling Commission and Government have 
acknowledged that problem gambling levels have not increased. 
 
In June 2020, the BGC’s five largest members committed to increasing the amount they spend on 
research, education and treatment (RET) services from 0.1 per cent to 0.25 per cent of their annual 
revenue in 2020, 0.5 per cent in 2021, 0.75 per cent in 2022 and 1 per cent in 2023. The five 
operators confirmed they will provide £100 million to GambleAware charity to improve treatment 
services for problem gamblers. 
 
Rates of ‘problem gambling’ in the UK are low by international standards – compared to France 
(1.3%), Germany (1.2%), Sweden (2.2%) and Italy (1.27%). 
 
The BGC supported the creation of the new NHS gambling treatment clinics who have promised 22 
clinics, 3 of which are open now. We are pleased that the NHS have committed to work to increase 
the number of clinics in the UK in addition to existing serviced delivered by Gordon Moody 
Association and GamCare’s 120 treatment centres located throughout the UK. 
 
The BGC welcomes the Gambling Commission’s National Strategy was a way of accelerating 
progress on responsible gambling and tackling problem gambling. Our members are fully committed 
to meeting this challenge and are working tirelessly to deliver new responsible gambling initiatives 
including technology that tackles problem gambling and supporting a statutory levy and increased 
funding for problem gambling clinics. 
 
Underage participating by those aged 11-16 in any gambling activity has declined from 22% to 11% 
over the past decade; here, ‘gambling activity’ mainly relates to personal betting (e.g. playing cards 
with friends) and legal play of lotteries (e.g. participating with consent of parents / guardians). BGC 
members have a zero tolerance to those under the age of 18 attempting to use their products. 
 
Working in partnership with local authorities 
 
The BGC is fully committed to ensuring constructive working relationships exist between betting 
operators and licensing authorities, and that where problems may arise that they can be dealt with 
in partnership. The exchange of clear information between councils and betting operators is a key 
part of this and the opportunity to respond to this consultation is welcomed. 
 
Differentiation between Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 applications 
 
When considering applications for premises licences, it is important that a clear distinction is made 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Appendix C – Report on results of consultation 
 

 

between the regimes, processes and procedures established by Gambling Act 2005 and its 
regulations and those that are usually more familiar to licensing authorities – the regimes, 
processes and procedures relating to Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Whilst Licensing Act 2003 applications require applicants to specify steps to be taken to promote 
the licensing objectives, those steps being then converted into premises licence conditions, there is 
no such requirement in Gambling Act 2005 applications where the LCCP provide a comprehensive 
package of conditions for all types of premises licence. 
 
It should continue to be the case that additional conditions in Gambling Act 2005 premises licence 
applications are only imposed in exceptional circumstances where there are clear reasons for doing 
so. There are already mandatory and default conditions attached to any premises licence which will 
ensure operation that is consistent with the licensing objectives. In the vast majority of cases, these 
will not need to be supplemented by additional conditions. 
 
The LCCP require that premises operate an age verification policy. The industry operates a policy 
called “Think 21”. This policy is successful in preventing under-age gambling. Independent test 
purchasing carried out by operators and and submitted to the Gambling Commission, shows that ID 
challenge rates are consistently around 85%. 
 
When reviewing draft statements of principles in the past, we have seen statements of principles 
requiring the operation of Challenge 25. Unless there is clear evidence of a need to deviate from the 
industry standard then conditions requiring an alternative age verification policy should not be 
imposed. 
 
The BGC is concerned that the imposition of additional licensing conditions could become 
commonplace if there are no clear requirements in the revised licensing policy statement as to the 
need for evidence. If additional licence conditions are more commonly applied this would increase 
variation across licensing authorities and create uncertainty amongst operators as to licensing 
requirements, over complicating the licensing process both for operators and local authorities 
 
Considerations specific to the draft joint statement of gambling policy. 
 
On behalf of the BGC we welcome the relatively light touch approach to your joint statement of 
gambling policy. There are, however, a number of issues that we would seek to raise with you. 
 
The first relates to “primary gambling activity”. There are references to this throughout the joint 
statement of policy and indeed part 6 of the policy deals with it specifically. 
 
The term “primary gambling activity” is no longer used by the Gambling Commission. It does not 
appear in either the Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities or the LCCP. In the 
circumstances, these references should be redrafted to use up to date terminology. 
 
SR Code provision 9 deal with gaming machines in gambling premises. As far as betting offices are 
concerned, SR Code provision 9.1.1 is clear that licensees must ensure that the function along with 
the internal and/external presentation of the premises are such that a customer can reasonably be 
expected to recognise that it is a premises licensed for the purposes of providing betting facilities. 
This provision also requires that gaming machines may only be made available for use where there 
are also substantive facilities for non-remote betting provided by the premises. 
 
Part 7 of the draft joint statement explains the Licensing Authority’s approach to premises licence 
conditions. We welcome the reference to the mandatory and default conditions but respectfully 
submit that the draft joint statement of licensing policy would be assisted if it was made clear that 
the mandatory and default conditions are usually sufficient to ensure operation that is consistent 
with the licensing objectives. Indeed, that is the purpose of the mandatory and default conditions. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Appendix C – Report on results of consultation 
 

 

The draft joint statement of licensing policy should be clear that additional conditions will only be 
imposed where there is evidence of a risk to the licensing objectives that requires the mandatory 
and default conditions to be supplemented in the circumstances of a particular case. 
  
Conclusion 
 
On behalf of the BGC, we thank you for the opportunity to comment on your draft statement of 
principles and hope that these comments above are useful. The BGC will work with you to ensure 
that its members’ operation of its premises will operate in accordance with the licensing objectives. 
 

Officer comment:  

Paragraphs 2 to 4 of the final section of the response all relate to the same issue. We maintain that 

the principle of primary gambling activity is still an important inclusion in the policy, so for example a 

licence for a betting premises would only be granted to a premises where the main activity is 

betting. We think the terminology is clear and easy for all to understand.  

 

As a result of the comment in paragraph 5 of the final section, we have added a sentence to 7.7 in 

the policy to confirm that it will usually be the case that the mandatory and default conditions are the 

only conditions required to be attached to any licence, but that in cases where risk is identified, 

additional conditions may be added. 

 

 

Response 4 – Thame Town Council  

Thame Town Council has no objections to the proposed changes to the Gambling Policy. 

In respect of the casino resolution, they responded as follows:  

 

Vale of White Horse District Council should continue with its 'no casino' resolution 

Neither agree nor disagree (no further comments provided) 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council should continue to allow applications for casinos 
Neither agree nor disagree (no further comments provided) 

 

Officer comment:  

The committee reports will allow for consideration of a ‘no casino’ resolution.  

 

 

Response 5 – Vale of White Horse district councillor  

This respondent answered the question to confirm they agreed with the policy changes.  

In respect of the casino resolution, they responded as follows:  

 

Vale of White Horse District Council should continue with its 'no casino' resolution 

Strongly agree (no further comments provided) 

 

Officer comment:  

The committee reports will allow for consideration of a ‘no casino’ resolution.  

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

Cabinet report  

 

Report of Head of Finance 

 
Author: Emma Creed 
Telephone: 01235 422498 
E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 
Telephone: 01189 722565 
E-mail:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
 
VWHDC cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 
Telephone: 01235 772134 
E-mail:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee; Cabinet; Council 

DATE: 30 November by Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
 2 December (S) / 3 December (V) by Cabinet  
 9 December (S) / 8 December (V) by Council  
 

 

 

Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 

2021/22 

Recommendations 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1. notes the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22. 
2. is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 

treasury management strategy and policy. 
 
That Cabinet: 

3. considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and       
recommends council to approve the report. 

 
Purpose of report 

1. The report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring of the 
treasury management activities and that each council’s prudential indicators are 
reported to their respective council mid-year (i.e. as at 30 September).  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the first six months of 2021/22 and an 
update on the current economic conditions with a view to the remainder of the year. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8

mailto:emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 
 

Strategic objectives  

2. Managing the finances of the authorities in accordance with the treasury management 
strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver their services and 
meet the councils’ strategic objectives. 
 

Background 

Treasury management 

3. This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (revised 2017). 

 
4. The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management 
activities. 

 

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
way the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 

 

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
- including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-Year Review Report and an Annual Report, 
(stewardship report), covering activities during the previous year. 

 

 Delegation by the Councils of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions. 

 
5. This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice 

on Treasury Management, and covers the following: 
 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2021/22 financial year; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy; 

 A review of the Councils’ investment portfolios for 2021/22; 

 A review of the Councils’ borrowing strategy for 2021/22; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2021/22. 
 
6. The first main function of the treasury management service is to ensure the councils’ 

cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low-risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising 
investment return. The Treasury Management Strategy determines to whom the 
councils can lend, and this is the manifestation of their risk appetite. 

 
7. The second main function of the treasury management service is to ensure funding for 

the Councils’ capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need 
of the Councils, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Councils 
can meet their capital spending operations. This management of longer-term cash 
may involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer term cash flow 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 
risk or cost objectives.  

 
8. Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 

9. The 2021/22 treasury management strategy was approved by each council in 
February 2021.  This report summarises the treasury activity and performance for the 
first six months of 2021/22 against those prudential indicators and benchmarks set for 
the year.  It also provides an opportunity to review and subsequently revise limits if 
required.  Full council is required to approve this report and any amendments to the 
Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
Treasury activity 

10. The mid-year performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below1.   

  

South 
Treasury 

investments 
£000 

Non 
treasury 

loan £000 
Sub Total 

£000 

Property 
investment 

£000 
Overall 

total £000 

1 Average investment balance 172,635  15,000  187,635 8,067 195,702 

2 Budgeted investment income 612  311  923 367  1,290 

3 Actual investment income 445  312  757 208 965 

4 surplus/(deficit) (3) - (2) (167) 1  (166) (159) (325) 

5 Annualised rate of return 0.52% 4.16% 0.81% 5.16% 0.99% 

 
 

  

Vale 
Treasury 

investments 
£000 

Property 
investment 

£000 
Overall 

total £000 

1 Average investment balance 113,420  5,516 118,936 

2 Budgeted investment income 279  71  350 

3 Actual investment income 71  15 86 

4 surplus/(deficit) (3) - (2) (208)  (56) (264) 

5 Annualised rate of return 0.13% 0.54% 0.14% 

 
 

The forecast outturn position as at September 2021, based on known investments and 
maturities and an estimate for future earnings is shown in the table below: 

 

South Oxfordshire 
District Council 

Vale of White Horse 
District Council 

Annual budget as per MTFP £1,846,610 £557,560 

Forecast outturn £1,560,489 £291,375 

Variance against budget (£286,121) (£266,185) 

Borrowing Nil Nil 

 
 

                                            
1 For property, the balance shown is the fair value of investment properties as at 31 March 2021. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

11. The Councils remain restricted regarding financial institutions meeting their investment 
criteria.  When it is possible, investments will be placed with highly rated institutions 
for a longer duration with a view to increasing the weighted average maturity of the 
portfolio, but this has meant that overall, there are fewer suitable counterparties 
available to the councils to deposit with. 

12. During the first half of the year officers started a dialogue with Link Treasury Services 
to find alternative investments, which will diversify our portfolios.  This dialogue will be 
progressed in the second half of the year. 
 

13. SODC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 
below budget by £0.3 million. This is due to the interest rates available being much 
lower than our most pessimistic forecasts when the budget was set.    

 
14. VWHDC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 

below budget by £0.3 million. This is due to the interest rates available being much 
lower than our most pessimistic forecasts when the budget was set.  

 
15. Investment rates have started to rise as the markets are factoring in an increase in 

Bank Rate.  This should result in better yields in the second half of the year. 
 
16. VWHDC has more maturities in the second half of the financial year.  This has 

resulted in the small receipt in interest and rate of return, when compared with SODC, 
in the first half of the year.  

 
Performance measurement 

17. A list of investments as at 30 September 2021 is shown in Appendices A1 and A2.   
 
18. The councils’ performance against benchmarks for the first six months of the year are 

detailed in Appendices A3 and A4.  All investments were with approved 
counterparties. The average return on these investments is shown above in the table 
at paragraph 10.   

 
Treasury management limits on activity 

19. Each council is required by the Prudential Code to report on the limits set each year in 
their respective Treasury Management Strategies.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury functions remain within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if the limits set are too restrictive, they will impair the opportunities to 
reduce costs/improve performance.  The performance against the limits for both 
councils are shown in Appendices B1 and B2. 

20. Following the period covered by this report, Council at SODC agreed to revise the 
prudential indicators to take into account the revised capital programme agreed in 
October 2021.   

 
Debt activity during 2021/22 

21. During the first six months of 2021/22 there has been no need for either of the 
councils to borrow.  The Head of Finance will continue to take a prudent approach to 
the councils’ debt strategies.  The prudential indicators and limits set out in 

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

Appendices B1 and B2 provide the scope and flexibility for either of the councils to 
borrow in the short-term up to the maximum limits, if ever such a need arose within the 
cash flow management activities of the councils in order to achieve their service 
objectives. 

 
Interest rate forecast and economic forecast  

22. The Councils’ treasury advisor, Link Treasury Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 
 

 
Note: LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the end of 2021. The forecast above is based on average earnings by local 

authorities for 6 to 12 months. 

 
23. At the November 2021 Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting, concerns were 

raised that recent increases in prices, particularly in gas and electricity, will lead to 
faster and higher inflation expectations and underlying wage growth, which in turn 
would increase the risk that price pressures would prove more persistent next year 
than previously expected.  This means inflation could stay significantly above the two 
per cent target for longer.  Current forecasts are that inflation could reach five per cent 
in April 2022. 

 
24. Financial markets are pricing in a first increase in Bank Rate before the end of 2021, 

however the MPC has stated that it wants to see what happens in the economy and 
particularly to employment once furlough ends in September.  The MPC has 
commented that Bank Rate would have to go up in the short term and the table above 
has factored in a first rate rise in December 2021, however the Bank of England could 
wait until February or May to raise Bank Rate. 

 
25. It should be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 10 per cent was an emergency 

measure to deal with the covid crisis hitting the UK in March 2020.  At any time, the 
MPC could decide to simply take away that final emergency cut from 25 per cent to 10 
per cent on no other grounds than it being no longer warranted and as a step forward 
in the return to normalisation. 

 
26. With unpredictable virus factors now being part of the forecasting environment, there 

is a risk that forecasts could be subject to significant revision during the next three 
years. 

 

 
Climate and ecological impact implications 

27. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report, however the 
Councils can make significant impact via future investment opportunities and 
operational changes.  Numerous changes have already been made to ensure that 
climate is a key consideration in key documents and processes (such as the 

Interest forecast November 2021

December March June September December March June September

2021 2022 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2023

Bank rate 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75

6 month ave earnings 0.40 0.50 0.60 0.60 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00

12 month ave earnings 0.50 0.60 0.70 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.10

5yr PWLB 1.50 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80

10yr PWLB 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.20

25 yr PWLB 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

50 yr PWLB 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

procurement strategy), and this will become more evident in future decision making.  
As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Councils arise, they will be 
considered and appropriately weighted to include any climate or ecological impacts. 

 

Financial Implications 

28. These are covered in the body of the report. 
 
Legal implications 

29. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this 
report.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance provides 
assurance that the councils’ investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal 
powers. 

 
Conclusion 

30. This report provides details of the treasury management activities for the period 1 April 
2021 to 30 September 2021 and the mid-year prudential indicators to each respective 
council.  
 

31. This report also provides the monitoring information for joint audit and governance 
committee to fulfil its role of scrutinising treasury management activity at each council. 

 
Background papers 

 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 

 CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Guidance Notes 2018 

 CIPFA statement 17.10.18 on borrowing in advance of need and investments in 
commercial properties 

 CIPFA Bulletin 02 Treasury and Capital Management Update October 2018 

 Statutory investment guidance where it has been updated in 2018 (English local 
authorities) 

 Statutory MRP guidance where it has been updated in 2018 (English local 
authorities) 

 Treasury Management Investment Strategy 2021/22 (South Oxfordshire & Vale of 
White Horse, February 2021) 

 
Appendices 

A1 – SODC List of investments as at 30 September 2021 
A2 – VWHDC List of investments as at 30 September 2021 
A3 – SODC Performance against benchmark 
A4 – VWHDC Performance against benchmark 
B1 – SODC Prudential Indicators 
B2 – VWHDC Prudential Indicators 
C1 – Note on Prudential Indicators 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A1 

A1 – 1 

 

South Oxfordshire 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investments as at 30 September 2021

Counterparty

Deposit 

type

Investment 

date Maturity date

Remaining 

investment 

duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)

Cambridge Fixed 01-Oct-20 01-Oct-21 1 3,000,000          0.40%

Skipton Building Society Fixed 01-Oct-20 01-Oct-21 1 2,000,000          0.30%

Principality Building Society Fixed 15-Jul-21 15-Oct-21 15 3,000,000          0.07%

Progressive Building Society Fixed 21-Oct-20 21-Oct-21 21 1,000,000          0.42%

Cambridge Fixed 30-Oct-20 29-Oct-21 29 2,000,000          0.42%

Progressive Building Society Fixed 30-Oct-20 29-Oct-21 29 2,000,000          0.42%

Saffron Building Society Fixed 03-Nov-20 02-Nov-21 33 1,000,000          0.40%

Saffron Building Society Fixed 05-Nov-20 05-Nov-21 36 1,000,000          0.40%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 06-Nov-20 05-Nov-21 36 3,000,000          0.45%

Furness Building Society Fixed 20-Nov-20 19-Nov-21 50 3,000,000          0.55%

Saffron Building Society Fixed 11-Dec-20 10-Dec-21 71 3,000,000          0.40%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 01-Jul-21 04-Jan-22 96 2,000,000          0.09%

METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST LTD Fixed 12-Jan-21 12-Jan-22 104 2,000,000          0.30%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 18-Jan-21 17-Jan-22 109 2,000,000          0.33%

Thurrock Borough Council Fixed 19-Jan-21 18-Jan-22 110 3,500,000          0.20%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 16-Feb-21 15-Feb-22 138 5,000,000          0.28%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 16-Feb-21 16-Feb-22 139 3,000,000          0.20%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 16-Feb-21 16-Feb-22 139 3,000,000          0.20%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 22-Feb-21 21-Feb-22 144 2,000,000          0.30%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 11-Mar-21 10-Mar-22 161 4,000,000          0.20%

Principality Building Society Fixed 01-Jul-21 14-Mar-22 165 4,000,000          0.12%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 23-Mar-21 23-Mar-22 174 2,000,000          0.20%

Principality Building Society Fixed 23-Mar-21 23-Mar-22 174 2,000,000          0.14%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 29-Mar-21 29-Mar-22 180 2,000,000          0.39%

National Bank of Kuwait Fixed 06-Aug-21 31-Mar-22 182 2,000,000          0.15%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 01-Apr-21 01-Apr-22 183 2,500,000          0.35%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 30-Apr-21 29-Apr-22 211 1,000,000          0.33%

Thurrock Borough Council Fixed 30-Apr-21 29-Apr-22 211 3,000,000          0.30%

Thurrock Borough Council Fixed 20-Apr-21 19-Apr-22 201 5,000,000          0.40%

Thurrock Borough Council Fixed 21-May-21 20-May-22 232 5,000,000          0.40%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 24-Jun-21 23-Jun-22 266 2,000,000          0.33%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 09-Jul-21 09-Jul-22 282 1,000,000          0.15%

Progressive Building Society Fixed 15-Jul-21 15-Jul-22 288 2,500,000          0.16%

Principality Building Society Fixed 09-Aug-21 08-Aug-22 312 2,000,000          0.15%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 09-Aug-21 08-Aug-22 312 2,000,000          0.15%

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A1 

A1 – 1 

 
South Oxfordshire Continued 
 

 
 
*  Rates are variable.  Returns shown represent prevailing rates at end Q2 2021. 
** Above figures exclude balance outstanding from Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander and SOHA loan 
***Last year total investments: £162 million

Investments as at 30 September 2021

Counterparty

Deposit 

type

Investment 

date Maturity date

Remaining 

investment 

duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)

Principality Building Society Fixed 10-Aug-21 09-Aug-22 313 1,500,000          0.15%

Principality Building Society Fixed 16-Aug-21 15-Aug-22 319 2,000,000          0.15%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 16-Aug-21 15-Aug-22 319 2,000,000          0.15%

Furness Building Society Fixed 19-Aug-21 18-Aug-22 322 2,000,000          0.30%

Thurrock Borough Council Fixed 23-Aug-21 22-Aug-22 326 3,500,000          0.20%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 27-Aug-21 26-Aug-22 330 2,000,000          0.18%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 27-Aug-21 26-Aug-22 330 2,000,000          0.18%

Furness Building Society Fixed 07-Sep-21 07-Sep-22 342 2,000,000          0.30%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 14-Sep-21 13-Sep-22 348 2,000,000          0.38%

National Bank of Kuwait Fixed 15-Sep-21 15-Sep-22 350 3,000,000          0.22%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 16-Sep-21 16-Sep-22 351 3,000,000          0.15%

Nottingham Building Society Fixed 17-Sep-21 16-Sep-22 351 3,000,000          0.15%

Furness Building Society Fixed 27-Sep-21 27-Sep-22 362 2,000,000          0.30%

Santander Call * 401,256             0.02%

Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 2,361                0.01%

Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 96,489              0.01%

Goldman Sachs MMF * 17,200,000        0.00%

Blackrock MMF * 690,000             0.00%

Total short term cash investments (<1 yr duration) 136,890,106

Close Brothers Fixed 27-Nov-19 29-Nov-21 60 3,000,000          1.30%

Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 18-Feb-19 20-Feb-23 508 2,000,000          2.46%

Places for People Fixed 15-Mar-21 15-Mar-23 531 5,000,000          1.00%

Places for People Fixed 01-Apr-21 03-Apr-23 550 5,000,000          1.00%

Places for People Fixed 10-May-21 10-May-23 587 2,000,000          1.00%

Places for People Fixed 25-Jun-21 23-Jun-23 631 3,000,000          1.00%

Total long-term cash investments (>1 yr duration) 20,000,000

CCLA Property 6,467,694 Variable

Legal & General Equities Unit Trust 13,771,218 Variable

Total Investments 177,129,018

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A2 

A2 – 1 

 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Investments as at 30 September 2021

Counterparty

Deposit 

type

Investment 

date

Maturity 

date

Remaining 

investment 

duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)
Cambridge Building Society Fixed 01/10/2020 01/10/2021 1 2,000,000 0.40%

Saffron Building Society Fixed 01/10/2020 01/10/2021 1 3,000,000 0.40%

Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 31/10/2019 29/10/2021 29 1,000,000 1.70%

Furness Building Society Fixed 02/11/2020 29/10/2021 29 3,000,000 0.55%

Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 18/11/2019 18/11/2021 49 2,000,000 1.30%

Worthing Borough Council Fixed 18/11/2019 18/11/2021 49 3,000,000 1.30%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 30/11/2020 29/11/2021 60 1,500,000 0.45%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 30/11/2020 29/11/2021 60 2,500,000 0.34%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 07/12/2020 06/12/2021 67 1,500,000 0.45%

Principality Building Society Fixed 14/12/2020 13/12/2021 74 2,000,000 0.19%

Progressive Building Society Fixed 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 96 3,000,000 0.30%

Fife Council Fixed 20/01/2021 19/01/2022 111 5,000,000 0.20%

Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 21/01/2020 21/01/2022 113 4,000,000 1.30%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 28/01/2021 28/01/2022 120 5,000,000 0.18%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 15/02/2021 14/02/2022 137 1,500,000 0.20%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 17/02/2021 16/02/2022 139 3,000,000 0.30%

Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 19/02/2020 21/02/2022 144 2,000,000 1.80%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 22/02/2021 21/02/2022 144 2,000,000 0.20%

Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 05/03/2020 07/03/2022 158 2,000,000 1.30%

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 25/03/2021 14/03/2022 165 3,000,000 0.20%

Nat Bank of Kuwait International Fixed 09/06/2021 14/03/2022 165 5,000,000 0.20%

Principality Building Society Fixed 27/05/2021 26/05/2022 238 2,000,000 0.15%

Furness Building Society Fixed 25/06/2021 24/06/2022 267 3,000,000 0.35%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 25/06/2021 24/06/2022 267 1,000,000 0.33%

Nat Bank of Kuwait International Fixed 30/06/2021 29/06/2022 272 5,000,000 0.23%

Newcastle Building Society Fixed 01/07/2021 30/06/2022 273 2,500,000 0.18%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 26/07/2021 25/07/2022 298 1,000,000 0.33%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 06/08/2021 05/08/2022 309 2,000,000 0.15%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 16/08/2021 15/08/2022 319 3,000,000 0.35%

Cambridge Building Society Fixed 18/08/2021 17/08/2022 321 1,000,000 0.25%

National Counties Building Society Fixed 09/09/2021 08/09/2022 343 1,000,000 0.33%

Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 09/09/2021 08/09/2022 343 1,000,000 0.15%

Principality Building Society Fixed 09/09/2021 08/09/2022 343 3,000,000 0.15%

Lloyds Bank Call 5,000,000 0.04%

Lloyds Bank Call 5,000,000 0.02%

LGIM MMF * 220,000 0.00%

Goldman Sachs MMF * 14,500,000 0.00%

Total short term cash investments (<1 yr duration) 107,220,000

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A2 

A2 – 1 

 

Vale of White Horse continued 
 

 
 

*Rates are variable.  Returns shown represent prevailing rates at end Q2 2021. 
**Investment placed on an escalator. Year 1 interest rate is 0.30%, year 2 is 0.55% and year 3 is 0.80%. 
***Last year total investments: £110 million 
 

 

 

 

Investments as at 30 September 2021

Counterparty

Deposit 

type

Investment 

date

Maturity 

date

Remaining 

investment 

duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)

Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 10/12/2020 10/06/2022 253 5,000,000 0.75%

Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 16/11/2020 16/11/2022 412 3,000,000 1.10%

Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 01/03/2021 01/03/2023 517 2,000,000 0.37%

Southern Housing Group Fixed 19/03/2021 20/03/2023 536 5,000,000 1.00%

Yorkshire Housing Ltd Fixed 29/04/2021 28/04/2023 575 5,000,000 1.00%

Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 17/06/2021 16/06/2023 624 2,000,000 1.00%

Rotherham MBC** Fixed 25/06/2021 25/06/2024 999 5,000,000 0.30%

Total long-term cash investments (>1 yr duration) 27,000,000

CCLA Property 2,780,901 variable

Total Investments 137,000,901

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A3 

A3 – 1 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

Investment returns achieved against benchmark     

    
Benchmark 

Return 
Actual 
Return 

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 

            

Bank & Building Society deposits - 
internally managed   -0.05% 0.52% 0.57% 3 Month LIBID 

Equities   5.95% 7.82% 1.87% FTSE All Shares Index 

            

 

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six months of the 
year.   

CCLA 

 

 

 The CCLA investment is a long-term holding.  The above table shows the performance of 
the fund as a whole and the longer term performance should be used as a guide to 
returns achievable in the medium term. 

 South invested £5 million into the fund and in the first six months of 2021/22, achieved a 
return of 4.18 per cent calculated as a ratio of income over the market value held as at 30 
September 2021.  This is not the same basis upon which the performance of the fund 
above is calculated.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annualised total return 
performance       

Performance to 30 September 2021 1 year 3 years 5 years 

The local authorities property fund 11.73% 4.39% 5.93% 

Benchmark - IPD property index 8.49% 3.25% 5.10% 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A4 

2 
 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Investment returns achieved against benchmark     

  Benchmark 
return 

Actual return Growth 
(below)/above 

benchmark 

Benchmarks 

  % % %   

Internally managed - Bank 
& Building Society deposits -0.05% 0.13% 0.18% 

3-month LIBID 

          

 

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six months of 
the year.   

CCLA 

 

Annualised total return 
performance       

Performance to 30 September 2021 1 year 3 years 5 years 

The local authorities property fund 11.73% 4.39% 5.93% 

Benchmark - IPD property index 8.49% 3.25% 5.10% 

 

 The CCLA investment is a long-term holding.  The above table shows the 
performance of the fund as a whole and the longer-term performance should be 
used as a guide to returns achievable in the medium term. 

 Vale invested £2 million into the fund and in the first six months of 2021/22, 
achieved a return of 4.18 per cent calculated as a ratio of income over the market 
value held as at 30 September 2021.  This is not the same basis upon which the 
performance of the fund above is calculated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



Appendix B1 

B1 - 1 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council 
 

 

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2021     

   2021/22 Actual as at 

   

Original 
Estimate 30-Sep 

Debt  £m £m 

Authorised limit for external debt     

Borrowing  30 0 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 

   30 0 

Operational boundary for external debt     

Borrowing  25 0 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 

   25 0 

Interest rate exposures     

Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 0 

Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 0 

      

Investments     

Interest rate exposures     

Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 80% 

Limits on variable interest rates  50 25 

      

Principal sums invested > 364 days     

Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days  70 27 

        

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Appendix B2 

B2 - 1 

 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
 

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2020     

    2020/21 Actual as at 

   

Original 
estimate 30-Sep 

   £m £m 

Authorised limit for external debt     

Borrowing  30 0 

Other long-term liabilities  5 0 

   35 0 

Operational boundary for external debt     

Borrowing  25 0 

Other long-term liabilities  5 0 

   30 0 

Interest rate exposures     

Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 0 

Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 0 

      

Investments     

Interest rate exposures     

Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 85% 

Limits on variable interest rates  50 14 

      

Principal sums invested > 364 days     

Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days  40 23 

        

 

 

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



Appendix C1 

C1 - 1 

Prudential indicators – explanatory note 

Debt 

There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with 
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based 
on estimates of most likely, but not worst-case scenario.   

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash 
flows.   

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position. 

Interest rate exposures 

The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable 
rate of interest. 

Investments 

Interest rate exposure 

The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the 
net position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding. 

Principal sums invested 

This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days. 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Vicky Johnson 

Telephone: 01235 422481 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422481 

E-mail: Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 
 
 
  

Cabinet member responsible: Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk  

To: CABINET on 2 December 2021 

To: Council on 9 December 2021 

 

Council tax base 2022/23 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet recommends Council to: 
 

1. Approve the report of the head of finance for the calculation of the council’s tax 
base and the calculation of the tax base for each parish area for 2022/2023. 

 
2. Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 

Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire 
District Council as its council tax base for the year 2022/23 be 60,343.7 

 
3. Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 

Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire 
District Council as the council tax base for the year 2022/23 for each parish be the 
amount shown against the name of that parish in Appendix A of the report of the 
head of finance to Cabinet on 2 December 2021. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to ask Cabinet to recommend the council tax base for 
2022/23 to Council for approval. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The calculation of the tax base is a legal requirement and an essential part of the tax 
setting process which helps to achieve the council’s corporate objectives. 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


 

Background 

3. Before the council tax can be set by the council, a calculation has to be made of the 
council tax base, which is an estimate of the taxable resources for the district as a 
whole and for each parish area.   

4. The council tax base for the district has to be notified to Oxfordshire County Council 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner by 31 January 2022.  Each parish and town 
council is also notified of the figure for its area. 

5. The legislation requires that the council tax base is approved by full council or a non-
executive body with delegated powers.  No such delegation exists, so cabinet is 
therefore asked to recommend to council the schedule set out in Appendix A as the 
council tax base for the district as a whole and for each parish area. 

Options - Calculation of the tax base 

6. The starting point for the calculation is the total number of dwellings and their council 
tax band.  

7. The council then allows for the following information, for each band: 

(a) dwellings which will be entirely exempt so no tax is payable (e.g. those occupied 
entirely by students) 

 
(b) dwellings which will attract a 25 per cent reduction (e.g. those with a single adult 

occupier) 
 
(c) dwellings which will attract a 50 per cent reduction (e.g. those where all of the 

adult residents qualify for a reduction) 
 
(d) dwellings which will be treated as being in a lower band because they have been 

adapted for a severely disabled person.  The regulations provide methodology to 
take account of the reduction available to those in band A dwellings 

 
(e) dwellings which will be on the valuation list but which attract discounts or 

disablement relief or are exempt, for only part of the year 
 
8. Each band is then converted into "band D equivalents" by applying the factor laid down 

by legislation.  For example, a band A dwelling is equal to 2/3 of a band D dwelling and 
is therefore multiplied by 2/3 to arrive at the band D equivalent figure, whilst a band H 
dwelling is equal to twice a Band D dwelling and is therefore multiplied by two to arrive 
at the Band D equivalent figure.  All these are then added together to give a total of 
band D equivalents.  

9. A final adjustment is required to allow for non-collection.  The council is required to 
decide what its collection rate is likely to be and apply this to its council tax base.  For 
the 2021/22 tax the council assumed 98 per cent would eventually be collected and it is 
proposed to use 98 per cent again in 2022/23.   

Taxbase for 2022/23 

10. Based on the assumptions detailed above the council tax base for 2022/23 is 60,343.7.  

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



 

11. Similar calculations are required for each parish in order to calculate the proportion of 
the district's tax base which relates to its area.  A schedule of the tax base for each 
parish is set out in Appendix A.  

12. To calculate the council tax amounts payable per property band for the council, its 
council tax requirement (i.e. the amount of council tax to be raised) is divided by the 
Band D equivalent (taxbase).  This will be finalised during January and February, 
culminating in the council tax being set by council on 17 February 2022 (this date is 
subject to the council being notified of the major precepting authorities’ council tax 
requirements).  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

13. There are no direct climate and ecological implications arising from this report 

Financial Implications 

14. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2021 showed that the council is due to receive £4.3 million less in revenue funding than 
it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  
 

15. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 
remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the announcement 
of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term financial 
consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase 
further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate 
this funding gap in future years. 

 
16. The financial implications and calculations for the taxbase are set out in the body of the 

report. 

Legal Implications 

17. These are set out in the body of the report. 

Risks 

18. The council’s methodology for calculating the taxbase involves basing the calculation 
on actual dwellings at a certain point in time, rather than forecasting on potential new 
dwellings that may be built in the future.  Because of this the risk exposure is 
considered to be low. 

Conclusion 
 
19. As covered above, the calculation of the tax base is a legal requirement and it is asked 

that Cabinet recommends the council tax base for 2022/23 to Council for approval in 
accordance with Appendix A. 

Background Papers 

None  
Page 62

Agenda Item 9



 

Appendix A 

 
 

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL NUMBER NUMBER PARISH PARISH % PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL NUMBER NUMBER PARISH PARISH %

OF OF TAX TAX CHANGE OF OF TAX TAX CHANGE

DWELLINGS DWELLINGS BASE BASE ON YEAR DWELLINGS DWELLINGS BASE BASE ON YEAR

2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Adwell 14                  14 15.1        13.2        14.4% Sandford on Thames 580                 582 491.6         488.8       0.6%

Aston Rowant 351                 351 438.8      434.4      1.0% Shiplake 732                 717 1,006.9      984.2       2.3%

Aston Tirrold & Upthorpe 227                 227 271.4      267.3      1.5% Shirburn 55                   55 59.9           59.8         0.2%

Beckley & Stowood 254                 254 282.8      281.5      0.5% Sonning Common 1,752              1705 1,742.9      1,696.1    2.8%

Benson 1,979              1919 1,963.5   1,875.2   4.7% South Moreton 132                 132 126.1         129.4       -2.6%

Berinsfield 1,109              1107 668.6      670.5      -0.3% South Stoke 222                 222 230.1         225.7       1.9%

Berrick Salome 129                 129 172.9      170.0      1.7% Stadhampton 388                 364 393.0         359.8       9.2%

Binfield Heath 288                 288 327.7      329.9      -0.7% Stanton St John 189                 189 224.0         223.1       0.4%

Bix & Assendon 262                 262 338.6      336.3      0.7% Stoke Row 282                 277 344.2         332.9       3.4%

Brightwell Baldwin 83                  83 108.8      106.4      2.3% Stoke Talmage 27                   27 32.0           33.3         -3.9%

Brightwell cum Sotwell 650                 632 685.7      664.3      3.2% Swyncombe 118                 117 145.5         141.2       3.0%

Britwell Salome 87                  87 101.8      102.9      -1.1% Sydenham 141                 141 155.3         156.9       -1.0%

Chalgrove 1,183              1133 1,114.5   1,061.6   5.0% Tetsworth 334                 318 346.0         327.0       5.8%

Checkendon 220                 217 252.5      247.7      1.9% Thame 5,741              5697 4,978.9      4,924.8    1.1%

Chinnor 3,158              3088 2,936.2   2,848.5   3.1% Tiddington with Albury 280                 280 272.2         267.2       1.9%

Cholsey 1,869              1826 1,649.0   1,604.7   2.8% Toot Baldon 59                   59 73.4           71.3         2.9%

Clifton Hampden 255                 254 288.8      286.2      0.9% Towersey 185                 183 193.5         189.5       2.1%

Crowell 47                  47 58.1        58.2        -0.2% Wallingford 3,845              3786 3,137.5      3,094.1    1.4%

Crowmarsh 774                 730 759.2      706.6      7.4% Warborough 433                 441 485.8         502.7       -3.4%

Cuddesdon & Denton 205                 204 180.5      175.0      3.1% Waterperry with Thomley 83                   83 97.2           94.8         2.5%

Culham 175                 175 181.7      185.8      -2.2% Waterstock 44                   40 51.3           46.9         9.4%

Cuxham with Easington 60                  60 63.0        61.6        2.3% Watlington 1,242              1238 1,177.9      1,177.7    0.0%

Didcot 13,394            12959 10,499.4 10,115.8 3.8% West Hagbourne 120                 115 130.4         122.9       6.1%

Dorchester 482                 480 551.6      554.1      -0.5% Wheatfield 11                   11 14.9           14.3         4.2%

Drayton St Leonard 117                 118 132.1      134.6      -1.9% Wheatley 1,938              1933 1,784.1      1,784.9    0.0%

East Hagbourne 503                 498 509.9      511.2      -0.3% Whitchurch on Thames 337                 338 411.4         407.2       1.0%

Elsfield 47                  48 54.1        56.0        -3.4% Woodcote 1,057              1055 1,056.9      1,049.8    0.7%

Ewelme 427                 427 377.3      374.8      0.7% Woodeaton 29                   29 37.3           38.0         -1.8%

Eye & Dunsden 156                 149 192.6      188.2      2.3%

Forest Hill with Shotover 418                 417 376.2      374.7      0.4% TOTAL 63,940            62,857            60,343.7     59,171.2  2.0%

Garsington 780                 778 698.2      697.9      0.0% (% Change on year) 1.7% 2.0%

Goring 1,568              1556 1,756.1   1,736.8   1.1%

Goring Heath 502                 503 596.9      602.4      -0.9%

Great Haseley 252                 249 267.5      262.7      1.8%

Great Milton 347                 341 319.9      308.8      3.6%

Harpsden 160                 159 221.1      224.0      -1.3%

Henley on Thames 6,084              6019 5,999.2   5,909.6   1.5%

Highmoor 140                 139 172.7      171.4      0.8%

Holton 164                 163 191.7      192.0      -0.2%

Horspath 622                 621 628.1      624.8      0.5%

Ipsden 156                 157 166.0      169.4      -2.0%

Kidmore End 535                 535 693.2      691.6      0.2%

Lewknor 305                 294 325.8      310.5      4.9%

Little Milton 206                 206 213.7      214.0      -0.1%

Little Wittenham 28                  28 35.3        33.9        4.1%

Long Wittenham 363                 362 347.3      344.8      0.7%

Mapledurham 130                 130 128.6      132.3      -2.8%

Marsh Baldon 118                 118 126.5      128.3      -1.4%

Moulsford 218                 218 255.4      258.6      -1.2%

Nettlebed 345                 342 367.7      357.3      2.9%

Newington 44                  44 56.8        56.3        0.9%

North Moreton 159                 160 191.2      194.4      -1.6%

Nuffield 225                 221 243.8      239.4      1.8%

Nuneham Courtenay 103                 103 105.7      106.8      -1.0%

Pishill with Stonor 144                 145 187.6      193.8      -3.2%

Pyrton 92                  92 117.8      115.7      1.8%

Rotherfield Greys 172                 158 232.4      206.9      12.3%

Rotherfield Peppard 699                 699 944.9      945.3      0.0%

PARISH COUNCIL TAX BASES - 2022-2023

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Trevor Gaffney 

Telephone 01235 422748 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422748 

E-mail: Trevor.gaffney@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Leigh Rawlings 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: Leigh.Rawlings@southoxon.gov.uk  

To: CABINET on 2 December 2021 

Date: COUNCIL on 9 December 2021 

 

 

War and War Widow(er)s Pension 

Disregard top up in Housing Benefit  

Recommendations 

That the Cabinet is asked to recommend the Council to re-affirm its decision to approve 
the disregard of War Pensions and War Widow(er)’s pensions  

(a) in full as income above the statutory £10.00 per week disregard in the calculation of 
Housing Benefit entitlement and  

(b) in full as income in relation to the means tested assessment of Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme discount.   

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To seek approval for the continuing disregard of War Pensions and War Widow(er)’s 
Pension in calculating Housing Benefit entitlement. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. This resolution will improve the economic wellbeing of those on lower incomes and, will 
help prevent homelessness and help meet local needs. The recipients of the 
disregarded benefits will have more financial help in paying their rent. 

Page 64

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Trevor.gaffney@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Leigh.Rawlings@southoxon.gov.uk


Background 

3. Before the introduction of the Social Security Administration Act 1992, there was a 
statutory £10.00 per week disregard on War Disability and War Widows pensions in 
means tested social security benefits including Housing Benefit. Above the £10.00 per 
week disregard, the pensions were counted as income, reducing the amount of benefit 
received.  

4. Section 134(8) of the Social Security Administration Act 1992 allowed councils to 
disregard up to 100% of war pensions above the £10.00 per week disregard. This had 
to be agreed by the full council. The cost of this disregard is borne by the council. 
South Oxfordshire District Council agreed to disregard war pensions in full above the 
weekly disregard at some point in the 1990s. 

5. From April 2004, the Government agreed to subsidise 75% of the discretionary 
disregard councils made if the amount did not exceed 0.2% of the total Housing Benefit 
subsidy received. This means that the council now only pays for 25% of the 
discretionary disregard. 

6. From April 2005, the War Pension and War Widow(er)s Pension schemes were closed 
to applicants who were injured or became a widow(er) after this date and replaced by 
the Armed Forces Compensation Scheme. Payments from the Armed Forces 
Compensation Scheme were given a full statutory disregard in means tested benefits, 
including Housing Benefit. 

7. The £10.00 disregard also applied to Council Tax Benefit, but when this was replaced 
by local Council Tax Reduction schemes in 2013, South Oxfordshire District Council 
fully disregarded War Pensions and War Widow(er)s Pensions. 

8. Last year, a number of councils were asked to provide evidence that they had passed 
resolutions disregarding War Pensions and War Widow(er) Pensions by external 
auditors. Many councils no longer have the original documentation confirming the 
disregard and the auditors have agreed to accept the historic position but insist that 
councils re-affirm their agreement to the disregard going forward.  

9. Although South Oxfordshire District Council was not asked to provide the 
documentation showing they had passed resolutions disregarding War Pensions and 
War Widow(er)’s Pensions in their last audit, a search was made for the original 
resolutions, nonetheless. The original resolutions could not be found, the paperwork 
most likely being destroyed in the fire at Crowmarsh.  

10. This report is to ask the councils to re-affirm the discretionary disregards for War 
Pensions and War Widow(er)’s Pensions in order to safeguard the finances of war 
pensioners and war widow(er)s. 

Options 

11. The options are to do nothing, or to remove some or all of the discretionary disregard 
for War Pensions and War Widow(er)’s Pensions. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

12. None 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



Financial Implications 

13. As before, there remains a financial cost to the council, as it will bear 25% of the costs 
of the discretionary disregards. The headline figures, the amount funded by the 
Department for Work and Pensions and the amount funded by the council are given 
below for 2020-21: 

 

Total Discretionary 
Disregard 

Disregard Funded by the 
DWP 

Disregard funded by the 
council 

£14,369 £10,777 £3,592 

 
14. There will not be any extra expense to the council, as the expenditure is already being 

accounted for in planned expenditure. The amounts in relation to the council is low, but 
for the individuals concerned make a great difference. 

15. There will be some fluctuations over time, but the changes are likely to be minor. The 
War Pension and War Widow(er)’s schemes closed in 2005 and although it is still 
possible for people to apply to this scheme if their injuries arose before 2005, the 
numbers are likely to be extremely low. The number of people on the scheme will 
continue to decrease over time as it is a closed scheme.     

Legal Implications 

16. None 

Risks 

17. The risk of not re-affirming the disregard, either now or if asked to do so in an audit, is 
that war pensioners and war widow(er)s will lose the discretionary disregard. This may 
mean most, if not all, either having to pay some rent for the first time or having to pay 
more rent. Other than the financial impact, this is also likely to present a reputational 
risk to the council.  

18. South Oxfordshire District Council signed the Armed Forces Covenant on 25 June 
2018. Continuing to disregard War Pensions and War Widow(er)’s Pensions will 
demonstrate continuing commitment to the covenant.  

Other implications 

19. None 

Conclusion 

20. That the cabinet recommends full council to re-affirm the discretionary disregard of 
War Pensions and War Widow(er) Pensions on Housing Benefit to ensure those in 
receipt of these benefits are not adversely affected financially.  

 
 

Background Papers 

 None 

Page 66

Agenda Item 10



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Corporate Services 

Author: Cheryl Reeves 

Telephone: 07917 088333 

Textphone: 18001 07917 088333 

E-mail: cheryl.reeves@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Maggie Filipova-Rivers 

Tel: 07850 141623 

E-mail: Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2021 

 

 

Distributing the SO Charitable Lottery’s 

Central Fund 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet agrees to: 

a. Distribute the income the council receives in its central fund from the SO Charitable 
Lottery Scheme to the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations 
registered as good causes in the Lottery. 
 

b. To do this proportionate to the number of tickets sold by each organisation and to 
organisations selling a 20 tickets a week (as a minimum threshold). 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To agree the approach for distributing the income to the central fund from ticket sales, 
in line with the commitment the council has made for it ‘To be spent on providing 
vital support to a wide range of local organisations and community initiatives 
which have a beneficial impact on the local community’.   

 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The council’s SO lottery supports the Corporate Plan priority to enhance community 
wellbeing by raising unrestricted income for VCS organisations that providing valuable 
services to those in need.   

Page 67

Agenda Item 11

mailto:cheryl.reeves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk


Background 

3. SO Charitable Lottery was launched to the public on 26 March 2018. Participants can 
choose to support a designated charity/group or donate to the central community fund, 
which is administered by the council.  We have since reviewed the scheme and 
considered different options for allocating the central funding that has been 
accumulating since the scheme’s launch. 
 

4. In March 2020 Cabinet considered this review and agreed to: 
a. use the central funds, to establish a new award scheme, with a different theme 

each year and one organisation benefiting: and 
b. cover the costs for holding an annual Voluntary and Community Sector Conference 

through the general income received. 
 

5. The costs of ongoing licensing and marketing of the scheme capped at £2000 per 
annum are already deducted from the income received, in line with the decision taken 
for the scheme’s launch. 

 
6. The proposed grant award scheme was to be managed through our existing grant 

system, with a competitive process open to all VCS organisations in South Oxfordshire. 
The intention was to ask residents to vote for their favourite project from a shortlist 
approved by the relevant Cabinet member.  
 

7. However, since this decision, COVID has hit our communities and the organisations 
supporting them hard and there is now an urgent need within the VCS for unrestricted 
income to support their recovery from the pandemic. Officers are therefore proposing 
an alternative approach to allocating the central fund, which is to proportionately 
distribute it amongst the registered good causes. The previous decision to fund an 
annual VCS conference (virtual or face-to-face) from the central income, remains 
unchanged. 

 
8. The funding would be split according to the number of tickets each good cause has in 

the weekly draw. For example, the good cause selling the most tickets (currently 41 
tickets per week) would get a 6.33 per cent share.  

9. This alternative approach has the clear benefit of incentivising good causes to sell 
more tickets, which will subsequently generate more income for themselves and the 
central fund.  It will also mean many more causes benefitting from the funding.  
  

10. The council, rather than our lottery provider, Gatherwell would be responsible for 
distributing the funding as the money is paid to us monthly. Payments would be raised 
through the exchequer team, which would have small resource implications but 
significantly less than setting up and administering a new grants scheme that would 
only benefit a single organisation. 

11. We would distribute the central funds, after the agreed deductions, at the end of each 
financial year. This will therefore be based on ticket sales, as at the 31 March.  

13. There is currently £18,750 in the central fund after the agreed deductions have been 
removed.  This has built up over the years since the lottery started, and as it has 
continued to grow.  We intend to distribute a minimum of £15,000 of this money this 
financial year, and to leave a small balance in the central pot to build upon for the next 
financial year.  This is purely an operational decision as it is important to market and 

Page 68

Agenda Item 11



manage the lottery operation sustainably.  The amount will be kept under review to 
account for income generated between now and distribution.   

Options 

14. There are two options for distributing the funds: 
a. Giving all of the registered good causes a share of the central fund based on the 

number of tickets they have sold; 
b. Giving good causes who have sold 20 or more tickets per week a share of the 

central fund. 
 

A. Distributing to all good causes (Not Recommended) 

15. This option would ensure every good cause that is registered with the scheme receives 
some funding, but it wouldn’t incentivise them to sell more tickets and will also mean 
the funds are spread thinly.  For example, if we generate approximately £10,000 a year 
excluding our overheads, this will result in 90% of organisations receiving less than 
£300.  

16. Spreading the funds too thinly will have little to no impact on the good causes’ finances 
and processing lots of small payments will also be more time consuming for officers.  

B. Good causes who sell 20 tickets or more (Recommended) 

17. Twenty tickets a week is the amount Gatherwell encourage good causes to sell in the 
first four weeks of joining the scheme, when they are signing up to join. This approach 
has the clear benefit of incentivising good causes to sell tickets, which will 
subsequently generate more income for themselves and the central fund. 
 

18. It will also mitigate against the risk of the funds being spread too thinly for organisations 
and residents they are supporting to really benefit from the additional income they 
could receive.  

 
19. Based on current good causes seven1 out of the 70 organisations would receive a 

share of between £1,038-£1,934, from a £10,000 pot (£1,557-£2,901 from a £15,000 
pot), but this should be achievable for a further eight, which are currently selling 
between 16-19 a week, and would be a way for them to incentivise sales of tickets. 

 
20. This approach has the added benefit, of requiring less officer resource, which could be 

redirected to increasing the number of causes and players supporting the lottery and 
developing other initiatives to support community organisations in the district.  

 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. The SO Charitable Lottery is open to all not-for-profit community action groups and 
organisations, providing them with an opportunity to raise unrestricted income that they 
could use to fund climate initiatives/measures.  

 

                                            
1 based on a report run on 27 May 2021. We are unable to run the reports as specific points in time. 
Therefore going forward we will run on the 31 March each year. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



Financial Implications 

22. The central fund up to 31 March 2021 had £22,659 and £3,335 from reclaimed VAT. 
The reclaimed VAT can be used on recruitment initiatives and marketing, which is what 
Gatherwell recommend but can also be distributed to good causes.  The £25,944 is 
currently held in the council’s reserves and ringfenced for the lottery scheme in line 
with the councils’ commitment to residents purchasing a ticket. 

23. Just over £7,000 of this income needs deducting to cover the annual licences and 
marketing costs. Due to COVID, we have not been able to hold a VCS conference 
since the decision was taken to cover these costs from the central fund.  This leaves 
£18,750 available to distribute to good causes. 

24. There are no additional financial implications from this alternative approach. The costs 
associated with making the payments can be met from within existing staff resources, 
which will vary depending on the level of distribution. As set out, the lottery pays for 
itself, with income from ticket sales paying for the gambling licences, related fees and 
marketing. It would also cover the costs of future VCS conferences 

23. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2021 showed that the council is due to receive £4.3 million less in revenue funding than 
it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  
 

24. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 
remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the announcement 
of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term financial 
consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase 
further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate 
this funding gap in future years. 

 

Legal Implications 

25. Distribution of the central fund to existing beneficiary organisations will carry fewer 
legal implications than setting up a new grant award scheme. Good causes have 
already gone through an eligibility process to confirm their not-for-profit status and have 
agreed to the terms and conditions of joining the lottery.  

26. The distribution of funds will be proportionate with the number of tickets good causes 
have in the weekly draw. The additional funds to be distributed from the central fund 
will be unconditional - beneficiary organisations would be able to use the funding 
however they choose, providing it is in line with the aims and objectives set out in their 
constitution.  

27. As a society lottery licensee, the council is obliged to follow the Gambling 
Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice.  Under the social 
responsibility Code Provision 4.3.3, further clarified in their guidance on the information 
that we are required to give to lottery players regarding proceeds and prizes, it states: 

a. Lottery licensees may use proceeds to fund grants to beneficiaries who meet 
the aims and objectives of their societies. Where this is the case, information 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/information-to-lottery-players-proceeds-and-prizes
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/information-to-lottery-players-proceeds-and-prizes


should be available to consumers about how the allocation of grants is 
determined, including examples of those receiving them. 

28. The council must therefore ensure it offers a clear description of how the central fund is 
to be distributed and publicise this on the main southoxon.gov.uk/lottery webpage and 
via https://www.socharitable.co.uk./ 

Risks 

29. There is a limited risk the proposed approach doesn’t incentivise good causes to sell 
more tickets if the minimum requirement to sell 20 tickets proves to challenging, 
particularly for smaller causes with more limited resources and fewer supporters. If so, 
we could review the minimum threshold in the future. 

30. We have not consulted the good causes on their preferred approach. However, we 
have considered the options carefully to achieve the greatest impact on our 
communities. There is a limited risk that good causes would prefer the option of 
proportionately distributing the central fund amongst all of them, however they currently 
don’t receive any of the central fund and the original proposal would have only 
benefitted a single VCS that didn’t have to be registered as a good cause. 

Other implications 

31. In line with the public sector equality duties, we have considered the implications of 
proportionately distributing the funds on those protected by the Equality Act 2010. 
Officers are of the view that no groups will be disadvantaged by this decision. All good 
causes who sign up to the scheme, must demonstrate that there are no undue 
restrictions on their membership.  It’s also worth noting that most organisations that are 
currently registered are providing services to help to advance equality of opportunity 
and/or meet the needs of their communities. Additional funding will enhance the 
support the good causes can provide. 

Conclusion 

32. Prior to the pandemic, Cabinet agreed to establish a grant scheme with the income 
generated through the lottery’s central community fund pot.  The intention was for the 
grant scheme to have a different priority theme each year, with one organisation 
benefitting. 

33. COVID has highlighted an immediate need within the VCS for unrestricted income to 
support their recovery. We can help meet this need through a proportionate and fair 
distribution of the central fund amongst the good causes who are signed up to the 
lottery, resulting in many beneficiaries.   

34. Setting a minimum requirement of 20 ticket sales a week to receive a proportion of the 
central fund each year will incentivise good causes to sell more tickets, which will 
ultimately raise more unrestricted income for themselves and the other causes. This 
will ensure the funding is directed quickly to benefit the communities it is intended to 
support.   

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11

https://www.socharitable.co.uk./


35. This approach has the added benefit, of requiring less officer resource, which could be 
redirected to increasing the number of causes and players supporting the lottery and 
developing other initiatives to support community organisations in the district.  

 

Background Papers 

 Previous Cabinet report (5 March 2020) agreeing to establish a standalone grants 
scheme with the income to the SO Charitable, central fund  
 

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=2522 

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 11

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=2522


Cabinet Report                          

 
Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Rona Knott 

Telephone: 07717 271934 

E-mail: rona.knott@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Anne Marie Simpson 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: Anne-Marie.Simpson@southandvale.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2021 

 

 

Joint Statement of Community 

Involvement 

Recommendations 

(a) To adopt the Statement of Community Involvement subject to the amendments set out 
in this report and in appendix 1 

(b) To delegate to the Head of Policy and Programmes in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Planning to make the changes set out in this report and in appendix 1 and 
any other minor changes, typographical corrections or non-material amendments to the 
SCI prior to publication. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To report to Cabinet the key issues raised following the six-week public consultation 
and the changes proposed to the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
document. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The publication of the SCI supports the delivery of the council’s strategic objectives set 
out in the current Corporate Plan by supporting openness and accountability. 

Background 

3. The council is required, as local planning authority, to prepare a Statement of 
Community Involvement (Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  

Page 73

Agenda Item 12

mailto:rona.knott@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Anne-Marie.Simpson@southandvale.gov.uk


4. Planning Practise Guidance states: “Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning authorities to produce a Statement of 
Community Involvement, which should explain how they will engage local communities 
and other interested parties in producing their Local Plan and determining planning 
applications. The Statement of Community Involvement should be published on the 
local planning authority’s website”. 

5. South Oxfordshire’s SCI was adopted in June 2017. SCI’s must be reviewed every five 
years, so South Oxfordshire’s SCI is due to be reviewed. Vale’s current SCI was 
adopted in 2020. 

6. A joint SCI is being prepared to cover both districts to reflect the fact that South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse have committed to preparing a joint local plan. 

Summary of the Statement of Community  

7. The joint SCI follows a similar format to the existing SCI for South. The joint SCI sets 
out how both councils will engage with the community on planning policy preparation, 
including neighbourhood planning, and on planning applications. It also covers 
planning appeals and enforcement.  

8. The draft SCI is set out in three sections: 

      1) Introduction – our visions and values for community involvement.  
 

2) Planning policy – how we engage when preparing planning policy documents, 
including neighbourhood planning, and the support we offer to neighbourhood planning 
groups. This section includes information about the temporary measures in place due 
to COVID-19 and how we will interact with our communities going forward. 

 
3) Development Management – how we consult on planning applications, including 
information on the pre-application advice service we offer, planning appeals and 
planning enforcement.   

 
9. Information is presented in a way that is clear and transparent for the wider audience 

and includes a series of flowcharts and diagrams to help illustrate the council’s 
practices and procedures for consulting on new planning policy documents and 
planning applications. 

10. The SCI also contains links to all the relevant pages on our websites and other external 
sites so the reader can easily find out more information if they wish. 

Outcome of public consultation 

11. There is no requirement to consult on the SCI, however, it is good practice to do so. A 
six-week public consultation on the draft SCI ran from 8 September – 20 October 2021. 
109 complete responses were received. This included responses from statutory 
consultees, parish council’s and organisations, with the highest number of responses 
submitted by members of the public (71%). 

12. The consultation survey asked six questions about the SCI. For the first four questions, 
respondents could choose their level of agreement to a statement, ranging from 
strongly agree to strongly disagree. There was also the opportunity to leave a free text 

Page 74

Agenda Item 12



response for each question. The first three questions related to the three sections of 
the SCI: Introduction, Planning Policy, and Development Management, and asked 
whether respondents found that the information was presented in a simple and easy to 
understand way. For these three questions the majority of respondents stated that they 
either strongly agreed or agreed that the information was presented in a simple and 
easy to understand way – the breakdown of responses is presented below: 

Q1: Section 1 Introduction - Overall did you find that the information in this section 
was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 
 
13.  73% strongly agreed or agreed. Only 8% of respondents either disagreed or strongly 

disagreed. 

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

18.39% 16 

2 Agree   
 

55.17% 48 

3 Neutral   
 

17.24% 15 

4 Disagree   
 

4.60% 4 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

3.45% 3 

6 I don't have a view   
 

1.15% 1 

 
Q2: Section 2 Planning Policy - Overall did you find that the information in this 
section was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 
 
14.  60% strongly agreed or agreed. 13% disagreed or strongly disagreed. 

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

16.28% 14 

2 Agree   
 

44.19% 38 

3 Neutral   
 

26.74% 23 

4 Disagree   
 

8.14% 7 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

4.65% 4 

6 I don't have a view  0.00% 0 

 
Q3: Section 3 Development Management - Overall did you find that the information 
in this section was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 
 
15.  62% strongly agreed or agreed. 13% disagreed or strongly disagreed. 

 
 

Page 75

Agenda Item 12



Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

12.94% 11 

2 Agree   
 

49.41% 42 

3 Neutral   
 

23.53% 20 

4 Disagree   
 

8.24% 7 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

4.71% 4 

6 I don't have a view   
 

1.18% 1 

 
16. Question 4 asked respondents whether they agree that the processes set out in the 

SCI will enable communities to be informed and have timely and meaningful 
opportunities to have a say on any planning proposals. There was more of a mixed 
response to this question, the largest percentage of respondents selected Neutral. 
Slightly more respondents answered that they agree or strongly agree (37%) than 
disagree or strongly disagree (31%), but it was a close outcome.   

Answer Choices 
Response 
Percent 

Response 
Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

11.90% 10 

2 Agree   
 

25.00% 21 

3 Neutral   
 

30.95% 26 

4 Disagree   
 

21.43% 18 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

9.52% 8 

6 I don’t have a view   
 

1.19% 1 

 
17. Question 5 asked whether respondents had any comments on the general format of 

the SCI (52 responses). Question 6 provided the opportunity for respondents to leave 
any other comments (59 responses). These questions were free text questions. All of 
the comments have been read and the points that were raised most frequently are 
listed below: 

 The document is clear, easy to understand and well presented 

 The document contains good use of diagrams 

 The SCI is too long / too detailed / contains too much information 

 A sense that consultation is a tick box exercise and people’s view are not taken into 
account 

 Developers / housebuilders / colleges / central government have too much control 
over where development happens  

 More dialogue is needed to make consultation meaningful, including receiving 
feedback on consultations 

 There should be more engagement at pre-application stage 

 Greater emphasis needed on complying with neighbourhood plan policies  

 Some planning processes not subject to consultation and transparent – e.g. 
discharge of conditions  

Page 76

Agenda Item 12



 The hierarchy of planning documents is not clear  
 
18. A summary of all the consultation responses received, along with an officer response 

and proposed amendments, can be found at Appendix 1. 

19. The draft SCI document was taken to Scrutiny Committee on 16 November 2021. 
Scrutiny Committee made a number of comments to help refine the SCI document.  
These included: 

 an easy read format should be available 

 must use Plain English and reduction of jargon or technical language (e.g. 
‘statutory’) 

 remove or move diagrams to an appendix  

 change tone of language from ‘feel involved’ to ‘be involved’ 

 communicate to respondents how their comments have been considered by making 
them aware of consultation statements. 

Proposed amendments to the SCI 

20. A comment that come up frequently in response to the SCI was that it was too long. 
The length of the SCI is in part down to the style and formatting of the document, which 
has been designed to make the document more appealing to look at and easy to read. 
The document also contains several flowcharts and other graphics that take up space. 
For accessibility reasons it is important that the text is supplemented by diagrams, 
rather than being replaced by diagrams. The SCI includes additional information on 
neighbourhood planning, and the support we offer to groups, and a section on looking 
ahead, which were not part of the existing SCI’s.  

21. To address the comment of the SCI being too long we propose to do a final check 
though and make sure there is no unnecessary repetition of information. Officers will 
also check for use of Plain English and jargon, whilst recognising that there are times 
when it is difficult to avoid using technical terms. All technical terms are covered in a 
glossary. 

22. One option considered was to add an executive summary, but it would be difficult to 
summarise all the information in the SCI in a summary without it becoming lengthy 
itself. Producing a short summary would run the risk of missing out information.   

23. Another proposed amendment relates to the removal of Diagram 6: Relationship of 
development plan documents and wider national policies and frameworks (p19). This 
diagram was included to illustrate the different types of planning documents (e.g. 
NPPF, Local Plan, Arc Framework) and their relationship to each other. However, on 
reflection and as a result of consultation feedback, officers are of the view that this 
information is not best placed or required in the SCI. It would be better placed in a 
planning policy document such as the joint local plan. Several respondents stated that 
the diagram was confusing as it mentions documents / plans that are not covered in the 
SCI. Some respondents felt that the hierarchy of plans was not clear. The purpose of 
the SCI is to set out how they will engage local communities and other interested 
parties in producing their Local Plan and determining planning applications (PPG) – it is 

Page 77

Agenda Item 12



not intended to explain the planning process or the planning system, this information 
can be found elsewhere. As such officers suggest removing this diagram and inserting 
some short text to signpost readers to external websites (e.g. the planning portal) 
should they wish to find out more. Instead of diagram 6 a much simpler diagram 
showing the Development Plan could be inserted in the relevant section, this is the 
approach taken in the current Vale SCI.  

24. Another comment that was made by several respondents was related to feedback after 
consultations, and a sense that comments are not taken into account. To address this 
officers are looking in to how we better communicate the availability of consultation 
statements. For example, by sending respondents an email with a link to the 
consultation statement once is has been published.   

25. Some respondents commented that whilst forums were mentioned in the text as a 
possible way of consulting, this was not included in the table that summarises methods 
of engagement. It is suggested this is added and could be in the form of virtual or face 
to face forums.  

26. Other suggested amendments to the SCI relate to corrections, typos, ensuring all links 
work correctly and other mon-material changes.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

27. The SCI states that the councils are using online and social media more than ever and 
trying to reduce printing as part of our commitment to tackle the Climate Emergency. It 
provides the contact details if people wish to change their contact preference from post 
to email. The SCI commits to engaging digitally (e.g. virtual events) and highlights that 
this reduces the need for people to travel, and the knock-on impact this has on carbon 
emissions.  

Financial Implications 

28. There will be limited costs associated with any printing or distribution of the SCI 
document, however we will limit this to a small number of hard copies for those who 
wish to make an appointment to view the document at the offices.  

Legal Implications 

29. The council is legally required, under section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, to produce an SCI to set out how we will engage with our 
communities who have an interest in matters relating to development in their area. 

Risks 

30. The councils would be at risk if they did not have an up-to-date SCI in place: it is a 
legal requirement as per the implications listed above. Vale’s SCI was adopted in 2020. 
South’s SCI was adopted in 2017 and therefore needs updating.    

Other implications 

31. It is anticipated that the final document, informed by all representations made, will be 
adopted by Cabinet in both Districts in December 2021. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 12



Conclusion 

32. The councils are required, as local planning authorities, to prepare a Statement of 
Community Involvement (Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  

33. A joint SCI is being prepared to cover both districts to reflect the fact that South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse have committed to preparing a joint local plan. 

34. As a result of consultation responses, some amendments are suggested to the final 
document, as detailed above and in appendix 1. These changes will provide further 
clarity to the community, developers, development management team, town and 
parishes and councillors who may wish to be involved in the planning process.    

35. Cabinet is asked to approve the SCI for adoption, subject to the changes set out in this 
report and in appendix 1.  

 

Background Papers 

 Appendix 1 – Summary of consultation responses  

 Appendix 2 – Draft joint Statement of Community Involvement – September 2021 

Page 79

Agenda Item 12



Appendix 1 

Summary table of comments – Joint SCI 

1. Section 1 of the draft SCI provides an introduction to the Statement of Community Involvement, and information on the councils' 

overall approach to community engagement and involvement in the planning process. Q1. Overall did you find that the information in 

this section was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174155654 Seems colleges have all the power around Oxford, if 
they want something built it gets done regardless. 

This SCI sets out the statutory process for 
assessing planning applications and preparing plan 
making documents, which are then followed by the 
councils. Comments submitted about particular 
developments are carefully considered as part of 
the assessment process.  

 

ID: 174167724 Wording was clear and direct. Flow diagrams provided 
a concise summary. 

Noted  

ID: 174167953 Fine words but most feel their voices are heard but 
ignored unless they coincide with the council's plans. 

The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning policy documents and 
planning applications and take these into account 
alongside national and local policies when making 
decisions. 

 

ID: 174160763 Reads like a white paper. Lots of technical terms and 
formal language. Could be more diagrams and 
examples. Doesn't read as though involvement or 
community are welcome. 

The SCI has been written in a way that aims to 
explain the consultation process in an easy to 
understand way, without over simplifying the 
process. A glossary is included to explain the 
technical terms. It uses several flow charts and 
diagrams to explain the process and supplement 
the text. We fully encourage community 
involvement in the planning process.  

 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174201658 Information was fine - however, I am used to reading 
and assimilating content and objectives of large 
documents. 

Noted  

ID: 174217905 Flowcharts in all sections very helpful. Noted  

ID: 174229530 No comment. Noted  

ID: 174357995 More about ticking boxes. Does not explain what 
consultation methods I can expect. 

The methods for consultation on planning policy 
documents is set out on p22 and for planning 
applications on p28 of the SCI.   

 

ID: 174420959 Set out legislative position and made vague positive 
comments without saying anything useful. 

Noted  

ID: 174573133 No one listens to the community view. House builders 
win out. 

The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning policy documents and 
planning applications and take these into account 
alongside national and local policies when making 
decisions. 

 

ID: 174618685 It does the job. Noted  

ID: 174852486 Too long Noted. The document contains several flow charts 
and diagrams which do make it longer. It contains 
information that we feel people will find helpful in 
understanding who how and when we consult.  

 

ID: 175093121 Too much information for someone who hasn’t been 
involved in planning. 

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 

 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful.  

ID: 175102902 Developers control where development goes. Local 
communities are distanced.   
 
Where does the SCI demonstrate the will/ power to 
change the approach to planning to address climate 
change?  
How is engagement  demonstrated?  
The methods of engagement are proportionate and 
meaningful to whom? 

This SCI sets out the statutory process for 
assessing planning applications and preparing plan 
making documents, which are then followed by the 
councils. The councils carefully consider all 
comments submitted on planning policy documents 
and planning applications and take these into 
account alongside national and local policies when 
making decisions. 
 
Climate change is an important consideration when 
developing planning policy, and will be addressed 
through the joint local plan.  
 
A consultation statement is prepared after formal 
consultations that sets out how engagement was 
undertaken, what the responses were and how the 
responses have been considered.  

 

ID: 175210775 Language not as simple as suggested e.g., 
infrastructure can mean different things. If simple 
English no word should be more than two syllables. 
 
Central Government sets the scene of what you can 
do and VWHDC follows the rules. Not made very clear 
leaving the reader believing their voice counts, which 
I do not believe is correct. 

Noted. We will add infrastructure to the glossary. 
Under the CIL section the SCI gives examples of 
infrastructure eg transport schemes, leisure 
facilities etc to help explain what it means. 
 
The councils make decisions in line with national 
and local policy.  
 

Add 
Infrastructure 
to glossary 

ID: 175314624 42 pages too in depth but text and diagrams were 
clear. 

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 

 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. 

ID: 175228434 No indication of the process when 'consultation' 
shows that the proposal is not in agreement with the 
community's desires. 

The SCI sets out consultation processes that we 
carry out in line with Regulations.  The councils 
have to consider a number of factors in progressing 
with policy documents and determining 
applications. Consultation is a one of the key 
factors: we read all responses to consultations and 
give them careful consideration.  

 

ID: 175340758 Welcome the opportunity to comment on the draft 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) from the 
perspective of citizens with disabilities. 

Noted  

ID: 175722188 Visually clear and jargon free. Noted  

ID: 175817477 Page 3, Paragraph 1.6 
 “TThe Statement of Community Involvement will be 
adopted by both councils…” (typo) 

Noted  Correct typo 
on page 3. 

ID: 176389843 Council is unable to deliver on the aims set out in the 
SCI because of government pressure for 
development. 

Government has set out a clear intention within their 
policies, including the National Planning Policy 
Framework to ‘significantly boost the supply of 
homes’. This is taken forward by the Councils at the 
local level through our adopted plans. 
 

 

ID: 176530958 Simple and straightforward but rather long - only for 
those dedicated enough to want to contribute.  

Noted.   

ID: 176744593 Too long, needs to be more reader friendly. 
 
Ideals are plausible but track record on customer 

The SCI is a statutory document which sets out how 
we engage with local communities (local residents, 
businesses, organisations and statutory 
consultees). We have, as concisely as possible, 

 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

engagement has been poor. Needs to be a change in 
culture if the LA is to get near its objectives. 

provided all the information needed and have used 
diagrams and other graphical design to make this 
user-friendly. 

ID: 176747450 Long winded and unspecific on how you engage with 
members of the public e.g. timescales and where, if 
people were looking for information, they could go on 
your website. Was helpful to say where people could 
sign up to receive emails. 

The methods for consultation on planning policy 
documents is set out on p22 and for planning 
applications on p28 of the SCI.  The SCI does 
include links to the councils’ websites, we will 
review if there are other places where links can 
usefully be inserted.  

Check all 
opportunities 
for linking to 
the councils’ 
websites are 
included 

ID: 176864529  
What do you mean by meaningful engagement and 
what shape might the involvement take?  
 
What redress do individuals/organisations have if they 
feel the council have not lived up to the statements in 
1.14? 

The methods for consultation on planning policy 
documents is set out on p22 and for planning 
applications on p28 of the SCI. 
The SCI sets out the different methods that can be 
used, depending on the type of document being 
prepared, or the type of application being consulted 
on. The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning policy documents and 
planning applications and take these into account 
alongside national and local policies when making 
decisions. 

Add contact 
details of 
councils’ 
complaints 
procedure 

ID: 176920974 Clear and easy to understand. Could include explicit 
‘measures of success’ allowing the council to 
demonstrate that it has met its vision. Could 
demonstrate that effective and fair engagement and 
involvement on the criteria (particularly sections 1.8, 
1.10, 1.11) had been met - building public trust in the 
planning process. 

There are no set targets for public engagement, 
however the councils are continually trying to 
improve its methods to reach more people. 

 

ID: 176916499 Unfortunate that many of the aims cannot be carried 
out in practice due to policy pressure for housing in 
Didcot. 

Government has set out a clear intention within their 
policies, including the National Planning Policy 
Framework to ‘significantly boost the supply of 

 

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

homes’. This is taken forward by the councils at the 
local level through our adopted plans.  

ID: 176942204 Add Sustainable to the vision. Sustainability is a key element of planning policy 
and will be covered in the joint local plan. The SCI 
relates to consultation and engagement. We 
explain how digital engagement has had benefits for 
carbon reduction.  

 

ID: 175704669 (Full comment provides extensive background 
and context to below summary) 
Approval of planning applications has not been 
consistent with local and national policy.  
 
It may be that where we live means that we cannot 
participate in any ‘Community Involvement’ activity. If 
so, we should have discussion, and formal statement 
from, the LPA to clarify.  
 
Nothing to indicate what residents can do when we 
can demonstrate that either 'consultation' or 'planning 
applications' are not dealt with fairly, equally or 
meaningfully. Views are ignored.  
Apart from typos, some paragraphs raise questions of 
detail: 
 
1. Para 1.2 – what does ‘fully informed’ mean?  
 
2. Para 1.3 – how is ‘successfully’ defined?  
 
3. Para 1.6 – who decides what changes are 
necessary and which comments are not to be 
included?  

The SCI sets out the processes for consultation on 
planning policy documents and planning 
applications, which are followed by the councils. All 
comments are carefully considered alongside 
national and local policies.  
 
We provide various ways in which the public can get 
involved in consultations, including signing up for 
email alerts to receive notifications by email.   
 
The councils consider that the SCI appropriately 
covers how to access applications, how to respond 
to applications and the grounds for objections. The 
councils’ websites also provides further detail on 
this. If you have further questions, you may wish to 
contact our Customer Services Team by telephone 
(01235 422600) or via email - 
planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
We receive a high volume of correspondence and 
are unable to respond to individual comments that 
we receive during a particular consultation. The 
comments we receive regarding planning policy 
documents and on planning applications will be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Para 1.2 
change 
wording to 
active 
language eg 
‘be 
empowered’ 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk


Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

 
4. Para 1.9 – Suggest that the 3rd word is 
‘communities’ or 2nd line ‘they’ is changed to ‘you’. 
 
6. Para 1.14 We have seen application full of jargon 
to try to push through approval whilst giving as little 
useful information to the local community. How would 
this be countered by the LPA? 
 
7. Para 1.14 – penultimate bullet, it is not clear how 
this can be achieved. 

made publicly available online at the earliest 
opportunity, once the consultation has finished. 
 
The councils have to consider a number of factors 
in progressing with policy documents and 
determining applications. Consultation is a one of 
the key factors: the councils read all responses to 
consultations and gives them careful consideration. 
 
There are no set targets for public engagement, 
however the councils are continually trying to 
improve its methods to reach more people. 
 
Noted and agreed 
 
Planning application documents are uploaded on to 
the website. Please let us know if there are missing 
documents on a certain case. For planning 
applications it is not possible to respond to 
individual comments due to the large number of 
comments that we receive.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Change para 
1.9 to: We 
want 
communities 
to have the… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

 
 
 

ID: 177003178 The Consultation and Community Engagement team 
have reviewed the draft SCI and will send comments 
under separate cover. 

Noted  

ID: 177003949 Long winded and unspecific on how you engage with 
members of the public, e.g. timescales and where, if 
people were looking for information they could go on 
your website. Was helpful to say where people could 
sign up to receive emails. 

The methods for consultation on planning policy 
documents is set out on p22 and for planning 
applications on p28 of the SCI.  The SCI does 
include links to the councils websites, we will review 
if there are other places where links can usefully be 
inserted. 

 

ID: 177039688 Vision should include the word 'sustainable'. Sustainability is a key element of planning policy. 
The SCI relates to consultation and engagement. 
We explain how digital engagement has had 
benefits for carbon reduction. 

 

 

2. Section 2 of the draft SCI provides information on how you can get involved with and influence the councils as we prepare the 

Local Plan and other planning policy documents including Neighbourhood Plans. Q2. Overall did you find that the information in this 

section was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

ID: 174153472 Too long winded. Length will reduce the amount of 
feedback you receive and thus community input. 

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
flow charts to supplement the text to make this user-
friendly 

 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

ID: 174155654 Even if councils object they just go over your head. The councils make decisions in line with national 
and local policy. 

 

ID: 174159838 Clear but too much information for most people to 
read. Diagrams are useful.  
 
Language in places could be judged as directive: is 
the recent government planning legislation intended to 
‘streamline & modernise’ the planning system, or to 
allow development to pass through without question? 

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
flow charts to supplement the text to make this user-
friendly 
 
The Governments stated objective is to streamline 
and modernise the planning process. 

 

ID: 174161312 A great deal of information to absorb. Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 
short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. 

 

ID: 174167724 Clear wording and good summary flow charts. Noted  

ID: 174167953 Meaningless. Council has no intention of acting on 
input from the community unless it follows the 
Council’s plan. 

We consider a number of factors in progressing with 
policy documents and determining applications. 
Consultation is one of the key factors: we read all 
responses to consultations and give them careful 
consideration. 

 

ID: 174160763 The document is both trying to lay out the 
legislative/regulatory framework as in a government 
paper and trying to solicit involvement. Some 
statements are highly inaccessible.   
Can add links to the actual documents for those who 
want to go into detail, but this is about community 
involvement - need to make the key ideas clear and 
make us feel our views count. Try to understand what 

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 
short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. The 
text needs to strike a balance. The document must 
be clear in explaining what the councils are doing 

 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

it is like for people on the outside who feel 
disempowered and disillusioned with politics. 

and why.  There is a risk that the text can become 
oversimplified. 
 
Links are included in the document for readers 
wishing to find out more information.  

ID: 174182653 Key stage diagram does not indicate that notice will 
be taken of comments made. Extra stage needed after 
Reg 19 to indicate that comments will be considered 
and alterations made. This stage has been included 
for SPDs and other documents. Appreciate that 
diagram shows minimum requirements, but does not 
reflect comments made elsewhere in the document 
e.g., that you value community input.  
 
The diagram on how you will consult does not include 
exhibitions/meetings even though you indicate you 
may do this. 
 
Diagram 6 is difficult to understand and uninformative 
- particularly the relationships between the different 
plans and who will prepare them. 
 
 
 
For neighbourhood plans an extra stage needs to be 
included after Reg 14. 
 
 
 

Comments made at Regulation 19 stage are sent to 
the examiner, any changes made to the plan must 
be done through the examination process. The 
diagram shows the key stages and focuses on the 
statutory requirements for plan making. 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
Noted – this diagram is perhaps not necessary for 
the SCI and should be removed. This diagram 
would sit better in the joint local plan and could be 
included in the new joint Local plan.  
Noted – the text will be amended to reflect that 
changes may be made to the draft plan as a result 
of the comments received during consultation 
Noted – typo, should read ‘Documents…’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Add exhibition 
/ events to 
diagram p. 22 
Remove 
diagram 6 
 
 
 
Add text to 
p13 
 
 
 
Add ‘s’ to 
Document 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

The definition of Development Plan in the glossary is 
incorrect. It is not just a document listing plans, it is the 
policies and content in all the plan documents. 

ID: 174202530 Focus reads from a council perspective. E.g., Diagram 
1 has the second consultation in brackets - but that is 
an important part of the engagement process from the 
point of view of a person trying to engage with 
planning. 

Noted and amended 
 

Amend text  - 
Consultation 
on Publication 
version of Plan 
(minimum 6 
weeks)(p8) 

ID: 174229530 No comment. Noted  

ID: 174357995 More should be done on explaining how consultation 
will actually be done 

We have tried to provide enough information to 
keep people informed about we will consult on 
planning policy  and planning applications in a 
concise way so that the document is not too long 
and is easy to read. The methods for consultation 
on planning policy documents is set out on p22 and 
for planning applications on p28 of the SCI.   

 

ID: 174420959 Section 1 set out the legislative position and made 
general vague positive comments without saying 
anything useful 

Section 1 introduces the document. Further detail is 
found in sections 2 and 3.  

 

ID: 174573133 Develop on brownfield land and improve/redevelop 
old areas instead of digging up valuable fields. 

Development is dealt with via Planning 
Policy, rather than the SCI. The SCI deals with how 
the LPA will engage with the community.   

 

ID: 174618685 Flow charts were reasonably easy to follow but text is 
vague and unhelpful. 

Noted. The diagrams are intended to supplement 
the text. 

 

ID: 174852486 Couldn't it be summarised. 42 pages is too much. Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 

 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. 

ID: 174886382 Too detailed - likely hard for non-specialists to absorb.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Big weakness of present system is that it is reactive. 
Outside the limited constraints of a Neighbourhood 
Plan - system gives very little opportunity for 
communities to promote own visons for the future.  

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 
short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. 
 
Neighbourhood planning is strongly supported by 
the councils and groups are provided with support 
from a dedicated team.   

 

ID: 175102902 Section includes plenty of opportunities for 
consultation but how ‘top down’/‘bottom up’ is it? Too 
much bureaucracy in neighbourhood plan 
preparation. Not possible to impose policy at parish 
level that hasn’t been adopted by the Local Plan. 
Hands are tied behind our backs – local people might 
want to progress more quickly than those at local or 
national level.  
 
Who is involved in the ‘Pre-production stage’ of 
‘evidence gathering and early engagement’? 
 
Changes to planning systems demonstrate local 
community powerlessness. Perhaps engagement in 
the planning process should be measured, not a 
series of aspirations about technical communication. 

The SCI cannot set out new policy or make changes 
to national policy.  
 
 
 
The planning policy team are involved in the pre-
production stage and evidence gathering when 
preparing a local plan or SPD. For neighbourhood 
pans, the neighbourhood group is responsible for 
this, with support from the planning policy team.  
 
There are no set targets for public engagement, 
however we are continually trying to improve our 
methods to reach more people. 

 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

ID: 175210775 If under 50% of people make comments then VWHDC 
should consider whether they are getting sufficient 
feedback and what steps they need to take to achieve 
50% minimum to be truly representative. 

That would be contrary to national policy  

ID: 175228434 How will 'meaningful engagement' result in changes 
to/ cancellation of proposals? 
 
If, following 'consultation', the views of the local 
community are at odds with the 'planning process' 
how will the Council ensure that that the community's 
views prevail? 
 
What happens if at the end of the local plan 
development process the proposals are not 
acceptable to either the community and/or the 
Council?  
 
If neighbourhood plan is subject to referendum surely 
the local plan should be as well. 

The councils have to consider a number of factors 
in progressing with policy documents and 
determining applications. Consultation is one of the 
key factors: we read all responses to consultations 
and give them careful consideration. 
 
 
Local plans cannot be subject to local referendum, 
they go through an independent examination 
process before adoption by full Council.  

 

ID: 175340758 Most of what we say applies more widely to the council 
and preparing this response has encouraged us to 
take these issues up elsewhere. 

Noted  

ID: 175358522 Issue with the website not having live links. Have 
attempted to share links with residents to parts of the 
planning portal, but links don't work because of the 
way the data is stored. Makes it much harder to share 
info. 

Noted and will raise with the communications team.  

ID: 175795051 Too much information. Only include info that is 
relevant. 

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people 
are informed, and trying to keep the document 

 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

short. We have tried to get the balance right and do 
not want to omit information that may be useful. 

ID: 175817477 Page 14 - Preparing a Neighbourhood Plan diagram. 
The “Monitoring and Review” stage is not explained in 
the previous text. This should be given some 
explanation given that a lot of Neighbourhood Plans in 
the District will be reviewed in the next 5 years. 

This section should be removed to make consistent 
with others – all plans need monitoring and review 
– as set out in the monitoring section.  

Remove last 
box from 
diagram p14 

ID: 176389843 Focus on digital may have enabled some to 
participate but disenfranchised those without internet 
access. Currently no other way to address the 
Planning Committee even if in the same room as 
members. Hope that once temporary measures expire 
(2.43) paper copies will be available for larger 
applications. Impossible to read documents for 
developments of 100+ on-screen and get any context. 

Noted. Restrictions have meant we have had to 
change how some meetings are run.  
 
The office is currently not open to the public and an 
appointment must be made if anyone wishes to 
view hard copy documents.  
 
The council’s have declared climate emergencies 
and are taking measures to reduce our carbon 
footprint by reducing printing. 

 

ID: 176530958 More useful if you have previously seen a local plan - 
otherwise you are guessing. Very clear in terms of 
process. 

Noted  

ID: 176744593 The general public mistrust the planning system and 
the view is it doesn’t matter what we say they will do 
what they want. 
Planners are often too pally with planning 
professionals, consultants and builders and the views 
of the general public seem to be second best and 
unimportant. 

Officers maintain professional working relationships 
with all internal and external stakeholders. The 
councils are working within a planning framework 
set nationally.   

 

ID: 176747450 Long winded. Would be helpful to list all the planning 
policy documents and explain their hierarchy.  
Links to information re: generation to neighbourhood 
plan very useful. 

Noted. We will consider adding links to external 
websites to explain the hierarchy of documents 

Remove 
diagram 6, 
replace with 
diagram 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

showing the 
Development 
Plan 

ID: 176864529 Para 2.29, Typo 
 
Several parish/town councils have been through NP 
process and are helping those starting the process. 
Mention of this could be useful 

Noted. 
 
This may be usefully be added to the 
neighbourhood planning section of the website 
rather than in the SCI. 

Correct 
‘accordnsce’ 
typo in Para 
2.29 

ID: 176920974 Relatively large number of related documents 
discussed but interrelating framework is not easy to 
understand. Does not show hierarchal or legal 
relationships or how they will be referenced and 
weighted in implementing planning policy and making 
planning decisions.  
 
Discussion of the legal weight of different plans and 
how they are utilised at a planning policy level. Would 
be useful.  
 
Including explicit measures against which progress 
towards goals is measured, would enable the council 
to demonstrate it has satisfied its commitments on 
engagement, consultation and feedback. 

The purpose of the SCI is to set out how the 
councils engage in preparing local plans and 
deciding planning applications. Further information 
on how planning applications are determined, 
including the consideration of material 
considerations can be found on the websites. 
 
The SCI should only cover consultation and 
engagement practices, there is a risk that the SCI 
encompasses too much information that is best 
covered in other documents / online, to avoid the 
SCI becoming too long.  
 
There are no set targets for public engagement, 
however we are continually trying to improve our 
methods to reach more people. After each formal 
consultation the we produce a consultation 
statement that summarises and addresses all 
comments received.  

Remove 
diagram 6, 
replace with 
diagram 
showing the 
Development 
Plan 

ID: 176918135 Not clear whether Ox-Cam Spatial Framework will 
form part of the Development Plan and how it will 
relate to the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and Joint Local 
Plan. 

The SCI deals specifically with consultation and 
engagement on planning policy and planning 
applications. There is a risk that the SCI 
encompasses too much information that is best 

Remove 
diagram 6 and 
replace with 
graphic 

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

 
 
 
Would be helpful if there is a facility to download a 
draft response to online consultations so that we can 
consult Society members prior to submitting. A facility 
to download a copy of our final response as a PDF file 
would be useful. 

covered in other documents / online, to avoid the 
SCI becoming too long.  
 
We will pass this request on to IT to see if this is 
possible. 

showing 
Development 
Plan 

ID: 175704669 No mention of LDOs nor Framework Masterplans  
 
How will the LPA guarantee that an SPD (and LDO) 
will adhere to National guidance, Local Plans 
(including SCI para 2.8), professional/national 
guidance and industry standards if there is no 
independent examination? 
 
Is the AMR explicit enough - contains statements that 
appear to be inconsistent. E.g., para 8.43 states that 
less than half of the sites had a masterplan, yet on 
page 85, CP38 (All major development has a 
masterplan and D&A statement) claims to have been 
'achieved'. 

The SCI covers the main planning policy documents 
that the councils produce. For further information or 
for any questions on other documents please 
contact us by telephone (01235 422600) or via 
email - 
planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
SPD’s once adopted are a material planning 
consideration in planning decisions. SPDs are 
prepared in Iine with the relevant regulations and in 
line with national policy.  
 
This comment relates to the AMR and a specific 
policy, which is not covered by the SCI 

 

ID: 177003949 Long winded. Would be helpful to list all planning 
policy documents and explain their hierarchy.  
 
 
 
 
How do planning committees link into the local town 
and parish neighbourhood plans?  
 

The SCI deals specifically with consultation and 
engagement on planning policy and planning 
applications. There is a risk that the SCI 
encompasses too much information that is best 
covered in other documents / online, to avoid the 
SCI becoming too long. 
Please see the councils’ websites and constitutions 
for details on how committees operate. 
 

Remove 
diagram 6, 
replace with 
diagram 
showing the 
Development 
Plan 

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk


Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

Are the Vale and South Planning approvals based on 
the town and parish neighbourhood plans.  
 
How will this link in with the new proposed planning 
regulations? This is not clear. 

Planning proposals are assessed against all the 
relevant policies in national and local plans, 
including in made neighbourhood plans.  
 
The SCI does not go into detail on the proposed 
changes to the planning system. The SCI will be 
reviewed and updated if there are significant 
changes to how we consult in the future.  

ID: 176857965 Nothing to support Para 1.11 and Para 1.16 : the 
flowcharts do not provide for engagement until the 
council has formulated its ideas “on content, scope 
and/or preferred options. 
 
The section on “Who we Consult” makes no reference 
to the Planning Practice Guidance on non-statutory 
consultees. Would like to see a list of non-statutory 
consultees set up Also, a forum or citizens’ panel of 
interested people from all sectors of the community, 
providing the opportunity for meaningful two-way 
discussion. 

The councils prepare all planning documents in ljne 
with national legislation and guidance. The councils 
work within the planning framework set nationally. 
We also must take into account the timeframe for 
preparing documents.  
The SCI gives examples of some statutory 
consultees (specific) but does not list any examples 
of non-statutory consultees (general) 
 
We will consider adding more information about 
forums. It would not be appropriate to have 
development forums on all applications and could 
unnecessarily delay development coming forward. 
It is therefore not appropriate to make development 
forums mandatory. Where there is a significant level 
of public interest on an application we will consider 
the use of a development forum 

 
Amend 
headings 
above 2.29 
and 2.30 to be 
clear of the 
difference 
between 
specific and 
general 
consultation 
bodies to refer 
to 
Under local 
interest groups 
insert eg 
wildlife groups 

ID: 177039688 Would like to see a tightening of the exemptions to 
CIL, e.g., on self-build. 
 
 
 

The SCI is not a policy document so cannot make 
changes to national or local policy.  
 
 

Amend 
headings 
above 2.29 
and 2.30 to be 
clear of the 
difference 

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification  
(if any) 

Note the absence of any named non-statutory 
organisations such as the Chiltern Society, CPRE, 
Woodland Trust, National Trust, etc. who all have an 
interest in the shaping of a planning policy. They 
should be named, under 2.29 or 2.30 
 
 

The SCI gives examples of some statutory 
consultees (specific) but does not list any examples 
of non-statutory consultees (general) 
 
 
 
 
 

between 
specific and 
general 
consultation 
bodies to refer 
to 
 
Under local 
interest groups 
insert eg 
wildlife groups 

3. Section 3 of the draft SCI provides information on how to become involved with different aspects of development management 

including planning applications, planning appeals, Section 106 (planning obligations), pre-application advice and planning 

enforcement. Q3. Overall did you find that the information in this section was presented in a simple and easy to understand way? 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174155654 Don’t think it matters what I say. Noted. This SCI sets out the statutory process for 
assessing planning applications and preparing plan 
making documents, which are then followed by the 
councils. The councils consider all comments 
submitted on plan-making and planning 
applications. 

 

ID: 174158393 VoWH Council has failed to inform nearby properties 
about development applications. By luck only have I 
discovered nearby applications, many after consent 
had been given. I do not believe this will change 
anything. I distrust the Council's intentions to permit 
local people to have a say. 

The table below Paragraph 3.5 sets out the 
methods by which we publicise planning 
applications.  Diagram 7 sets out the minimum 
neighbourhood notification for all applications. The 
SCI sets out the statutory process for assessing 
planning applications which is then followed by the 
councils. 

 

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174159838 Diagrams & flow charts at the start make this a user-
friendly section. 

Noted.  

ID: 174161312 No comments. Noted.  

ID: 174160763 This section is clearer. But why call it Development 
Management? So generic it could refer to anything 
that is developed or managed. Express this at citizen 
level. 
Put in a very simple case study that demonstrates the 
process. 

Noted. The term Development Management is 
explained in Paragraph 3.1. It is used nationally in 
planning policy documents and planning legislation 
and should remain in the SCI for consistency and 
clarity.  
The SCI is not intended to explain the planning 
process, but sets out how we will consult.  

 

ID: 174202530 Is this document a policy or an explanation? Reads 
like it's not quite sure. 

The SCI is a statutory document which sets out how 
we engage with local communities (local residents, 
businesses, organisations and statutory 
consultees). 

 

ID: 174203774 Would be useful to explain that pre-app advice will be 
based on policies in the local development plan.  
 
 
Should be a statement about the advice given not 
being legally binding.  

Noted. Clarification to be added into paragraph 
3.30/3.31 that pre-application advice will be based 
on policies in the Local Development plan. 
 
As noted in the SCI, further information regarding 
the pre-application advice process is given on the 
councils’ websites which states advice is not 
binding 

Make explicit 
reference to 
Local 
Development 
Plan in 
paragraph 
3.30/3.31. 

ID: 174229530 No comments. Noted.  

ID: 174573133 This is a tick box exercise. The SCI is a statutory document  
 

 

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174618685 More information about why applications go to 
committees would be appreciated. 

The councils’ constitutions set out the process for 
planning committee, rather than the SCI. 

 

ID: 174852486 42 pages is too much to read. Who is concentrating 
after the first paragraph.  

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
other graphical design to make this user-friendly 

 

ID: 175102902 Adherence to neighbourhood plan policies throughout 
the planning process should be emphasised. 
 
Frustrating to be presented with a development at 
‘outline planning’ stage, to find that when a detailed 
planning application comes along, it is too late to 
change anything.  
 
What is the point in having planning enforcement if 
public perception is that it isn’t carried out?  
 
What is done to enforce Discharges when it appears 
that they are sanctioned prior to developer action? 

Planning proposals are assessed against all the 
relevant policies in national and local plans, 
including in made neighbourhood plans. The SCI is 
not a policy document. Adherence to policies are 
set out in the relevant local and neighbourhood 
plans.  
 
The SCI cannot make changes to policy or the 
planning process, it deals solely with engagement.  
 
Para 3.30 – 3.34 covers pre-application advice and 
encourages early engagement with the local 
community and key stakeholders. 
 
Comments on policy matters are not dealt with in 
the SCI.  
 
Details on enforcement are covered in an 
enforcement statement and do form part of the SCI. 
Carrying out development without planning 
permission includes breaches of planning 
permission – or not building in accordance with 
approved plans. This would be investigated in line 
with our enforcement statement. 

 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 175228434 How will the Council ensure that local facilities agreed 
for large developments are provided before building 
commences?  

We work with developers and communities 
throughout the planning process to ensure 
infrastructure is appropriately implemented. 

 

ID: 175340758 Aspirations are to be welcomed. However, the SCI will 
only meet needs of citizens with disabilities with 
explicit commitments to and implementation of 
particular technologies/ measures. 

Noted. We provide documents in accessible 
formats and we aim to make more use of 
technology to reach a wider audience. 

 

ID: 175795051 Only include information that is relevant - executive 
summary of major details and actions that people will 
need to take/what they need to look out for. 

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
other graphical design to make this user-friendly.  

 

ID: 175817477 For ‘Major’ applications, homes and businesses 
opposite and near to proposed access points should 
be consulted 
 
 
Neighbourhood Forums should be listed as a 
consultee as they are not town/parish councils. 
 
 
Conservation Officer should be consulted if impact 
son heritage asset.  
County Highways Officer should be consulted if 
parking falls below standard. 
 
Hyperlink missing for email alerts 
 
Press Notice – The use of newspaper seems 
contradictory to SODC's approach of modern 
technology. No mention of how they publish in areas 
where there is not a local newspaper.  
 

Site notices are posted for major applications and 
where appropriate a wider catchment is notified by 
letter or email. This is set out on p28 
 
Neighbourhood forums are not classed as statutory 
consultees, this is defined in legislation  
 
This would be the case 
 
This would be the case 
 
 
Noted and amended. 
 
Press notices are just one method.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Check all 
hyperlinks 
Amend Point 6 
under 
paragraph 3.4 
to refer to the 
respective 
constitutions 
of the 
councils. 
 
Add in the 
hyperlink to 
sign up for 
email alerts. 
 
 
 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

Is it possible for residents to receive a copy of the 
weekly?  
 
Typo – consutlation 
 
This appears to give Council considerable freedom to 
close off engagement with the public. Needs 
explaining/examples /full transparency. 
 
 
Page 32, Paragraph 3.9  
The link only goes to VOWH planning map – SODC 
map link needed. 
 
Page 34, Paragraph 3.10 
• This is contradictory "minimum of 21 days to 
comment" then "comments... within 21 days". 
 
"21 days from the date of our notification letter" needs 
explaining. Is it 21 days from the day it is printed?  
 
Areas with made NDPs need to be informed a pre-
application discussion has been held regarding 
specific sites.  

The list is published on our website and 
emailed to councillors. 
 
Noted and amended 
 
Noted – consider amending the wording to explain 
that notification is given but no public consultation 
period for permitted development proposals. 
 
Noted and amended. 
 
 
 
Noted we will amend to make clear  
 
 
 
21 days from when the notice is displayed 
 
 
 
Information provided as part of a pre-application 
advice request is treated as confidential until a 
related formal planning application is received. 
Once received all information relating to the pre-
application request and our response will be made 
public. We encourage early engagement with local 
communities.  

Correct 
‘consultation’ 
typo Para 3.5. 
 
 
Add link to 
SODC map 
too. 

ID: 176530958 Process very clear. Does not encourage people that 
their views will be taken into account - sounds like a 

Noted. We consider a number of factors in 
progressing with policy documents and determining 
applications. Consultation is one of the key factors: 

 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

high-level process that small comments will have little 
effect on without coordination. 

we read all responses to consultations and give 
them careful consideration. 

ID: 176737883 There have been delays between the date an 
application is allocated to a planning officer and it 
being publicised on the council's online application 
register for public comment reducing the time for 
interested parties to comment. 
 
Consider automatically notifying when new or 
amended documents are uploaded.  

 
Noted this will be passed on to the relevant team 
 
 
 
Step 5 on p27 states “if an application is formally 
amended to address any planning issues raised, we 
may consult again if we think the changes may 
affect different neighbours or if new issues might be 
raised”. 

 

ID: 176744593 See previous comments.  
Public meeting was a tick box exercise. 

Meetings are one of the ways we engage.  

ID: 176747450 Easy to understand but concern over process. E.g. if 
a case officer has come to conclusion on something 
there is not opportunity to scrutinise this decision  
Could be clearer on when the deadline on 
consultations can be extended. 

Case officers carefully consider all comments 
before making a recommendation to approve or 
refuse.  
 
This is done on a case by case basis 

 

ID: 176864529 Section 3 is generally very helpful. Parish Councils are 
not statutory consultees. this section, together with 
planning law are sufficient basis for parish to 
discharge their function.  
 
Parish could/should have key role in dealing with local 
concerns in relation to major developments. Could 
para 3.11 be amended to show that help may be 
available in these limited circumstances. E.g. 'Where 
a major development is likely to have a major impact 
on a locality or community we will endeavour to 

Noted. 
 
 
 
 
Noted, we will consider adding some additional 
text 

 

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

nominate a liaison officer to assist locally elected 
groups such as PCs aimed at assisting them, in the 
interpretation of planning law and council policy, to 
deal with local concerns 

ID: 176920974 Indication of the criteria on size/location that will cause 
a planning application to go to committee or require a 
site visit. 
 
Further details on the process by which local priorities 
will be identified and the community consulted in 
relation to drawing up S106 agreements. 
 
When developers seek pre-application advice, is there 
a standard practice on the response, and will the Vale 
facilitate community involvement on any pre-
application advice sought?  

The criteria which cause a planning application to 
go to planning committee can be found in the 
councils’ Constitution. 
 
Paragraph 3.28 provides appropriate guidance on 
this.  
 
 
As noted in the SCI, further information regarding 
the pre-application advice process is given on the 
councils’ websites. We encourage early 
engagement with the local community.  

 

ID: 176918135 Would be helpful if the Weekly List could be e-mailed 
to registered individuals, such as the Society's 
Planning Field Officers who each cover several 
parishes in the Chilterns part of South Oxfordshire 
 
Where the Chiltern Society comments on planning 
applications, comments need to be shown to be from 
the Society and not just the named individual making 
the comment. 

The weekly list is published on the websites. We will 
make it easier to find.  
 
 
 
 
Noted. We will pass this on  

 

ID: 175704669 Presented in a simple and easy to understand way  
The classification of Major and Minor applications 
based on size of development seems to be routinely 
ignored. 
 

 
 
The classification of development is set nationally 
 
 

 

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

Local Plans stress that a 'high quality of design' is 
required for developments. By what measures are the 
'quality of design' assessed?  
 
LPA does not ensure factors such as National 
Guidance, Local Plans, professional guidance etc. are 
considered 
 
Once a decision has been made, mainly based on 
delegated powers, there is no mechanism available to 
residents to challenge the ‘soundness’ of the decision 
before approval is given. Process is seriously flawed.  

Proposals are assessed against local and national 
policy.  
 
 
We read and consider all comments carefully. 
Consultation is one factor to consider when 
assessing a proposal.  
 
Process is set in national legislation. There is no 
third party right to appeal.  

ID: 176857965 Can't find any reference on website to the weekly list 
nor have we been made aware of its existence. 

The weekly list can be found on the councils’ 
websites at the following links: South / Vale 
 

 

ID: 177008678 S106 Planning Obligations paragraph 3.28. 
Communities (especially those with NDPs) should 
have opportunity to contribute to preliminary 
discussions about planning conditions, S106 
obligations and S278 Agreements. It is not acceptable 
for District and County officers to impose these 
conditions without involving the communities which 
will be affected. 
 
Pre-Application Advice: Paragraph 3.31: Local 
communities should have the opportunity to engage in 
this process (especially those with NDPs). Must be a 
real engagement in planning proposals from the 
beginning to ensure that local priorities and concerns 
are considered. 

Paragraph 3.28 provides appropriate guidance 
On S106 agreements.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Para 3.30 – 3.34 covers pre-application advice and 
encourages early engagement with the local 
community and key stakeholders. 

 

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 12

https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationList&TYPE=P&PAGE=1
https://data.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationList&TYPE=P&PAGE=1


Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

Planning officers should expect to engage with local 
parish councils. 

ID: 177039688 A very useful and well-presented summary of the 
planning application process. 

Noted.   

 

4. Q4. Overall, to what extent do you agree that the processes set out in the SCI will enable communities to be informed and have 

timely and meaningful opportunities to have a say on any planning proposals we make? You can view the draft SCI here. 

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174154598 Local views are almost never listened to if they don't 
agree with what you want to do. You do it as a 
regulatory exercise that is not expected to make a 
difference in how you do it or the wanted outcome. 

The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on plan-making and planning applications 

 

ID: 174154576 I know that comments need to be relevant to Planning 
policies etc, or they may get ignored. Is it worth 
highlighting this? 

Noted. The councils’ websites provide guidance on 
how to comment on a planning application 
effectively. See South / Vale. Reference could be 
made to these webpages in the SCI.  

Add in links to 
the ‘How to 
comment on a 
planning 
application 
effectively’ 
pages of the 
websites.  

ID: 174153472 Past experience has led to distrust of the Council and 
its long-worded commitments to community 
engagement. 

The SCI is a statutory document    

ID: 174155654 Don’t think so. Noted.  

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/how-to-comment-on-a-planning-application-effectively/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/how-to-comment-on-a-planning-application-effectively/


Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174158393 See previous response (comments captured in 
section 3) 

Comments in Q3 noted.  

ID: 174159092 If you keep to the statements made and respect all 
comments. 

Noted.  

ID: 174159838 Potentially. Depends whether their views will actually 
be taken into account; no amount of time helps if it 
makes no difference. 

Noted, we  read all responses to consultations and 
give them careful consideration. 

 

ID: 174161555 Make it highly visible to seek input and use 
questionnaires etc. that are: 
1. NOT slanted towards particular outcomes. 
2. NOT overly simplistic (like this one). 
3. Comprehensive (i.e. do NOT make enquiry into only 
certain aspects of a planning proposal that are then 
used to suggest a level of consultation that has not 
actually occurred.) 
4. reported on comprehensively and clearly and NOT 
selectively/ opaquely. 
5. enquired and reported on in the simplest language 
possible. 

 
There is a balance between providing all the 
information that we need to so that people are 
informed, and trying to keep the document short. We 
have tried to get the balance right and do not want 
to omit information that may be useful. 
A consultation statement is prepared after formal 
consultations that sets out how engagement was 
undertaken, what the responses were and how the 
responses have been considered. 

 

ID: 174167953 No confidence that anything I say, in this survey or as 
part of the feedback process on planning, will be read 
let alone acted upon. 

Noted, the councils consider all comments 
submitted on plan-making and planning 
applications. 

 

ID: 174160763 Parish councils are an underutilised means of 
engaging communities. Zoom meetings have enabled 
people to attend PC meetings remotely and hear what 
decisions are being made, even if we are not allowed 
to take part in the discussion. 

Noted and agree use of virtual meetings has been a 
benefit 

 

ID: 174180415 Don't see how the document differs from existing 
practice. 

Noted.  

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174182653 A stage needs to be added before/ after Reg 19 to 
demonstrate that you intend to take notice of 
community views. The diagrams are inconsistent with 
the explanatory text. 

Comments made at Regulation 19 stage are sent to 
the examiner, any changes made to the plan must 
be done through the examination process. The 
diagram shows the key stages and focuses on the 
statutory requirements for plan making. 

 

ID: 174191829 Communities and Individuals should be notified as 
soon as there is an outline plan - before planning 
applications are formally submitted. It often seems 
that, once a formal planning application is submitted, 
there is little likelihood of it not going ahead, despite 
objections from Communities. 

Para 3.30 – 3.34 covers pre-application advice and 
encourages early engagement with the local 
community and key stakeholders. Information 
provided as part of a pre-application advice request 
as confidential until such time that a related formal 
planning application is received. Once a formal 
planning application is received our response will be 
made public.  

 

ID: 174199579 We may have timely and meaningful opportunities to 
have a say, but all comments and genuine concerns 
are ignored. 

Noted, the councils consider all comments 
submitted on plan-making and planning 
applications. 

 

ID: 174201658 The processes are straightforward, but it is difficult to 
overcome community apathy - until someone wants to 
build something next door. But the approach you are 
using is fair and will work. 

Noted.  

ID: 174202530 I've no idea - the document manages to be very clear, 
and also leave me with no greater feel for what it 
means for me. 

Noted.  

ID: 174217905 No differences between the plan and what currently 
happens. 

Noted.  

ID: 174229530 No comments. Noted.  

ID: 174357995 Will depend on how the consultation is undertaken. 
E.g., for planning applications there is never feedback 

We receive a high volume of correspondence and 
are unable to respond to individual comments that 
we receive during a particular consultation. The 

 

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

so it is difficult to know if comments have been taken 
into account etc.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Most consultation processes do not appear to be a 
dialogue rather a process of write your comments and 
we may or may not take them into account. It is not 
possible to speak to planners. For effective 
consultation planners need to be resourced and have 
processes to enter into dialogs with consultees. 

comments we receive regarding planning policy 
documents and on planning applications will be 
made publicly available online at the earliest 
opportunity, once the consultation has finished. The 
councils consider all comments submitted on plan-
making and planning applications. 
 
The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning policy documents and 
planning applications and take these into account 
alongside national and local policies when making 
decisions.  
 
We receive a high volume of correspondence and 
are unable to respond to individual comments that 
we receive during a particular consultation. The 
comments we receive regarding planning policy 
documents and on planning applications will be 
made publicly available online at the earliest 
opportunity, once the consultation has finished. 
 

ID: 174420959 The SCI makes general positive comments but it’s 
how these are implemented that will decide whether it 
enables communities to be informed and have timely 
and meaningful opportunities to have a say on any 
planning proposals 

Noted.   

ID: 174424762 Stronger local democracy could be achieved through 
mini referendums. 

This would be contrary to national policy  

ID: 174573133 Having a say is one thing. Listening and acting on 
what the community wants is another. 

Noted, the councils consider all comments 
submitted on plan-making and planning 
applications. 

 

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 174618685 Doubt communities can have meaningful 
opportunities to have a say, given the extent to which 
the government interferes with the process.  
 
Doubts about pre-planning advice since the process 
seems to lack dialogue with the public. Pre-planning 
advice needs to identify all planning issues which may 
impact on the neighbourhood, the town or village, etc. 
It can only do this if the public is aware that advice is 
being sought. 

Noted. 
 
 
Para 3.30 – 3.34 covers pre-application advice and 
encourages early engagement with the local 
community and key stakeholders. 

 

ID: 174724350 Planning process is biased towards developers. SCI 
designed to pretend that residents have a say when 
the reality is that their views are ignored.  
 
 
 
Most planning committee members don’t have local 
knowledge 
 
Objectors are limited to a pitiful amount of time to 
present arguments while Officers are granted 
unlimited time.  
 
Once planning permission has been granted, the 
ground is 'broken' and then no more work needs to be 
done. Housing shortage is deliberately maintained - 
no new houses are built – the shortage can then be 
used to press the case for another development. 
 
Planning regulations are seldom enforced, and 
Section 106 money is often never forthcoming. 

We consider a number of factors in progressing with 
policy documents and determining applications. 
Consultation is one of the key factors: we read all 
responses to consultations and give them careful 
consideration. 
 
The councils’ constitutions address matters of 
process regarding planning committees. This is not 
addressed by the SCI. 
 
 
 
 
The SCI cannot deal with policy issues 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

Please see our websites for information on CIL 
monies 

ID: 174886382 There is no faith that what communities want or say 
will make much difference. We try to convince people 
otherwise but it's a major uphill battle. 

Noted.  

ID: 175093121 Those who register to be notified of planning 
applications have a wider sphere of interest than just 
their postcode. I think 500m radius minimum. 

We also publish a weekly of applications that can be 
viewed on our websites  

 

ID: 175102902 Please see previous comments.  Comments noted in response to earlier questions.  

ID: 175210775 Only if you connect with at least 50% of the 
community. 

That would be contrary to national policy  

ID: 175314624 Lacks active feedback for Major Applications. 
Attended Public consultation for Valley Park years ago 
but none of the feedback seems to have made it to the 
plans. Planners need to develop a list of lessons learnt 
and implement them into future applications. There is 
no feedback process for volunteered community 
comments. 

We receive a high volume of correspondence and 
are unable to respond to individual comments that 
we receive during a particular consultation. The 
comments we receive regarding planning policy 
documents and on planning applications will be 
made publicly available online at the earliest 
opportunity once the consultation has finished.  

 

ID: 175340758 All public meetings must be held at venues with step 
free access and any ramps or lifts must comply with 
the relevant standard.  The seating arrangements at 
public meetings must be flexible enough to 
incorporate spaces for those with disabilities, such as 
wheelchair users and their carers, which provide them 
with the ability to sit where, they wish to, rather than 
where they are put. A wheelchair accessible WC must 
be available. 

Noted  

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 175358522 Not sure how this SCI is different to the current one. 
Large sections of the public are excluded with the way 
we do things, unsure what we've changed to improve 
that. 

Noted.  

ID: 175722188 Is 3.17 (time limit on speaking at committee) standard 
practice regardless of the size of development?  
 
 

The councils’ constitutions address matters of 
process regarding planning committees. This is not 
addressed by the SCI. 

 

ID: 175795051 42-page PDF is too long for most people. A 2-page 
summary of the main points will be much more helpful. 

Noted – the document does contain a lot of 
information. There is a balance between providing 
all the information that we need to so that people are 
informed, and trying to keep the document short. We 
have tried to get the balance right and do not want 
to omit information that may be useful.  

 

ID: 175966398 Community involvement is very internet based and will 
miss residents who do not use/ have access to the 
internet.  
 
 

Site notices and letters are used to notify those who 
are likely to be directly affected by a proposal. 

 

ID: 176389843 The theory is fine but much of it cannot be carried out 
in practice (see answer to q1). (comments captured 
in Q1 summary) 

Noted.  

ID: 176530958 Given the legal requirements it is probably as good as 
it gets. Harder to say that it gives meaningful 
opportunities, although I expect it depends on the type 
of application and the position of the person giving 
comments. 

The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning policy documents and 
planning applications and take these into account 
alongside national and local policies when making 
decisions. 

 

ID: 176623728 No change to the current system. Noted.   

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 176737883 Paragraph 3.10 
There have been delays between the date an 
application is allocated to a planning officer and it 
being publicised on the council's online application 
register for public comment reducing the time for 
interested parties to comment. 
 
Consider automatically notifying when new or 
amended documents are uploaded.  

 
Noted this will be passed on to the relevant team 
 
 
 
Step 5 on p27 states “if an application is formally 
amended to address any planning issues raised, we 
may consult again if we think the changes may 
affect different neighbours or if new issues might be 
raised”. 

 

ID: 176744593 change of culture in the planning department needs to 
take place. Words and objectives set are not worth the 
paper they are written on if the people in the 
departments concerned don’t believe in your goals. 

This SCI sets out the statutory process for 
assessing planning applications and preparing plan 
making documents, which are then followed by the 
councils. 

 

ID: 176747450 Be more clear and specific about how policy is 
consulted, the methods employed, the specific 
timescales and where these will be found on the 
Council website. 

We have tried to provide enough information to keep 
people informed about how we will consult on 
planning policy (section 2) and planning applications 
(section 3) in a concise way so that the document is 
not too long and is easy to read. 

 

ID: 176864529 The SCI could support South and Vale and 
parish/town councils in explaining the rationale and 
law behind applications thus removing the potential for 
ill-informed rancour that often surrounds applications. 

Noted  

ID: 176920974 Processes of providing information on planning 
applications and enabling comments are good. Public 
understanding of the decision-making process, and 
consideration given to various plans needs to be 
addressed more clearly.  
 

Noted. The SCI deals with engagement and not the 
planning process 
 
 
 
 
More detail will be added on forums.  
 

 

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

Document preparation would benefit from formally 
documented public/ local representation at the pre-
drafting stage.  
 
The Authority Monitoring Report is useful and we 
would welcome a higher profile to its publication.  

 
 
The AMR is published on our websites 

ID: 176916499 The Planning and Development Committee are 
gravely concerned at the Council's inability to defend 
the Local Plan. 

This does not relate to the SCI  

ID: 176942204 Minimum area of neighbourhood notification should 
be appropriate to rural locations where houses can be 
further apart. 

Noted  

ID: 175704669 LPA is approving development that is contrary to 
policies in the local plans, that has an adverse effect 
on the local environment and those who live and work 
here. 
Unacceptable that the LPA ‘cannot answer questions 
on individual applications because there are too many 
applications to deal with’ when approvals are 
destroying the credibility of the LPA. 
 
No mechanism available to residents to challenge 
conclusions expressed in Delegated and Committee 
reports where they are less than complete or 
inaccurate, before applications are approved. 

We determine applications in accordance with local 
and national policy.  
 
 
We cannot respond to individual comments on 
applications due to the high number of comments 
that we receive. We summarise and address 
comments in the delegated or committee report.  
 
Noted, reports are published with the decision or 
ahead of the committee meeting.  

 

ID: 177003949 Be more clear and specific about how policy is 
consulted, the methods employed, the specific 
timescales and where these will be found on the 
Council website. 

We have tried to provide enough information to keep 
people informed about how we will consult on 
planning policy (section 2) and planning applications 
(section 3) in a concise way so that the document is 
not too long and is easy to read. 

 

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 176857965 If the proposals in the recent White Paper go ahead, 
this section will be largely irrelevant. 
 
 
The 3-minute time-limit for public comments at 
Planning Committee meetings is very restrictive.  
 
Perception that the operation of the planning system 
is weighted in favour of developers, and against local 
residents/ other interested third parties. Through pre-
application discussions, the developer has 
opportunities to persuade planning officers to see 
things the applicant's way.  
 
The SCI should do whatever it can to redress this 
perception of imbalance and unfairness. This could 
include: 
- greater willingness of planning officers to engage 
with third parties - not just with the developer - before 
an application goes forward for decision 
- better opportunities for third parties to make their 
case at committee meetings. Include an opportunity 
for third parties to respond to points made to the 
committee by the applicant in their remarks. 
- possibly taking more items to committee, so that 
councillors get a better sense of how the system is 
actually working. 

The SCI does not go into detail on the proposed 
changes to the planning system. The SCI will be 
reviewed and updated if there are significant 
changes to how we consult in the future. 
The councils’ constitutions address matters of 
process regarding planning committees. This is not 
addressed by the SCI. 
 
The councils carefully consider all comments 
submitted on planning applications and take these 
into account alongside national and local policies 
when making decisions. We consider it appropriate 
that the pre-application advice given is disclosed 
when the application is formally submitted. 
 
 
 
 
The SCI sets out how we engage with local 
communities (local residents, businesses, 
organisations and statutory consultees). 
The councils’ constitutions address matters of 
process regarding planning committees. This is not 
addressed by the SCI. 

 

ID: 177008678 The need for further meaningful involvement is set out 
in Q3 above. (comments captured in response to 
section 3) 

Comments noted under Q3.  

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification 
(if any) 

ID: 177039688 It is imperative that there is a robust system in place 
for encouraging communities, both organisations and 
individuals, to engage with, and participate in, 
consultations. 

The SCI sets out how the councils will engage with 
the local community on planning documents and 
planning applications. 

 

 

5. Q5. Do you have any comments on the general format of our draft SCI? Is it clear and suitable for your needs?  

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 174154598 Fine, easy to read and understand. A little patronising 
but does the job. 

Noted  

ID: 174153472 Too long. Makes work for more council employees to 
work towards and around. Not worth the paper it is 
written on without real commitment and action to 
engage. 

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
flow charts to supplement the text to make this user-
friendly 

 

ID: 174154276 Yes it was all very clear. Noted  

ID: 174155654 No - who is going to take on board what I say, 
thousands of people objected to the building at Iffley 
who took any notice you went and passed it anyway. 

This comment appears to relate to a planning 
application in Oxford City.  

 

ID: 174159838 Too long. Diagrams & flow chart are most useful 
aspect for most. Public will feel disengaged when 
presented with 42 pages of process detail. 

Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text to make this 
user-friendly 

 

ID: 174161555 No comments Noted  

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 174167724 Presented in an easily legible format and is 
accompanied by clear flow charts. 

Noted  

ID: 174167953 No Noted  

ID: 174160763 Reads like a paper to committee. Where is 
community? Where is involvement? 

We have tried to wrote this document in an easy to 
understand way, using flow charts and diagrams to 
supplement the text.  

 

ID: 174182653 The format is clear and language generally easy to 
understand. 
 
Where actions for different documents will be the 
same the explanations and lists of actions could be 
combined to make the document more concise. 

Noted – we will consider whether information could 
be combined to make the document more concise. 

 

ID: 174184980 Too many words. Too much process. Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text to make this 
user-friendly 

 

ID: 174191829 Very clear. Words and diagrams stating the same 
information, means it should be clear to all, and clear, 
concise language is used throughout. 

Noted  

ID: 174199579 Clear and easy to read. Noted  

ID: 174202530 Appreciate the desire for making things clear and 
explaining them. 
 
Would suggest that the whole document needs a 
rethink. Who is the target audience? Rather than 
explaining the council to them, what are the key 
interacting points that they can access, and then work 

The target audience is a range of people – local 
residents, businesses, organisations, town and 
parish councillors.  

 

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

from them to the detail, rather than working from the 
detail to the (hard to identify) access points. Start with 
a clear flow for each section, and then expand. 

ID: 174203774 It's fine and clear. Noted  

ID: 174210371 Very wordy; but clearly laid out and entirely 
understandable. 

Noted  

ID: 174215338 Concern is that community involvement is just another 
box to be ticked, and comments made do not 
materially change anything, such that an answer is 
given to the commentator which justifies why the 
proposals should go forward, with no amendment 
made, or with a reply that details will be dealt with at 
a later stage. 

The council has to consider a number of factors in 
determining applications. Consultation is one of the 
key factors: the council reads all responses to 
consultations and gives them careful consideration. 
In some cases details may be dealt with by a 
planning condition, or if the application is at an 
outline stage, the details will be dealt with by way of 
a reserved matters planning application.  

 

ID: 174217905 Flowcharts are very helpful. Noted.   

ID: 174221903 Very clear & straight forward. Filling out the 
questionnaire online works well with clear options that 
work. 

Noted.   

ID: 174229530 No comments.  Noted  

ID: 174357995 Format is clear and well presented. Noted  

ID: 174466189 Clearly presented. Noted  

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 174473787 It’s a bit of management speak. We have tried to wrote this document in an easy to 
understand way, using flow charts and diagrams to 
supplement the text. 

 

ID: 174573133 Too long and wordy. Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text 

 

ID: 174618685 No Noted  

ID: 174724350 A complete waste of time. Noted  

ID: 174852486 Too long. Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text 

 

ID: 174886382 Too long and complex for most people to take in/ want 
to take in.  
 
People want to see real benefit of getting engaged 
with planning. Believe this is still too complex and 
process driven a document to break through the 
general sense of malaise. 

Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text 

 

ID: 175093121 Have frequently searched the planning system. For 
large developments that have multiple entries it is 
difficult to see which is the relevant set of docs and 
what they're covering. A simple summary of the 
specific application and better named documents may 
help. 

Noted. This comment relates to how subsequent 
planning applications are referenced and then 
searched for on the website.  

 

ID: 175102902 Presentation is clear and easy to read and 
understand. 

Noted  

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 175210775 Most people will not be interested and thus will not 
understand or appreciate what is going on. 

We have tried to write the document in an easy to 
understand way and used diagrams to supplement 
the text, making it easier to pick out the key points.  

 

ID: 175314624 If followed, should be an improvement. More active 
approach for comments/ lessons learnt on major plans 
(evidence gathering & engagement); better feedback 
when/if changes implemented. Plans will need to be 
presented so that Residents can understand, all 
applications require too much skill to interpret for the 
average member of the Community. 

We recognise that some plans are detailed and 
contain a lot of information. Please contact our 
Customer Services Team by telephone (01235 
422600) if you need help interpreting specific plans 
on an application we are dealing with.  

 

ID: 175340758 Zoom was probably the preferred software for virtual 
meetings and that good practice would be to make 
slides and other images available in large format in 
advance. 
Respondent (Oxfordshire Association for the Blind) 
provided detailed advice on best practice.  
 
PDF file that contains the SCI is not fully accessible to 
screen readers and fails some of the standard tests 
for PDF accessibility. 
Document is good at describing what stages there are 
to planning processes. While it frequently mentions 
digital technology, it is not particularly clear on the 
‘how’ of community consultation or the way that 
consultation will be implemented. 
Need to consider exclusion of those groups who do 
not have the technology to access consultations/ 
documents.  
We do not know what font size site notices are in and 
we would ask these questions to be referred on to 
development control. 

Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Our communications officer will make contact about 
this issue. We are committed to making sure all our 
document are fully accessible.  
 
We will continue to explore new digital ways on 
engaging and will use a variety of methods to ensure 
we reach as many people as possible.  
 
 
 
Noted. 
 
 
 

 

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

Noted.  

ID: 175358522 Clear document - easy to read. Could be more 
concise. 

Noted  

ID: 175795051 See my previous comments. (comments captured in 
earlier Qs) 

Noted  

ID: 175817477 A great improvement from the previous version and is 
easy to read / understand. 

Noted  

ID: 176066830 Really easy to follow. Noted  

ID: 176287108 Not enough proactive community interaction on 
specific issues for that community. Interaction should 
be earlier in the process. There should be a period 
added to identify the key stakeholders and their 
weighting on the decision-making process.  

We engage at each formal stage of the process. We 
also identify and consult key stakeholders. We do 
not weight the influence of stakeholders, a balance 
must be made on a case by case basis.  

 

ID: 176324517 Quite wordy but the direction of travel is good. Noted  

ID: 176530958 Stimulating meaningful community involvement is 
difficult, particularly in Didcot when discussions 
regarding the Garden Town have resulted in little local 
visible effect. Some plans which have easy to see 
effects would be helpful. 

Your comments about Didcot are noted. The SCI 
does not deal with policy matters.  

 

ID: 176737883 Clearly set out. Noted  

ID: 176744593 Please see previous comments. (comments 
captured in earlier Qs) 

We have to consider a number of factors in 
progressing with policy documents and determining 

 P
age 120

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
Needs to be openness, transparency and honesty in 
all that goes on (currently not the case). I know there 
is huge political pressure to build and generate 
income for LA’s that have many financial pressures. 
Local views, despite the Localism Act are always 
bottom of the pile, last to be considered and carry the 
least weight. 

applications. Consultation is one of the key factors: 
we read all responses to consultations and give 
them careful consideration. 

ID: 176747450 Summary/appendix at the end with key points of how 
the public can engage and find documentation, 
consultations etc. would be helpful. 

The SCI contains tables that summarise this 
information including how to respond to 
consultations.  

Add tables 
and diagrams 
to contents list 
for ease of 
reference 

ID: 176920974 Summary poster/ leaflets of key points, relevant plans, 
what is changing and the relationship between 
documents would be useful as many of the groups 
that the council is trying to reach could be put off by a 
40 page document.  
Survey concentrated heavily on whether the 
document is understandable, we suggest that there is 
scope for some specific questions beyond those on 
clarity. 

 
The SCI contains tables that summarise this 
information including how to respond to 
consultations. 
 
Noted, we will consider this for future consultations 

Add tables 
and diagrams 
to contents list 
for ease of 
reference 

ID: 176918135 Very clear and easy to read. Noted  

ID: 176942204 Clear and understandable. Noted  

ID: 175704669 Format is generally good. By explaining how Officers 
go about the assessment of planning applications - 
who does what and how weighting of Local Plan 
policies is brought into the development of 

There is no set weighting of polices. Each planning 
decision has a report that sets out which policies are 
considered and explains how a decision has been 
reached.  

 

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

conclusions, and how consistency and balance are 
achieved, the process would be clearer to 
communities and residents (who are not planning 
experts). 

ID: 177003949 Summary/appendix with the key points of how the 
public can engage and find documentation, 
consultations etc. would be helpful.  
 
Details of how to join the online planning meetings 
would be useful. 

The SCI contains tables that summarise this 
information including how to respond to 
consultations. 
 
Noted. This can be found on the councils’ websites.  

Add tables 
and diagrams 
to contents list 
for ease of 
reference 

ID: 176857965 Clearly presented but a bit short and "high-level". 
Needs more flesh to demonstrate that you are serious 
about effective and early engagement and to show 
people how they can get involved. 

Noted. We have tried to be concise to avoid a long 
document that may be off putting to read.  

 

ID: 177008678 No further comments. Noted  

ID: 177039688 Clear, concise, and well presented. Noted  

6. Q6. Do you have any other comments on our draft SCI?  

Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 174154598 No Noted  

ID: 174154576 Seems very "involving" for ordinary members of the 
public, but people do not always understand that their 
comments need to be relevant to Planning policies 
etc,  

The SCI refers to material planning considerations 
and provides a link to our websites to find out more 
information on what can and cannot be considered 
when determining a planning application.  

 

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
Residents may get frustrated if their comments are 
ignored because they are not relevant or are outside 
the scope of Planning policies etc. (gave example in 
full comment) 

ID: 174154204 Very little is done to protect communities from large 
construction companies regarding the distress caused 
by their lorries driving through small towns and 
villages. This is usually illegal but as nobody monitors 
it, they do it anyway. 

Noted, unfortunately this is an issue that is outside 
the remit of the SCI. 
 
 

 

ID: 174154276 Some information with housing needs, waiting lists 
within specific areas would assist those with the un-
affordability within South Oxford whereby social 
housing can reduce social care should relatives of 
elderly locals needing care be required. Some 
housing will always be required. 

These comments relate to housing affordability, 
social care and affordable housing provision. These 
issues are covered in other policy documents 
prepared by planning (the local plan) and by the 
Housing team.   

 

ID: 174161555 Refer back to the answer and comments given to Q4. 
(comments captured under Q4) 

Noted  

ID: 174161312 Too much information for people who don’t 
understand the planning process, e.g. acronyms. For 
many it is too lengthy to absorb. 

Noted.  We have, as concisely as possible, provided 
all the information needed and have used diagrams 
and flow charts to supplement the text. We have 
tried to avoid using acronyms and will check the 
document for them.  

 

ID: 174167953 No. Noted  

ID: 174199579 Consult us all you like, but until you listen and pay 
proper attention to residents’ concerns it’s all lip 
service 

The councils read all responses and give them 
careful consideration. 

 

ID: 174201658 Pandemic will exacerbate decline of town centres. 
Approach to planning and development could help to 
overcome many problems - empty shop fronts, 

This comment relates to matters outside the remit of 
the SCI.  
 

 

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

declining business rate income for councils and the 
need for low cost housing for the younger generation.  
 
Consultation needs to be genuine and not paying lip-
service to community involvement.  
 
Clear strategies for towns and villages are needed. 
This would be easier to show how developments 
comply with the agreed strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
Local plans have an overall strategy, and 
sometimes more local strategies e.g. for the main 
towns. This is something we will consider when 
preparing the joint local plan.  

ID: 174203774 No. Noted  

ID: 174210371 No. Noted  

ID: 174215338 Community involvement is just another box to be 
ticked, and comments made do not materially change 
proposals 

We have to consider a number of factors in 
progressing with policy documents and determining 
applications. Consultation is one of the key factors: 
we read all responses to consultations and give 
them careful consideration. 

 

ID: 174217905 I missed a summary section on what is new compared 
to current practice. 

Noted  

ID: 174229530 No comments.  Noted  

ID: 174160445 Would be helpful to give more detail about how outline 
planning applications are dealt with.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applications for outline planning permission seek to 
establish whether the scale and nature of a 
proposed development would be acceptable to the 
local planning authority, before a fully detailed 
(reserved matters) proposal is put forward. 
Consultation on these types of applications is 
carried out in the same way as for full applications.   
 

 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
Para 3.32 of the SCI states that any pre-application 
advice letters between the applicant and the authority 
will be published. This should include minutes of any 
meetings too, including meetings with other 
authorities.  
 
 
 
The online SODC planning portal should be made 
more efficient and user-friendly. It is very slow and 
content is difficult to access. 
 
Planning committee members should be required to 
formally confirm that they have read and considered 
all comments submitted on an application before 
granting or denying planning permission. 

Information provided as part of a pre-application 
advice request as confidential until such time that a 
related formal planning application is received. 
Once a formal planning application is received our 
response will be made public. We normally publish 
the meeting notes if they are produced instead of 
the letter, often a letter is done following the 
meeting(s). 
 
Noted. This comment will be passed on to the 
communications team.  
 
 
The process for committee meetings are set out in 
the councils constitutions rather than in the SCI. 

ID: 174357995 Provides a good summary of the planning processes 
but doesn’t understand/ recognise that for effective 
consultation a dialogue is needed between the 
parties. Comes across more of a box ticking exercise  

We receive a high volume of correspondence and 
are unable to respond to individual comments that 
we receive during a particular consultation. We 
welcome opportunities for dialogue where 
appropriate. 

 

ID: 174249396 Not convinced it will alter how planning applications 
are considered as local comments seem to be 
ignored. 

The councils will continue to read and give careful 
consideration to all comments received.  

 

ID: 174466189 The way in which the summary of results of any 
statutory public consultations will be reported and 
published is unclear in terms of the level of detail 
which will be published. These are vital to ensure a 
transparent process  
 

The consultation statement will include the number 
of responses received to a consultation and where 
respondents could choose their level of agreement 
to a statement a breakdown will be provided. A 
summary of the all the comments will be provided 
and how we propose to respond to the comments.   

 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 

ID: 174573133 Primary development should be restricted to 
brownfield sites. Improving existing areas. Leave farm 
fields and nature alone. 

The SCI itself is not a policy making document.   

ID: 174618685 No. Noted  

ID: 174724350 It is a complete waste of time. Noted  

ID: 174852486 Summarise the main bits. Who has time to review 42 
pages and who is really concentrating after the first 
paragraph? 

We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
flow charts to supplement the text 

 

ID: 174886382 See the Thame Green Living Plan for an alternative 
approach. 

Noted  

ID: 175228434 Will be irrelevant if it does not allow the local 
community to have genuinely meaningful input into 
the planning process. This must include the ability to 
prevent unwanted and unsustainable development by 
referendum/ some other means. 

Referendums are held for neighbourhood plans but 
not for local plans or planning applications. This 
would be contrary to legislation and is not something 
the councils can undertake.  

 

ID: 175340758 OXTRAG would be happy to meet with you and your 
colleagues to discuss the issues if helpful. 

Noted  

ID: 175358522 Mentions reaching those members of society who are 
'seldom involved' but how? No detail on how you 
intend to enable the public better. 

Noted, we will consider adding more about the 
methods used for engaging with seldom heard 
groups.  

Add more 
detail on 
possible ways 
to engage eg 
forums 

ID: 175795051 Another example of redundant information for the 
reader/user - you have already asked this in the 
previous question. 

Noted  

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 175817477 Page 39 (Glossary)  
Typo – ‘omes’ 
 

Noted and corrected Correct ‘omes’ 
typo on Page 
39. 

ID: 175966398 Community involvement is very internet based and will 
miss residents who do not use/ have access to the 
internet.  

Site notices and letters are used to notify those who 
are likely to be directly affected by a proposal.  

 

ID: 176006820 Section 3.10: time given to respond to applications 
should be more than minimum 21 days. Suggest for 
major applications it should be 2 calendar months. 

The consultation period of 21 days is set out in 
legislation.  

 

ID: 176324517 We have encountered significant delays re. certain 
action and decision making. Understand that these 
delays are driven by lack of resource in the relevant 
department.  

Noted, we endeavour to respond within our stated 
timeframes.  

 

ID: 176389843 The concept of Community Involvement is irrelevant 
when set against the resources of developers. 

The councils read and give careful consideration to 
all comments received. 

 

ID: 176623917 Good but too long for most people. We have, as concisely as possible, provided all the 
information needed and have used diagrams and 
flow charts to supplement the text 

 

ID: 176623728 Consultation on planning applications is not 
transparent. Discussions take place prior to 
applications being made yet not with those people 
directly affected. large developments are not known 
about until an application is made. No evidence in the 
SCI that this is considered. 

Pre-application discussions between the council 
and applicant are encouraged and have many 
benefits.  Information provided as part of a pre-
application advice request is treated as confidential 
until a related formal planning application is 
received. Once our response will be made public. 

 

ID: 176737883 Paragraph 3.10 
There have been delays between the date an 
application is allocated to a planning officer and it 
being publicised on the council's online application 
register for public comment reducing the time for 
interested parties to comment. 

 
Noted this will be passed on to the relevant team 
 
 
Step 5 on p27 states “if an application is formally 
amended to address any planning issues raised, we 
may consult again if we think the changes may 

 

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/planning-permission-how-it-works/pre-application-planning-advice/


Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

Consider automatically notifying when new or 
amended documents are uploaded.  

affect different neighbours or if new issues might be 
raised”. 

ID: 176744593 Too much is discussed and decided behind closed 
doors. The general public have no confidence or belief 
that their voices will be heard and taken into account. 
 

The councils’ constitutions set out how decisions 
are made and the procedures the councils follow to 
ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. 

 

ID: 176747450 No. Noted  

ID: 176920974 Information on how internal consultation on planning 
is handled and reviewed would be useful to inform 
public engagement in the planning process. 

Comments made on planning applications by other 
officers of the council are uploaded on to the 
website with all public comments.  

 

ID: 176916499 Digital consultation has limited the involvement of 
those without access to the internet.  
 
Due to the temporary measures expiring on 31st 
December 2021, the Committee hope that paper 
documents are reintroduced, especially for larger 
applications which are difficult to interpret on a small 
screen 

We will continue to use different methods, including 
digital to engage, recognising that this does not 
work for everyone and other methods will also be 
needed   
 
Noted 

 

ID: 176918135 No further comments. Noted  

ID: 176942204 Continue engaging local communities. Noted  

ID: 175704669 See previous documentation. Noted  

ID: 176984903 Missed out the importance of encouraging developers 
to engage with local residents and businesses before 
they submit their application.  

Para 3.30 – 3.34 covers pre-application advice and 
encourages early engagement with the local 
community and key stakeholders.  

 

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 176857965 Would like the SCI to demonstrate commitment to 
using some of the more innovative forms of 
engagement and reaching out to a wider section of the 
community. 
 
The 2020 Corporate Plan commits you to “seek to 
ensure the creation of community liaison groups to 
form part of all early stages of development planning” 
this doesn’t appear in the draft SCI  
 
An example of good intent would have been to invite 
the community to engage with the SCI before it was 
drafted rather than presenting us with what looks like 
the finished article. 

We are committed to reviewing our methods of 
engagement including the use of digital 
technologies.  
 
Noted, we will consider adding some additional text 
about the use of forums.  
 
 
 
We welcome feedback on the draft document and 
will take all comments into account and make 
necessary changes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Add text on 
forums 

ID: 177008678 No. Noted  

ID: 177039688 No. Noted  

ID: 177045932 The email contains pages of detail about procedures, 
which must have taken hours of input into the system 
at considerable cost, but no details about the draft 
SCI. Could you not save much time and cost by 
providing these details for us to comment upon rather 
than doing a tick box exercise. 

Unclear what this comment means  

ID: 177083289 (Generic email response from Marine Authority – 
no comments on the SCI) 

Noted  

ID: 177094503 South and Vale Council areas lie outside the defined 
coalfield and therefore the Coal Authority has no 
specific comments to make on your Local Plans / 
SPDs etc. 
 

Noted  

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

ID: 177094866 National Highways has reviewed the consultation and 
have no comments 

Noted  

ID: 177098423 1.3 Both links are to the South corporate plan. No link 
to the Vale plan. 
 
1.6 TThe typo 
 
Be clear that paper copies will only be provided at 
specified locations, and paper will not otherwise be 
used. Suggest committing to making electronic 
access available at specified locations for use by 
people without internet access. 
 
Not clear why the sentence about focus groups. If they 
will be used, please be more precise. 
 
Status and role of databases needs better definition. 
If you ask to be added to the databases it is not clear 
what will happen, and on what you will be consulted. 
If you receive details of nearby planning application, 
the email has no link for unsubscribe, nor a link to 
update preferences. 
 
Does the legislation allow for a Development Plan to 
cover more than one District, or will there end up being 
two plans, prepared jointly? 
 
Diagram 1 after 2.7 
More detail needed about how representations are 
reviewed and incorporated into the plan.. 
 

Noted, link will be added 
 
 
Noted 
 
We are required in legislation to provide paper 
copies (when not covered by temporary measures). 
We are fully supportive of digital engagement and 
reducing paper use, but also need to consider the 
needs of those who cannot use the internet.   
 
Noted, we will add more text to explain focus groups 
 
Noted this will be passed on to the communications 
team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes, legislation allows for plans to cover more than 
one district.  
 
 
The consultation statement will include the number 
of responses received to a consultation and where 
respondents could choose their level of agreement 
to a statement a breakdown will be provided. A 

Add hyperlink 
to the Vale 
corporate 
plan. 
Correct ‘The’ 
typo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
 
2.12 
The Vale link uses http: instead of https: 
Inconsistent terminology. Most of the rest of the 
document just refers to Vale and South. E.g. see 2.9 
 
Diagram 6 after 2.26 
Muddled diagram - does not describe any 
hierarchy.Includes a cog for OX-CAM arch, which is 
not mentioned in the text.  
 
2.29 
A link to the Duty to Cooperate would be useful along 
with a list of neighbouring councils 
 
2.29 
“including neighbouring councils 1.” This footnote link 
does not work 
 
2.29 accordsnce typo 
 
2.31-2.35 Repetition of consulting goals outlined in 
1.16 – 1.9 
 
Table after 2.35 Please could all Tables be numbered. 
 
2.36 Preferring use of the online survey is often a 
means of restricting comment. Free format comment 
(such as this document) should be encouraged. 
 

summary of the all the comments will be provided 
and an officer response to the comments.  
 
 
 
 
 
Noted – we will consider removing this diagram as 
it is not best placed in the SCI. 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
Noted 
 
Noted, we will consider consolidating this text. 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
Noted 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consider 
adding 
neighbouring 
authorities as 
an appendix 
Fix hyperlink 
in footnote. 
Correct 
‘accodsnce’ 
typo. 
 
 
Give all tables 
a table 
number. 
 
 
 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
2.39 should state the District Council’s commitment to 
a detailed report at least every three months and not 
be satisfied with ‘regularly publish’. 
 
3.3 'major', 'minor' and 'other' are categories of 
applications not types.  
 
Clarification needed as to which applications are for 
public consultation & which ones are just for public 
information.  
 
Particularly useful would be details of the purpose of 
Scoping and Screening applications and what 
consultation is involved with these 
 
Email Alerts. The links for signing up for alerts do not 
work. 
 
3.5 Second table Statutory Bodies 
Suggest “the planning practice guidance” is 
expanded, to “the national planning practice guidance 
(NPPG)”. 
 
3.5 Second table Town and Parish councils 
Clarify under what circumstances paper copies will be 
provided to Parish Councils.  
 
Table after 3.9 Middle paragraph starting “We provide 
guidance on how to comment on planning applications 
on our websites.” Implies that if amendments require 

 
 
 
AMR’s are published annually 
 
 
 
 
Noted, we will amend this 
 
 
 
Noted. The SCI needs to cover local plan 
preparation and planning applications. Adding 
further detail would increase the length of the 
document 
 
 
This could be added to an appendix 
 
 
 
Noted. 
 
 
Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3: Change 
type to 
category 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Add links to 
sign up for 
planning 
alerts. 
 
Consistently 
refer to the 
PPG as the 
national 
planning 
practice 
guidance. 

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

another consultation, earlier comments are not 
considered/ need to be resubmitted.  
 
3.12-3.14 Needs something on how decisions are 
communicated where S106’s are still to be agreed.  
 
3.15 Information provided in this paragraph is too 
‘thin’.  
 
 
3.17 Please bring Vale time limit of 3 mins in line with 
the 5 mins in South.  
 
 
 
3.23 & 3.25 
Links do not work (mailto:) 
3.28 We do not consult on Section 106 agreements. 
This is bad. S106 is the one area where the 
community can see some benefit from a development 
and where there is almost no scope for engagement 
and consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.35 – 3.38 Monitoring and enforcement needed to 
make sure development is carried out in conformity 
with planning permission.  

Parish councils are not routinely provided with paper 
copies.  
 
 
In that table it states : “if an amendment is made to 
a current application, comments originally submitted 
are taken into account and do not need to be made 
again” 
 
 
 
Please refer to the relevant application on the 
website 
 
 
Further information on delegated powers and 
planning committees can be found on our websites 
and in the councils’ constitutions 
 
Noted and passed on to democratic services. The 
process at planning committee is provided for in the 
councils’ constitutions and cannot be 
amended through the SCI. 
 
Noted and amended 
 
Para 2.8 states that “we work with town and parish 
councils and local district councillors, to find out 
which community facilities may be impacted by new 
development or that require investment as a result 
of the development. Once we have a Section 106 

Fix the 
hyperlink if it 
is not working.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Check all links 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fix hyperlinks 
in 3.23 and 
3.25. 
 
 

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Glossary 
Major Developments 
"Applications for developments of 10 or more omes, 
....." should be "homes" 
 
Clarification is requested for each type of application 
listed on the search function about the consultation 
involved: 
Full consultation / information only / no notification 
For Statutory Bodies / Parish councils / General Public 

agreement in place and the development has 
commenced, we will notify town and parish councils 
or parish meetings of the sums available for 
identified community facilities and provide an 
update to them on a six-monthly basis 
 
Carrying out development without planning 
permission includes breaches of planning 
permission – or not building in accordance with 
approved plans. This would be investigated in line 
with our enforcement statement. Details on 
enforcement are covered in an enforcement 
statement and do form part of the SCI 
 
Noted 
 
Noted 
 
This would make the document longer and goes 
beyond what the SCI needs to cover 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Fix hyperlinks. 
 
 
Fix hyperlinks.  
 
 
 
Correct ‘omes’ 
typo 

ID: 177099691 Changes should be made to the designation of Minor 
for developments of up to 9 homes to be changed to 
Major in an AONB all three planning categories 
(Major/Minor and Other) to be considered as Major. 
 
Do the planning authorities retain photographic dated 
records of a site notice? 
 

The categories of planning application 
(Major/minor) are prescribed by Government and 
cannot be changed through the SCI.  
 
 
A photo is taken of the site notice and kept on 
record.  
 

 

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

Minimum notification buffer: minimum range of 5 
metres is inadequate and consideration should be 
given to properties outside this range but directly 
opposite the development site. Of particular concern 
is proposals in AONB  
 
Page 30 Permitted Development: Why are parish 
councils not notified of permitted development 
proposals?  
 
 
Page 33 Sect 3/10:- Current processing of 
applications does not always allow sufficient time for 
a parish council to meet . 21 days is not sufficient, site 
notices are hit and miss 
 
 
 
 
No mention of how to ensure a cohesive approach to 
infrastructure needs, the document does not present 
an opportunity to respond to the “wider picture” 
required for planning issues  
 
 
 
 
 
 

This sets out the minimum. Where proposal may 
directly affect we will consult more widely as our 
discretion.  
 
 
 
There is no opportunity to comment on permitted 
development proposal 
 
 
 
The 21 day period is set out in article 15 of the Town 
and County Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order 
 
Email alerts and the weekly list are useful tools for 
finding out about planning applications.  
 
 
The SCI sets out how we will engage 
with the local community on planning documents 
and planning applications. Expanding the document 
to cover more general planning matters would not 
be appropriate. How the councils will respond to 
planning issues will be covered in other planning 
documents such as the joint local plan.  
 
Noted 
 
 
 

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

Planning application register for SODC: each planning 
application should be presented in a consistent and 
logical order/clearly labelled  
 
No means for public to access an “easy to read” 
annual report as to how the District Council has spent 
CIL monies.  
 
Concerns expressed at creation of a Joint Local Plan 
when the former only adopted its Local Plan for 2035 
in December 2020. Also refer to the current 
consultations for the Oxford Plan 2050/Ox-Cam ARC/ 
the many Neighbourhood Plans being formed 
throughout Oxfordshire  
 
Parish councils would welcome an improved planning 
system with District authorities working to create an 
inclusive partnership - not the current negative 
environment  
Officers do not wish a parish council’s objection to 
realise an automatic referral to a planning committee 
-. A Parish council representative at such a meeting 
being restricted to 5 minutes to support the submitted 
objection but the applicant allowed 15 minutes to 
speak – all of which negates the endeavours 
undertaken by parish councils on behalf of local 
residents.  

See the councils’ websites for detail on how CIL 
monies are spent and recorded. This is covered in 
detail in the SCI.  
 
Noted, these comments do not relate specifically to 
the SCI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted. These matters relate to the councils’ 
constitutions and are not in the remit of the SCI.  

ID: 177101554  
 
 
 

Note this comment is very long and detailed and has 
been heavily summarised where possible.  
 

 

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

Need to have greater transparency for those decisions 
made about unauthorised development and be wary 
of officer delegation for such cases. Should be a 
referral to the Planning Committee. If reported to 
Planning Committee, time limit of 3 minutes is too 
short.  
 
5. Planning officers should be limited in use of 
delegated decision-making powers for amendments 
when decisions would normally be addressed during 
the main planning assessment. This should apply 
even when single third-party objections remain 
(currently allowed) under the scheme of delegation.  
 
Local research work should take place during the 
Local Plan work programme, starting from first 
principles, often poorly evidenced 
7. Citizens have the right to be informed about policy 
formulation in the Local Plan including its evidence.  
 
8. References for Urban Design guidelines and 
Building Design Guides must not exclude Building 
Services equipment.  
 
9. No reason why any development management 
guidelines and scheme of officer delegation should 
not be subject to public scrutiny prior to decisions 
about them and be regularly reviewed. 

This is covered in an enforcement statement rather 
than in the SCI. 
 
 
 
 
 
If an amendment is made to a current application, 
comments originally submitted are taken into 
account and do not need to be made again 
 
 
 
 
The local plan is supported by a robust evidence 
base. This comment does not relate to the SCI  
Noted and agreed 
 
 
 
 
Noted.  
 
 
This comment relates to the councils’ constitutions 

ID: 177102219 1. SODC's website application management system is 
deficient  
 

Noted and comment passed on  
 
 

 

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

2.The process/management of land supply numbers 
has been inadequately managed/grossly mis-
managed resulting in the loss of expensive planning 
appeals. 
 
3. The preparation for and presentation by 'experts' 
appointed and guided by SODC has been poor  

These comments relate to a specific site / case and 
not the SCI which deals with methods of 
consultation.  

ID: 177102407 Communications from the LPA are often unclear and 
assume a level of knowledge not commonly available 
to residents. This statement should make clear how 
this issue will be resolved. E.g. this document 
assumes that everyone knows what a ‘joint local plan’ 
is. Does this mean that housing needs for the two 
separate districts will be combined or met separately? 
 
 Paragraph 1.6: What feedback will be given to those 
submitting comments in this consultation? How will we 
know if any notice is taken of the comments? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Paragraph 1.15 & Paragraph 1.16  
Many residents do not go to libraries nor pass 
community notice boards so it is important that 
information which affects residents is still delivered to 
their homes. 

A glossary is included to help explain technical 
terms.  
 
Housing Needs will be dealt with through the joint 
local plan and is not covered in the SCI. 
 
 
 
 A consultation statement is prepared after formal 
consultations that sets out how engagement was 
undertaken, what the responses were and how the 
responses have been considered. The consultation 
statement will include the number of responses 
received to a consultation and where respondents 
could choose their level of agreement to a statement 
a breakdown will be provided. A summary of the all 
the comments will be provided and how we propose 
to respond to the comments.   
 
We use several methods to communicate with 
residents and are always looking to improve. We are 
also trying to reduce paper use where possible.   
 
There is no definitive list of “deposit locations”, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
 Can you provide a list of “deposit locations”? 
 
 
 
 
 
It should still be possible to sign up for consultations 
and be communicated with by mail (post).  
 
 
 
Involvement seems to mean submitting comments 
which the council may ignore. 
 
 
 
There is no explanation of how the community can get 
involved in decisions about how CIL funds are spent. 
 
 
No mention made of Oxfordshire Growth Needs 
Assessment  
 
 
Unclear how residents register their interest except by 
providing an email online. How can residents asked to 
be contacted by post? 
 
Diagram in paragraph 2.35 states “we may consult 
consultees that are registered on our general 

though these are typically libraries within the 
district and sometimes other public buildings. The 
location and number of deposit locations will depend 
on the type of document/s being consulted on and 
where it is appropriate to make copies available. 
 
Where possible we are trying to reduce paper 
usage. If a residents cannot access the internet or 
emails we will send a letter to notify them of 
consultations.  
 
The councils read all responses to consultations 
and gives them careful consideration. The councils 

have to consider a number of factors in progressing 
with policy documents and determining 
applications. Consultation is one of the key factors 
 
Further details about how CIL monies are allocated 
and reported on can be found on the councils’ 
websites.  
 
This is not an issue to be considered in the SCI. This 
will be considered as part of the Oxfordshire Plan 
and local plans.  
 
Please call the planning service number 01235 
422425. 
 
It will depend on the type of planning document 
being consulted on and the scope of that document. 
Officers will take a view.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

consultation database if we think they may have an 
interest in the consultation” who makes the decision 
that they have an interest and on what basis is this 
decision made? 
 
Table in paragraph 3.4 should be expanded to include 
a paragraph in step 2 stating that neighbouring 
households can contact their District Councillor with 
any concerns/questions. 
 
Table in paragraph 3.4 should be expanded to include 
the fact that the application can go to committee if 
there are material planning reasons. A list of what 
constitutes material planning reasons would be useful. 
 
16) Diagram in paragraph 3.5: “If you’re interested in 
planning applications in your area (postcode), you can 
sign up for email alerts” this does not meet the aims in 
Paragraph 1.13. It should still be possible to sign up 
for alerts and be communicated with by mail. 
 
If there will be significant traffic impact, a large building 
or a major development, shouldn’t the consultation be 
wider? 
 
 
 
Paragraph 3.15 should include role of councillors and 
that a Councillor can “call in” an application. No 
mention is made of the obligation of the individual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
This is not considered necessary.  
 
 
 
This is included in the table on p32 with a link to the 
website for further information.  
 
 
 
The councils are trying to reduce printing as part of 
our commitment to tackle the Climate Emergency. 
We will send neighbour notification letters by post 
where there is no email address 
 
 
As stated on p28 where proposed new development 
is likely to affect more properties than those that are 
immediately adjacent to the boundary of the site 
(e.g. ‘major’ applications), wider consultation may 
be carried out. 
 
These points are covered further in the councils’ 
constitutions which set out the procedures the 
councils follow for committee. This is not covered in 
the SCI. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

district councillor to call in an application if an 
individual or the town or parish council requests it. 
 
What grounds does the councillor or chairman have 
for refusing to call in an application? 
 
 Paragraph 3.17 states that someone can speak for 
up to three minutes (at Vale of White Horse planning 
committees) or five minutes (at South Oxfordshire). 
Why is this different?  
 
23) Paragraph 3.17 - 'planning committee 
arrangements can change' – please define in what 
manner arrangements can change. If a member of 
public is down to speak and so far their 
communication has been in writing as they are not on-
line, how will changes be communicated to them? 
 
24) Paragraph 3.21 spells practice without a “c”. 
 
25) Paragraph 3.28 does not make clear how 
community groups can be assured that the 
District/Town/Parish council will cascade info about 
S106 and methods of applying for funds.  
 
26) The status of S106 contributions (already paid, still 
available, ringfenced) should be updated regularly by 
the District Council and communicated to the 
town/parish councils. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the unlikely event of a last minute change we will 
endeavour to make contact by any reasonable 
means we can to make contact.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Detail about S106 is not included in the SCI. We do 
not consult on S106.  
 
 
We will notify town and parish councils or parish 
meetings of the sums available for identified 
community facilities and provide an update to them 
on a six-monthly basis 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Check for typo 
in practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Typo – 3.21 
practise  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

27) Section on Pre‐application advice states that any 
pre‐application advice letters between the applicant 
and the council will be disclosed when the application 
is formally submitted. No mention is made of notes of 
any discussions held either by phone or face to face 
meetings.  
 
28) No mention of the enforcement of CIL and S106 
commitments. These should be included. 
 
29) Material reasons for objecting to a planning 
application should be included in the glossary. 
 
30) No mention of development forums. We have 
found the development forums for Crab Hill and Grove 
Airfield a useful way of providing communication 
channels between the community and the developer. 
Suggest that these should be made a formal part of 
the process for any large development where 
applications involve /are part of a large scheme of 
more than 200 dwellings 

We normally publish the meeting notes if they are 
produced instead of the letter, often a letter is done 
following the meeting(s). 
 
 
 
 
This is not directly relevant to the SCI.  
 
 
This is covered on our website and a link is provided 
 
 
Noted. Further detail will be included on forums.  

 
Add that 
meeting notes 
are published 
when 
available 
 
 
 
Include further 
information on 
use of forums 
 
 
 

ID: 177103094 Natural England are unable to comment, in detail, on 
individual Statements of Community Involvement but 
information on the planning service we offer, including 
advice on how to consult us, can be found on our 
website. 

Noted  

ID: 177103341 Key sustainability objective for the preparation of 
Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans should be for 
new development to be co-ordinated with the 
infrastructure it demands and consider the capacity of 
existing infrastructure. 

This point relates to a matter of policy. The SCI sets 
out how the LPA will engage with the community on 
planning documents. Representations regarding 
policy will need to be made on the appropriate 
document and at the appropriate time. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
 
Thames Water (TW) consider that the specific 
consultation bodies should be identified, including 
identification of relevant water and sewerage 
undertaker, in the SCI. TW consider it would also be 
helpful if the specific sewerage/water undertakers 
covering the area are listed i.e. TW. 
 
Adequate time should be allowed for TW to consider 
options/ proposals so that an informed response can 
be formulated.  
 
Realistic consultation periods with water and 
sewerage undertakers will need to be taken account 
of in the preparation of the Local Plan.  
 
Important that Thames Water are consulted early 
regarding Neighbourhood Plans and their impact on 
water supply and sewerage capacity. 
 
TW would expect to be consulted on most major 
planning applications.  
 
TW support the reference at paragraph 3.34 to 
encouraging applicants to consult TW 
 

 
Noted.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please liaise with the councils at the relevant time 
to discuss engagement on the local plan if it is felt 
further time is needed. 
 
Noted. The SCI sets out how the LPA will engage 
with the local community and key stakeholders such 
as Thames Water. 
 
The remaining points relate to a matter of policy. 
The SCI sets out how the LPA will engage with the 
community on planning documents. 
Representations regarding policy will need to be 
made on the appropriate document and at the 
appropriate time 
 
Noted 

 
 
 
 
We will 
consider 
adding an 
appendix of 
statutory 
consultees 

ID: 177106933 SODC registering applications for discharging 
conditions is difficult to find online and is not good 
practice 
 

This comment relates to specific case.  
 
Discharge of condition applications generally 
relate to technical issues; therefore, the LPA 

 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 12



Name/ 
Organisation/ 
Comment ID 
 

Comment Summary Officer Response Proposed 
Modification (if 
any) 

 
It is wrong and undesirable for officers to be able to 
take decisions in circumstances where:  
 
1. There has been a highly material change in 
circumstances That information should be highlighted 
in the officers report and was not mentioned. 
 

will undertake consultation with the relevant 
technical consultee where necessary. 
 
 
This comment will be passed on.  
 
 

 

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 12



Statement of 
Community Involvement

DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

SEPTEMBER 2021
Page 145

Agenda Item 12



1

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

1.  INTRODUCTION                   2

WHAT IS A STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT?                                       3

OUR VISION AND VALUES FOR COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT                           4

OUR METHODS OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT                                                     5

2.  PLANNING POLICY                                                                                                6

POLICY DOCUMENTS WE PREPARE AND HOW YOU CAN GET INVOLVED           7

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING                                                                             13

CONSULTATION ON PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS                                     20

MONITORING OF PLANNING POLICIES                                                               24

LOOKING AHEAD                                                                                                      24

3.  DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT                                                                26

CONSULTATION ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS                                                  28

PLANNING APPEALS                                                                                                      34

SECTION 106 (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS)                                                                35

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE                                                                                         35

 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT                                                                                          36

GLOSSARY                                                                                                                   37

Page 146

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

2

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

1.  INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Statement of Community Involvement sets out the overall approach we take to 
involving the community with land use planning. 

1.2 As residents, businesses and organisations within the local community, we want 
you to feel empowered to get involved with planning should you wish to. We aim to 
work positively and proactively with local communities to make sure:

• you are fully informed 

• you feel involved in the decision-making process

• you have timely and meaningful opportunities to have a say. 

1.3 The district councils have a significant role in shaping our built environment. As the 
Local Planning Authorities, we are responsible for making planning decisions in the 
districts. We have made a commitment in our South and Vale Corporate Plans to 
ensure this is done successfully and in a way that is in the local communities’ best 
interests. 

1.4 This draft Statement of Community Involvement is a joint one covering both South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district councils, and will replace the existing 
Statements of Community Involvement for each district. We have decided to 
produce a joint Statement of Community Involvement because the councils are now 
working together to prepare a joint local plan. 

1.5 This draft Statement of Community Involvement is being made available for 
comment for a six-week period from 8th September to 20th October 2021.  By 
consulting on this document, we are providing an opportunity for local communities, 
businesses and other relevant stakeholders to comment on the process and 
methods that we intend to use across the planning service.

1.6 Once the consultation has ended we will review all the comments received and 
make any necessary changes. TThe Statement of Community Involvement will be 
adopted by both councils, expected to happen in December 2021, and we will then 
carry out consultation on planning policy document and planning applications in line 
with the processes set out in the document.

Page 147

Agenda Item 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2020/11/SODC-Corporate-Plan-2020.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2020/11/SODC-Corporate-Plan-2020.pdf


3

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

WHAT IS A STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT?

1.7 A Statement of Community Involvement explains when, how, and why you 
will be invited to participate in planning related issues, such as plan making, 
neighbourhood plans and planning applications. 

1.8 National Planning Practice Guidance issued by central Government sets out that 
Statements of Community Involvement must be reviewed every five years.  Each 
time, we review our consultation methods to ensure that we engage effectively with 
local communities at all key stages of the planning process. Technology is opening 
new ways to get involved in planning, which we have added in this review. We have 
also updated our practices to take account of the COVID-19 pandemic and the 
need to keep our communities safe.  

Page 148

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

4

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

OUR VISION AND VALUES FOR COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

1.9 We want you to have the opportunity to make a real and lasting difference to the 
areas where they live and work. We value involvement from the community in local 
plan preparation and in planning applications. 

1.10 Our vision is for consultation to be fair, equal, meaningful and worthwhile.

1.11 We will do this by:

• involving you in all formal stages of plan making and wherever 
possible ensure early involvement in the preparation of our planning policy 
documents, so that you are involved from the start

• make information available, raise awareness of planning matters and 
ensure people are kept up to date at all relevant stages

• analyse responses carefully and, where appropriate, provide clear 
feedback to participants after an engagement exercise within a published 
timescale. Where possible, this will include changes we have made as a 
result of comments

1.12 We will do this while complying with all legislation that is currently in force or that 
comes into force in the future. All data that we store and publish will be compliant 
with the councils’ data protection policy.

1.13 We are committed to equality and ensuring that everyone has access to our 
services. We comply with the Equalities Act 2010 and the Human Rights 
Act 1998 and have developed a Corporate Equality Policy which sets out 
our commitment to equality in everything we do. As active members of The 
Consultation Institute we are committed to the Consultation Charter, which 
encourages high standards of engagement and consultation. 

1.14 In line with best practice, we aim to: 

• use Plain English in our documents and consultation

• reduce the use of planning jargon

• increase meaningful engagement

• improve how we use online technology and social media platforms

• live-stream and record meetings where possible

• reach out to all sectors and age groups, including those who are ‘seldom 

Page 149

Agenda Item 12

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/03/Corporate-Equality-Policy-1.docx
https://www.consultationinstitute.org/
https://www.consultationinstitute.org/


5

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

heard’

• be transparent and clear about the planning process, what is being 
proposed and the scope for you to influence the outcome

• improve the style and accessibility of our documents.

OUR METHODS OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

1.15 We will use the most appropriate methods to consult and engage local residents, 
businesses, organisations and statutory consultees to ensure that engagement is 
proportionate and meaningful. We will combine written methods like emails, online 
technology (including our website and social media), and face-to-face methods. 

1.16 We will make consultation documents available to view in hard copy in selected 
deposit locations, such as local libraries, across the districts. We will use posters 
and put them up in libraries, community noticeboards and other venues as 
appropriate. We may also use focus groups, workshops, meetings (face to face and 
virtual) and the telephone to engage with communities.

 REGISTER FOR UPDATES 

1.17 We use tools like press releases and social media to let people know when we are 
consulting on planning policies. To make sure you don’t miss out on consultation 
news, you can register on the council’s ‘have your say’ consultation database to 
hear from us directly. Here are some examples of the types of information you might 
receive:

• If you sign up to the general consultation database you will receive 
notifications on a wide range of council matters and policies for example, 
car parking, homelessness and rough sleeping, taxi licensing, council tax 
and the Corporate Plans. 

• If you sign up to the planning policy consultation database you will 
hear about planning consultations and find out how to get involved in the 
development of planning policies and documents, for example the joint 
local plan.

1.18 The councils’ consultation databases are kept in accordance with General Data 
Protection Regulations. Please sign up if you would like to be registered to either of 
our consultation databases.

Page 150

Agenda Item 12

https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/consultationsignup/


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

6

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

1.19 If you change your mind and do not wish to receive updates from us, you 
can always opt out. Please note, we may still need to contact you for certain 
consultations if we have a legal obligation to do so.

2.  PLANNING POLICY

2.1 Planning policies are prepared and implemented by the district councils to guide 
where, when and how development can take place. Planning policies are found in 
a variety of policy documents which all make up both district’s Development Plans. 
The Development Plan is then used to determine planning applications.

2.2 Development Plans set out a vision and a planning framework for future 
development of an area. Development Plan Documents include local plans and 
neighbourhood plans. They often cover topics such as:

• safeguarding the environment (eg. climate mitigation, renewable energy, 
sustainable construction)

• community facilities

• infrastructure 

• high quality design

• the economy (including how much office/research/business space is 
needed and where) 

• housing (how many homes are planned for and where).

2.3 The statutory stages in the preparation of these documents are set out in the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

2.4 The councils have produced a timeline for preparing all of our planning policy 
documents - the Joint Local Development Scheme. It is regularly updated so 
people are aware of upcoming opportunities to participate in the preparation of 
planning policy documents. 

Page 151

Agenda Item 12

https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/Remove/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/our-development-plan/local-development-scheme/


7

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

POLICY DOCUMENTS WE PREPARE                                     
AND HOW YOU CAN GET INVOLVED

 LOCAL PLAN 

2.5 Local plans are tools used in guiding decisions about individual development 
proposals, from large scale new housing sites to a single new home or extension. 
local plans generally plan ahead for at least the next 15-20 years. 

2.6 All local authorities are required to have an up-to-date local plan (no more than five 
years old). 

2.7 We are working to produce a joint local plan that will cover both South Oxfordshire 
and Vale of White Horse districts. The joint local plan, when finished and adopted, 
will replace the existing South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 and the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031 Parts 1 and 2. It will become part of the Development Plan 
for both districts. 

The key stages of preparing a local plan and when you can get involved are:

• Plan Preparation (Regulation 18)

This stage includes public consultation for a minimum of six weeks on a 
draft plan. There can be more than one consultation during this stage as 
the plan develops.

• Plan Publication (Regulation 19)

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of six weeks 
on the proposed policies that will be in the plan. 

• Plan Examination (Regulation 24)

The plan is examined by an independent planning Inspector. During the 
examination process the Inspector will review the comments submitted 
during the Regulation 19 consultation. People who have made 
comments can ask to participate in the local plan hearings. 

• Plan Adoption (Regulation 26)

The plan is formally adopted by the council(s). The plan becomes part of 
the development plan and is used to determine planning applications. 

These key stages are shown in Diagram 1 

Page 152

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

8

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 1: Key stages of preparing a local plan 

Community
Involvement

Representation
and 
participation

Regulation 
18*

Regulation 
19*

Regulation 
26*

Regulation 
24*

Regulation 
22*

* The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Pre - production stage 
- evidence gathering

Public participation on content, scope 
and/or preferred options (minimum six weeks)

Representations received

Preparation of plan

Publication of plan 
(minimum six week consultation)

Submission of plan to Secretary of State 

Examination by Independent Planning Inspector 
(appointed by Secretary of State)

Adoption of fi nal plan by Full Council

Monitoring and Review 

Page 153

Agenda Item 12



9

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS  

2.8 Supplementary planning documents, also known as SPDs, add further detail to 
policies in a local plan. They can provide further guidance about development 
on specific allocated sites, or on particular issues, such as design or affordable 
housing. They help explain how the policy should be implemented but cannot be 
used to set out new policy. SPDs can generally be produced in a shorter period 
of time than a local plan because, although they go through a formal consultation 
stage, there is no examination by a planning inspector. 

2.9 More information on SPDs for South and Vale can be found on our websites.

2.10 As with local plans the statutory requirements for preparing supplementary planning 
documents are set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 and summarised below. 

• Supplementary planning document preparation 

In this stage the councils work on preparing a draft supplementary 
planning document 

• Public consultation on draft supplementary planning document 
(Regulation 13)

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of four weeks 
on the draft document

• Review of consultation responses 

In this stage the council will consider all the comments received during 
the consultation and make any changes to the supplementary planning 
document. The council will produce a statement summarising the main 
issues raised during consultation and how they have been addressed. 

• Adoption of supplementary planning document (Regulation 14)

The supplementary planning document is formally adopted by the 
council(s) and becomes a material consideration in planning decisions

This process is summarised in the following diagram 2:  

Page 154

Agenda Item 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/our-development-plan/spds-and-spgs/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/supplementary-planning-documents/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

10

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 2: Key stages of preparing a supplementary planning document 

Community
Involvement

Regulation 
13*

Regulation
14*

* The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Pre - production stage – evidence 
gathering and early engagment

Prepare draft SPD

Consultation on draft SPD (minimum 4 weeks)

Changes made to refl ect representations 
following the consultation

Adoption of fi nal SPD by Cabinet 
or Cabinet member

Page 155

Agenda Item 12



11

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 

2.11 The Community Infrastructure Levy is a charge that developers pay to councils to 
contribute towards the cost of infrastructure. Developers pay the levy based on the 
amount of floor space created in their developments. The money collected through 
the levy can be spent on a wide range of projects such as transport schemes, 
community facilities, parks and leisure facilities.

2.12 Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire district councils are both classed as 
‘charging authorities’ and so we charge CIL on certain types of development that 
are carried out in this area. A CIL charging schedule sets out how much the charges 
are, and the types of development that are charged. 

2.13 The statutory process for preparing or updating a CIL charging schedule is set 
out in the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended) and can be 
summarised as:

• Preliminary draft charging schedule is prepared by the council

During this stage the council gather evidence and draft a charging 
schedule 

• Consultation on the preliminary draft charging schedule (Regulation 
15)

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of four weeks 
on the preliminary draft charging schedule.

• Publication of draft charging schedule (Regulation 16)

Once the council has reviewed the Regulation 15 consultation 
responses and made any changes needed, the draft charging schedule 
is then published for a further public consultation of a minimum of four 
weeks.  

• Examination of the charging schedule (Regulation 21)

The charging schedule is examined by an independent examiner. 
During the examination process the examiner will review the comments 
submitted during the Regulation 16 consultation.

• Approval of charging schedule (Regulation 25)

In this stage the final charging schedule is approved and published by 
the council. The new charges can then come into force.

These key stages are shown in diagram 3.

Page 156

Agenda Item 12

http:////www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-draft-charging-schedule/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/community-support/infrastructure-to-support-communities/community-infrastructure-levy-or-cil-header-page/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-payments-and-procedures/cil-charging-schedule/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

12

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 3: Key stages of preparing a Community Infrastructure Levy charging  

schedule

Community
Involvement

Regulation 
15*

Regulation 
16*

Regulation 
25*

* The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

Regulation 
21*

Pre - production stage 
- evidence gathering

Consultation on Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule (minimum four weeks) 

Respond to representations on Draft Charging
Schedule and make any necessary changes

Publish Draft Charging Schedule 
for consultation (minimum four weeks) 

     Examination by Independent
Planning Examiner 

Approval and publication of a 
Charging Schedule by Full Council

Page 157

Agenda Item 12



13

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING 

2.14 Neighbourhood planning is a way for local people and communities to take a lead 
on planning for the future of their area. Neighbourhood planning can be led by a 
town or parish council or by a designated neighbourhood forum. 

2.15 Neighbourhood plans set out the vision, objectives and planning policies that shape 
development in a local area. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district 
councils both support neighbourhood planning and we have dedicated officers to 
help communities prepare their own plans. A neighbourhood plan has the same 
legal status as a local plan (and other documents that form part of the development 
plan) once it has been approved at a referendum. At this point it comes into force as 
part of the development plan. 

The key stages in preparing a neighbourhood plan and where communities can get 
involved are:

• Council approves a Neighbourhood Area application (Regulation 6)

A Neighbourhood Area application is submitted to the council by a 
neighbourhood planning group. This stage includes public consultation 
for a minimum of four weeks if the proposed Neighbourhood Area falls 
outside the parish boundary. Once the Neighbourhood Area is approved 
by the council work can start on preparing a neighbourhood plan. 

• Pre-submission consultation (Regulation 14)

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of six weeks 
on the draft neighbourhood plan. The plan is then submitted to the 
council.

• Publication of neighbourhood plan (Regulation 16)

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of six weeks 
on the neighbourhood plan. The plan is then sent to an independent 
examiner.

• Examination of the neighbourhood plan 

The plan is examined by an independent examiner. During the 
examination process the examiner will review the comments submitted 
during the Regulation 16 consultation. 

• Referendum on the neighbourhood plan

A local referendum is held where voters are asked whether or not the 
neighbourhood plan should come into force. For the plan to be ‘made’ 

Page 158

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

14

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

i.e adopted by the council, at least half of voters must vote ‘yes’

• Plan is made final by Full Council

These key stages are shown in diagram 4.
Diagram 4: Key stages of preparing a neighbourhood plan

Community
Involvement

Community
Involvement

Community
Involvement

Regulation
 6*

Regulation 
14*

Regulation 
16*

* Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

** If more than 50 per cent of people who voted in the referendum supported the  plan, 
the council must adopt it.

Neighbourhood Area Application submitted to 
the council. If outside parish boundary minimum 

four weeks publicity period

Draft Neighbourhood Plan is produced

Pre-submission consultation
(minimum six weeks)

Submission of draft Neighbourhood 
Plan to council

Publication of Neighbourhood Plan
(minimum six weeks)

Submission of Neighbourhood Plan
and responses to Examiner

Independent Examination

Referendum on Neighbourhood Plan

Neighbourhood Plan
made fi nal by Full Council**

Monitoring and review

Page 159

Agenda Item 12



15

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT ORDERS 

2.16 A Neighbourhood Development Order (NDO) is another tool that communities can 
use, this time to permit different types of development without the need for planning 
permission. When preparing a Neighbourhood Development Order, it must still be in 
line with national and local policy and other legal requirements. The town or parish 
council or neighbourhood forum is the only body that can prepare an NDO. Some 
community organisations can develop a Community Right to Build Order in an area. 
A Community Right to Build Order is a form of Neighbourhood Development Order 
that can be created by a local community organisation, and so not restricted to a 
town or parish council or neighbourhood forum and can be used to grant planning 
permission for small scale development for community benefit on a specific site or 
sites in a neighbourhood area. 

The process of developing a NDO and where communities can get involved are set out 
below: 

• A draft Order is prepared 

A draft Order is prepared by the parish council or neighbourhood forum

• Pre-submission consultation on draft Order (Regulation 21) 

This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of six weeks 
on the draft Order.

• Submission of Order to the council (Regulation 22) 

Publication of Order (Regulation 23)

• This stage consists of a public consultation for a minimum of six 
weeks on the Order

The Order is then sent to an independent examiner.

• Examination of the Order (Regulation 25) 

The Order is examined by an independent examiner. During the 
examination process the examiner will review the comments submitted 
during the Regulation 23 consultation. 

• Referendum on the Order

A local referendum is held where voters are asked whether or not the 
Order should come into force. For the order to be ‘made’ by the council, 
at least half of voters must vote ‘yes’

• Order is made final by Full Council (Regulation 26)

This process is shown in diagram 5

Page 160

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

16

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 5: Key stages of preparing a neighbourhood development order

Community
Involvement

Community
Involvement

Community
Involvement

Regulation 
21*

Regulation 
22*

Regulation 
26*

Regulation 
25*

Regulation 
24*

Regulation 
23*

Qualifying body prepares a draft Order

Pre submission consultation on draft Order
(6 weeks)

Submission of draft Order to the coundl

Publication of Order (6 weeks)

Submission of Order and responses to examiner

Independent Examination

Referendum on Order

Neighbourhood Order is made by Full Council

* The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Page 161

Agenda Item 12



17

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING SUPPORT WE OFFER

2.17 We encourage and support local communities wishing to prepare a neighbourhood 
plan or a neighbourhood development order and we have allocated resources to 
help with this. 

2.18 Our dedicated Neighbourhood Planning Team provides support to groups as they 
go through the process of developing their neighbourhood plan or neighbourhood 
development order. We also have a step-by-step neighbourhood plan toolkit online. 

2.19 Our support includes: 

• advice and guidance throughout plan development including an 
introductory meeting to discuss the group’s aims and outline the overall 
process

• a lead officer to attend meetings, where appropriate, and offer expert 
advice 

• advice on how to obtain funding

• advice on external sources of support and guidance that is available to 
groups

• advice on engaging with the local community - including how and why 
groups need to record this

• informing groups which external organisations and statutory bodies will 
need to be consulted

• advice on what evidence is required to help groups write their plan

• running statutory consultations on area designation proposals (where 
appropriate) as well as submitted plans

• reviewing draft neighbourhood plans to ensure they meet the basic 
conditions

• organising the Independent Examination and Referendum for the plan. 

2.20 We run the council’s statutory neighbourhood plan and neighbourhood development 
order consultations and publicity periods and advise groups on the statutory duty 
they need to follow when carrying out their own consultations. 

2.21 We also provide advice to neighbourhood planning groups on best practice 
community engagement to help them gather views from all those within their 
neighbourhood area. This may be done through meetings, workshops and written 

Page 162

Agenda Item 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/neighbourhood-plans/neighbourhood-planning-toolkit/


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

18

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

guidance and we can provide support with surveys, public engagement events and 
communications. For example, we advise groups on: 

• the different consultation and engagement methods that could be used 

• the consultation materials required

• those who should be consulted and at what stage 

• organising consultation and engagement events, and 

• the publication and distribution of consultation documents 

2.22 If you would like to find out more information regarding neighbourhood planning 
or neighbourhood development orders, including contact details, please go the 
neighbourhood planning webpages for South and Vale. 

 OTHER DOCUMENTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

2.23 The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is a joint strategic plan being prepared on behalf of 
all of the district and the city councils in Oxfordshire: Cherwell, Oxford City, South 
Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire. It is a strategic planning 
document that will provide a joined-up approach to planning across the county over 
the period to 2050. Once adopted, it will become part of the Development Plan for 
each Oxfordshire council. 

2.24 The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 has its own Statement of Community Involvement, and 
the Oxfordshire Plan team run their own consultations on the Oxfordshire Plan, 
which you can take part in. 

2.25 Further information including the timeline for delivering the Oxfordshire Plan, 
and how you can sign up and get involved can be found on the Oxfordshire Plan 
website.

 Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Plan 

2.26 Oxfordshire County Council is responsible for preparing and consulting on this plan 
to provide up to date minerals and waste planning policies and proposals for the 
period up to 2031. For more information on this plan, please visit the Oxfordshire 
County Council website. 

Page 163

Agenda Item 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/neighbourhood-plans/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/neighbourhood-plans/
https://oxfordshireplan.org/
https://oxfordshireplan.org/
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan


19

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 6: Relationship of development plan documents and wider national 

policies and frameworks

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement

Local 
Development 

Scheme Supplementary 
Planning 

Documents

Minerals and 
Waste Local 

Plan

Neighbourhood
Plans

OXFORDSHIRE 
PLAN 2050

Local Plan 

OX - CAM ARC
Spatial

Framework
(emerging)

National Planning 
Policy Framework

(NPPF)

Annual 
Monitoring 

Report

Page 164

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

20

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

CONSULTATION ON PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS

 WHO WE CONSULT

2.27 There are legal requirements on who we must consult when preparing planning 
policy documents such as the joint local plan. These are set out in Part 1 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

2.28 There are special requirements for consulting some specific organisations identified 
as ‘specific and general consultation bodies’:

 Specific and general consultation bodies

2.29 Government regulations are clear about how important it is that certain bodies 
are consulted at key stages when preparing local planning policy documents 
(these bodies are sometimes referred to as statutory consultees). They include 
bodies such as the Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England and 
Highways England, and any other organisation that we have a duty to cooperate 
with, including neighbouring councils1. We will always consult on our planning policy 
documents with the relevant consultation bodies in accordsnce with the regulations, 
as set out above.

 Local communities and other interested parties 

2.30 The local community includes, but is not limited to:

• residents

• town and parish councils

• local interest groups

• access groups

• local businesses

• local community groups and organisations

• faith groups, schools, colleges and higher education providers

• ‘seldom-heard’ groups.

Page 165

Agenda Item 12

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made


21

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 HOW WE WILL CONSULT

2.31 At all stages of plan-making, we will publicise any consultation material and 
accompanying documents on our website and via social media and provide links 
to these documents. Consultees registered on our planning policy consultation 
database will be notified of all planning policy consultations and relevant updates. 
From time to time we may also contact consultees registered on our general council 
consultation database, where a planning policy document might be of interest. We 
will contact you by email, where one is provided and this is your preferred method 
of contact. 

2.32 If your preferred method of contact is by post we will send you a letter notifying you 
of the consultation. We are using online and social media more than ever and trying 
to reduce printing as part of our commitment to tackle the Climate Emergency. We 
will ask if you are interested in reducing your impact on the environment by going 
paper free, and if you wish to change your contact preference from post to email, 
please email haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425.

2.33 We will also make information available in other ways on request (for example, 
large print, audio, Braille, Easy Read and alternative languages). 

2.34 The methods of consultation we use will vary depending on the nature of the 
planning policy document, the stage of the document being consulted on and the 
geographical scope or nature of the planning issue covered in the document. 

2.35 Depending on the scope of the consultation, the engagement methods we will use 
can include one or more of the examples set out in the table below, which is not an 
exclusive list. 

Page 166

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

22

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

@

ActionsMethod

Local
Press

Documents

Emails

Letters

Website

Social 
Media

We will post letters to those who have requested to be kept 
informed by post, and encourage consultees to use online methods 
where possible and when it can make engagement easier. 

We will make our planning documents available online on our 
website and make you aware when they are published using the 
appropriate council communication channels, including social media.
We will provide paper copies of consultation documents in selected 
deposit locations, such as local libraries, across the district.

Planning documents will be published on our websites and we will 
provide hard copies of our documents at our offi  ces upon request.

We will send email communications to everyone who is registered 
on our planning consultation database to receive planning policy 
updates. Relevant stakeholders, including statutory organisations 
will also be informed. We may consult consultees that are 
registered on our general consultation database if we think they 
may have an interest in the consultation. 

We will promote major consultations in the local press by issuing 
press releases and paid notices where appropriate.

We will make use of the councils’ various social media accounts 
on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube to communicate 
planning policy news, including live consultations.

We will make the following available on our website:
• planning policy documents
• consultations 
• supporting information  
• links to online questionnaires and feedback forms

Page 167

Agenda Item 12



23

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 HOW YOU CAN RESPOND TO CONSULTATIONS 

2.36 For most planning policy consultations, we offer an online survey. We also accept 
comments by email or by letter. Using the online survey is our preferred way for you 
to respond to consultations as it makes processing the responses simpler. If you 
find it difficult to use the online survey, please ask, we are happy to help you.

 HOW WE WILL RESPOND TO YOU ON PLANNING POLICY

2.37 Once a consultation period has ended and we have read and logged all the 
responses, we will prepare a report and publish a summary of the responses. 
The report is called a consultation statement and is prepared after every statutory 
consultation. Each consultation statement sets out how we have considered the 
comments made during the consultation before moving to the next stage of plan-
making. We make our consultation statements available on our website and on 
request at our council offices, when open to the public. 

2.38 The comments we receive on our planning policy documents will be made publicly 
available on our websites at the earliest opportunity, once the consultation has 
finished. 

Page 168

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

24

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

MONITORING OF PLANNING POLICIES

2.39 We regularly publish an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) for each council. We 
use this to report how many new homes and other developments have been 
permitted and to check whether adopted policies are being effectively implemented. 
It also allows communities and interested parties to track the progress we are 
making towards delivering the vision and objectives set out in the local plan.

LOOKING AHEAD

2.40 We have tried to prepare for future changes on the horizon that might require us 
to vary our consultation methods. If necessary, we will update our Statement of 
Community Involvement to ensure it is up to date. 

 COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

2.41 The restrictions that were put in place in March 2020 changed the way we, and 
all councils, had to consult and engage. There has been more focus on digital 
consultation instead of face-to-face events. There have been some positive 
outcomes from these changes. We have found that more people have taken part in 
our consultations and engagement surveys. It is more flexible as people can access 
information at any time using mobile phones or devices rather than attending an 
event in person. Some people feel more comfortable attending an event online than 
in person. It has also reduced the need for people to travel, and the impact this has 
on carbon emissions. We have also reduced the number of documents we have 
printed, saving paper and reducing waste. 

2.42 We will continue to explore new and effective ways to carry out consultations and to 
learn from what is and is not successful when engaging with our communities. Even 
as restrictions are lifted and face-to-face events are allowed, we will continue to 
develop ways that people can engage digitally.  

 Temporary measures

2.43 In April 2020 the Government introduced temporary measures as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic to change the way we operate, including how we consult. 
The measures were designed to make it easier to operate the planning system 
during periods of restrictions, and included removing the requirement to provide 
paper copies of documents for inspection.  The temporary measures expire on 31 
December 2021. As a result, we varied our consultation methods and introduced 

Page 169

Agenda Item 12

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/1398/contents/made


25

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

new ways of interacting with our communities:

• holding public meetings online and making livestreams and recordings 
available to watch via our YouTube channel;

• exploring other ways that we can carry out public events, workshops and 
exhibitions, for example holding virtual online exhibitions

• planning documents are published on our website

• we use digital technology whenever possible

 CHANGES TO THE PLANNING SYSTEM

2.44 In August 2020 Government consulted on a package of proposals to reform 
the planning system in England, called ‘Planning for the Future’. The aim of the 
reforms is to streamline and modernise the planning process. If these proposals 
are implemented there could be some significant changes to how and when local 
residents, businesses, organisations and statutory consultees engage in the 
planning process. One of the key proposals in the reforms is to make more use of 
interactive digital technology in the plan-making process.  

2.45 The Government is reviewing the feedback on the consultation and will decide what 
changes will be taken forward, along with any necessary supporting legislation. 

Page 170

Agenda Item 12

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ?app=desktop
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

26

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

3.  DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

3.1 Development management is the name given to the work we undertake in the 
planning service to pro-actively manage development in the local area. It includes 
the process of deciding planning applications, planning enforcement (dealing with 
alleged breaches of planning legislation) and planning appeals.

3.2 The development management team is responsible for assessing planning 
applications in accordance with the adopted Development Plan, the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) and 
other material considerations, including consultation responses about a proposal. 
The development management team also defends decisions at appeal and 
investigates and enforces against breaches of planning control.

 TYPES OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

3.3 We receive several types of planning applications. The most common types that 
we receive include ‘major’, ‘minor’ and ‘other’ applications whose definitions are 
prescribed by Government, as set out below:

Major
Applications

Applications for 
developments of 10 or 
more homes, or 1,000 
sqm or more gross non-
residential fl oorspace 
(including changes of use 
of existing buildings).

Minor
Applications

Applications for 
devlopments of up to 9 
homes or up to 999 sqm 
gross non-residential 
fl oorspace (including 
changes of use of existing 
buildings and changes of 
use of open land).

Other
Applications

Includes all other types 
of planning applications 
including applications for 
the extension or alteration 
to a house, ancillary 
buildings in the garden of 
a house, advertisements 
or listed building consent.

Page 171

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making


27

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 THE PLANNING APPLICATION PROCESS

3.4 The table below outlines the process from when we receive a planning application 
through to making the decision:

1 Registration 
and 
Allocation

The application has been validated, registered and allocated 
to a case offi  cer.

2 Consultation
A letter is sent to neighbouring properties who share a 
boundary with the application site letting them know that an 
application has been received, who the case offi  cer will be, 
and how to comment if they wish to. 

The case offi  cer may also use their discretion to write to any 
additional neighbours they feel may be directly aff ected by the 
proposal, for example directly opposite the access. 

We also inform the town or parish council/parish meeting and 
any relevant specialist consultees.

Where required, a statutory notice is displayed at the site. 

We publicise the submitted application on our website and 
comments made (in accordance with our retention schedules).

3 Site Visit
We usually visit the application site without an appointment. It 
is at our discretion as to whether we need to view the proposal 
from neighbouring land or properties.

4 Offi  cer 
Assessment

This is when the planning merits of the application are 
assessed by the council, once the consultation deadline has 
expired.

5 Potential 
Negotiation and 
Re-consultation

The case offi  cer may contact the applicant if our assessment 
in Step 4 above concludes that we are unable to support the 
application as originally submitted or we need some further 
information and clarifi cation. 

If an application is formally amended to address any planning 
issues raised, we may consult again if we think the changes 
may aff ect diff erent neighbours or if new issues might be 
raised.

Recommendation 
and Decision6 Our constitution enables most application decisions to be 

made by the Head of Planning, under what we term ‘offi  cer 
delegated powers’. 

However, large and/or complicated applications are often 
referred to the Planning Committee for a decision, which is 
made up of our elected councillors. 

Page 172

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

28

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

CONSULTATION ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

3.5 Once we have registered a planning application, we will carry out consultation on 
the application. We will use the following methods to publicise planning applications 
that are submitted to us. 

Methods used

If you’re interested in planning applications in your area (postcode), 
you can sign up for email alerts. Once registered, you will receive 
an automatic email notifi cation informing you of any new planning 
application or planning decision made in your area (within 100m 
radius of a postcode area) with a link to the relevant documents on 
our website.

We encourage residents and businesses to subscribe to our 
email alerts, which (by post code) will automatically notify you of 
applications made in your street. 

If you live in South Oxfordshire you can sign up for email alerts here

If you live in the Vale of White Horse you can sign up for email alerts 
here

We will send a notifi cation by either letter or email to properties 
adjacent to the boundary of the application site, as shown in fi gure 7.  
We may also notify others we consider to be directly aff ected by the 
proposal. 

Where proposed new development is likely to aff ect more properties 
than those that are immediately adjacent to the boundary of the site 
(e.g. ‘major’ applications), wider consultation may be carried out.

Depending on the type of application, we will display a notice at the 
application site in a place that is visible to members of the public. 
For all major applications we will display at least one site notice for a 
minimum of 21 days. 

We will publicise all major planning applications in the notices 
section of a local newspaper. We will publicise a press notice 
for applications that are in conservation areas or that aff ect the 
character or appearance of a listed building.

Every week we compile a list of planning applications that have 
been registered that week. The list is published on our website and 
emailed to councillors.

Method

@

Email
Alerts

Neighbour
Notifi cation 

Letter

Site Notice

Press 
Notice

Weekly List

Page 173

Agenda Item 12



29

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Diagram 7:  Minimum neighbourhood notification for all applications

Page 174

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

30

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

A list of who is consulted is set out below:

ActionsMethod

Statutory bodies will be consutted on planning applications 
for certain types of development in accordance with relevant 
regulations. A list of statutory consultees is provided in the planning 
practice guidance.

Consultation with these bodies will vary depending on the type of 
development proposed and/or the location.

Neighbours adjacent to the boundary will be notifi ed of planning 
applications. This is subject to the type of application submitted. 

If neighbouring properties cannot be identiifed, a site notice on or 
near the application property will be displayed.

Town and parish councils will be notifi ed of an application within 
and/or immediately adjacent to the town or parish boundary. 

They are not lnformed of permitted development proposals.

Ward councillors wil be notifi ed by email when an application 
relates to their area. Other councillors may be notifi ed if they have 
requested this.

A public consultation will be undertaken for most applications. 
The scale of consutlation and involvement with the community will 
depend upon the nature of each individual application.

Statutory 
Bodies:

Neighbours:

Town and 
Parish 

Councils/
Meetings:

Councillors:

Members
of the 
Public:

Page 175

Agenda Item 12

mailto:https://www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters%23Statutory-consultees-on-applications?subject=


31

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 VIEWING AND COMMENTING ON A PLANNING APPLICATION

3.6 Planning applications submitted to either South Oxfordshire or Vale of White Horse 
councils are published on a list of all planning applications received. This is known 
as the planning application register. 

3.7 You can find the register for planning applications in South Oxfordshire here.

3.8 And the register for planning applications in Vale of White Horse here.

3.9 You can also look on our interactive planning map to search for planning current 
applications and to look up a property’s planning history. 

The following table explains the process for commenting on an application:

Page 176

Agenda Item 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-application-register/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-application-register/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-application-register/ 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-application-register/
http://maps.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/gis/


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

32

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We provide guidance on how to comment on planning applications on our 
websites. Comments made on a planning application are not transferred to 
a subsequent consultation or to a new planning application (although if an 
amendment is made to a current application, comments originally submitted 
are taken into account and do not need to be made again). If a new planning 
application is submitted on the same application site as a previous application, 
you will need to resubmit your comments for consideration.

We can 
only accept 
comments in 
writing.  

We ask that all 
comments be made 
via our websites in 
the fi rst instance. We 
also accept emails 
and letters. 

Commenting on planning applications

In accordance with our Customer Service 
Standards, we will not tolerate comments that 

contain abusive, off ensive or derogatory language, 
or those related to a personal circumstance not 

directly related to the application. Any comments 
submitted to us in this manner will not be published.

When commenting on 
planning applications, it 
is important to comment 
on material planning 
considerations. 
These are more likely to 
help shape the outcome 
of the application. 

Via our websites

Planning, 
135 Eastern Avenue, 
Millon Park, 
OX14 4S8

Registration@
southandvale.gov.uk

View and comment on 
planning applications in 
South Oxfordshire

View and comment on 
planning applications in 
Vale of White Horse 

When commenting on an application, it is important to 
provide:

• Planning application reference number

• Address of the site

• Name of the case offi  cer

Your comments will appear publicly on the planning 
applications’s webpage. All personal information such as 
telephone numbers, emails and signatures will be redacted, 
however addresses and names will be shown. 

Please note that we don’t acknowledge or respond to 
comments directly, due to the high numbers we receive.

By postBy email

@

Page 177

Agenda Item 12

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/how-to-comment-on-a-planning-application-effectively/
mailto:Registration%40southandvale.gov.uk?subject=
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-and-comment-on-a-planning-application/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/


33

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

 TIME TO COMMENT ON APPLICATIONS 

3.10 Once a planning application is registered and allocated to a planning officer, the 
application will be publicised online and appropriate parties will be notified. Parties 
have a minimum of 21 days to comment. This period is set out in article 15 of the 
Town and County Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order. All 
comments must be made in writing, preferably through our websites, or by email, or 
if this is not possible then by letter, within:

• 21 days from the date of our notification letter, or 

• 21 days from the date of a press notice or site notice appearing 

3.11 Due to the volume of correspondence we receive, it is not possible to respond to or 
discuss individual comments that we receive on planning applications, however a 
summary of these and the officers’ responses are provided in the officer report. 

 DECISIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

3.12 Decisions on planning applications will be determined in accordance with the 
decision-making processes set out in the councils’ constitution. 

3.13 The constitution sets out how we, the councils, operate, how decisions are made 
and the procedures that are followed to ensure that we are efficient, transparent 
and accountable. 

3.14 Further information on our constitution can be found on the South and Vale 
websites.

 Planning Committees

3.15 All planning applications are allocated to a case officer who will assess the 
application and make a recommendation on whether the application should be 
approved or refused. Most applications are determined under delegated powers, 
which means the applications does not need to go to a planning committee for a 
decision. However, some larger and/or complicated planning applications will need 
to be determined by a planning committee. 

3.16 South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse councils each have their own planning 
committee that meet regularly to discuss and make decisions on planning 
applications. The planning committee, which comprises elected councillors, has 
a duty to decide planning and other development-related applications. However, 

Page 178

Agenda Item 12

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/15/made
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/who-we-are/the-councils-constitution/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/who-we-are/


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

34

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

currently around ninety percent of applications are determined under the scheme of 
delegation to the Head of Planning. 

3.17 If an application that you have commented on is due to go to a planning committee 
for a decision, we will write to you and invite you to speak or submit a statement for 
the meeting. Each speaker, or group of speakers, can speak for up to three minutes 
(at Vale of White Horse planning committees) or five minutes (at South Oxfordshire 
planning committees) on each application site. If there is more than one speaker, 
the three or five minute slot is shared between the speakers, therefore it may be 
worthwhile nominating just one or two speakers. Planning committee arrangements 
can change, so please refer to our South and Vale websites for the latest position. 

3.18 Agenda papers are published on our website five working days before the 
committee meeting.  If you wish to speak or submit a statement at the meeting, 
please register with Planning Services by noon the last working day before the 
meeting by emailing planningbusinessenquiries@southandvale.gov.uk or telephone 
01235 422600.

PLANNING APPEALS

3.19 If a planning application is refused, the applicant can either re-apply for planning 
permission with an alternative scheme, or they can appeal against the decision. 
Applicants also have the right to appeal against non-determination, if the council 
has not determined the application within the statutory time limits. It is also possible 
to appeal against any planning condition imposed on a planning permission. 
Appeals are made to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS). 

3.20 Only the person who applied for planning permission, or was served with an 
enforcement notice, has a legal right to appeal (known as the appellant). There is 
no right of appeal for interested people or organisations (known as third parties), or 
the councils. 

3.21 There is planning pratice guidance available online that provides useful information 
about the appeals process. 

3.22 If an appeal is made, we will notify the interested parties of the appeal and provide 
information on how and when to respond to the Planning Inspectorate.

3.23 Appeals can be viewed on our websites on our Planning Appeals Registers for 
South and Vale.

Page 179

Agenda Item 12

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=123
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/councillors-committees-and-meetings/council-cabinet-and-committees/the-planning-committee/
mailto:planningbusinessenquiries%40southandvale.gov.uk?subject=
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-appeals-procedural-guide
mailto:https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-appeals-register/?subject=
mailto:https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/planning-registers/planning-appeals-register/?subject=


35

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

3.24 This online register is ‘live’ and includes current and recent appeals and sets out 
details of what stage the appeal is at, as well as the decision, if it has been made. 

3.25 Alternatively, you can view current appeals on the Planning Inspectorate’s Appeals 
Casework Portal.

SECTION 106 (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) 

3.26 A Section 106 is a legal agreement between the council and developer(s) and/
or landowner(s) and is used alongside the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to 
raise money to fund infrastructure needed to support development. 

3.27 We draw up a Section 106 agreement before we grant planning permission, so 
the developer is legally bound to deliver the infrastructure we have agreed. Money 
is collected from the developer once the planning permission is implemented and 
when certain points in the agreement have been met.

3.28 We do not consult on Section 106 agreements. However, we work with town and 
parish councils and local district councillors, to find out which community facilities 
may be impacted by new development or that require investment as a result 
of the development. Once we have a Section 106 agreement in place and the 
development has commenced, we will notify town and parish councils or parish 
meetings of the sums available for identified community facilities and provide an 
update to them on a six-monthly basis. 

3.29 We are committed to working with town and parish councils to continue to identify 
local priorities and to deliver local projects. A list of all Section 106 contributions that 
are secured by the council are available on our South and Vale websites. 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE

3.30 The pre-application stage, which is discretionary, encourages applicants to carry 
out early engagement with the local community and the council, before submitting a 
planning application. 

3.31 We encourage the early discussion of planning proposals as it can:

• verify the list of local validation requirements

•  help applicants to understand how planning policies and other 
requirements may affect the proposals.

Page 180

Agenda Item 12

mailto:https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate?subject=
mailto:https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate?subject=
mailto:https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/community-support/infrastructure-to-support-communities/section-106-agreements/?subject=
mailto:https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/community-support/infrastructure-to-support-communities-2/section-106-agreements/?subject=


SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

36

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

3.32 Any pre-application advice letters sent between the applicant and the council will be 
made available online if a formal planning application is submitted. 

3.33 Further information on the pre-application process, including how to apply for pre-
application advice and the charges for it, are on our South and Vale websites. 

3.34 We would also encourage applicants to seek advice from other key stakeholders, 
such as Thames Water, (if relevant) at the pre-application stage too.

 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

3.35 When a person carries out development without planning permission, the council 
considers what action to take. Although we investigate allegations, the decision on 
whether to take formal action is discretionary. 

3.36 If we find a breach of planning control has occurred, we can consider enforcement 
action. However, before such action is taken, we will give the person an opportunity 
to put things right. This could involve us asking for a new retrospective planning 
application. 

3.37 If no application is made and the breach is deemed to be harmful in planning terms, 
then formal action will be considered. We have several tools we can use, including 
enforcement notices and high court injunctions, however, as most breaches of 
planning control are not criminal matters, formal action is always the last resort. 

3.38 Further details on our approach to addressing planning enforcement matters, 
including our enforcement statement, can be found on our South and Vale 
webpages, along with contact details.  

Page 181

Agenda Item 12

mailto:https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/planning-permission-how-it-works/pre-application-planning-advice/?subject=
mailto:https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/planning-permission-how-it-works/pre-application-planning-advice/?subject=
mailto:https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/planning-enforcement/report-suspected-unauthorised-development/?subject=
mailto:https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/planning-enforcement/?subject=


37

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

GLOSSARY

The final stage for a local plan or planning policy document 

when it is confirmed and brought into force by a Local Planning 

Authority (LPA).

A breach of planning control is defined in Section 17A of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as:

•  the carrying out of development without the required 

planning permission; or

•  failing to comply with any condition or limitation subject to 

which planning permission has been granted.

A document produced by councils as the charging authority,  

setting out rates for the amount of Community Infrastructure 

Levy chargeable for development in the area.

A levy (tax) that councils can choose to charge on new 

developments in their area. The money can be used to support 

development by funding infrastructure.

A type of neighbourhood development order allowing 

communities to decide for themselves what is built. This might 

include, for example, new community facilities and affordable 

housing.

Vale of White Horse District Council’s and South Oxfordshire 

District Council’s Constitution set out how the council operates, 

how decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to 

ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to 

local people.

A process of asking for views on a draft policy or planning 

proposal before a decision is made.

Adopt/Adoption/
Adopted

Breach of 
Planning Control

Charging 
Schedule

Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL)

Community 
Right to Build 
Order

Constitution

Consultation

Page 182

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

38

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Corporate Plan

Development 
Plan

Development

General Data 
Protection 
Regulations

Local 
Development 
Scheme

Local Plan

Major 
Developments

The Corporate Plan highlights the council’s priorities and 

strategic themes for the next few years.

Document setting out the policies and proposals for the 

development and use of land and buildings in an area. 

These include adopted local plans, neighbourhood plans, the 

Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan and the forthcoming 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050. Defined in section 38 of the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Development is defined under the 1990 Town and Country 

Planning Act as “the carrying out of building, engineering, 

mining or other operation in, on, over or under land, or the 

making of any material change in the use of any building 

or other land.” Most forms of development require planning 

permission (see also “permitted development”).

The General Data Protection Regulation 2016/679 is a 

regulation in EU law on data protection and privacy in the 

European Union and the European Economic Area. It also 

addresses the transfer of personal data outside the EU and EEA 

areas.

This sets out the timetable and work programme for the 

preparation of the local plan and other development plan 

documents

The plan for the local area that sets out the long–term spatial 

vision and development framework for the district, as well as 

and strategic policies and proposals to deliver that vision. Part 

of the development plan.

Applications for developments of 10 or more omes, or 1,000 

sqm or more gross non-residential floorspace (including 

changes of use of existing buildings).

Page 183

Agenda Item 12



39

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Minor 
Developments

National Planning 
Policy Framework

National Planning 
Practice Guidance

Neighbourhood 
Development 
Order (NDO)

Neighbourhood 
Development 
Plans  

Oxfordshire Plan 
2050

Planning Appeals

Planning 
Enforcement

Planning 
Inspectorate

Applications for developments of up to 9 homes or up to 

999sqm gross non-residential floorspace (including changes of 

use of existing buildings and changes of use of open land).

This sets out the government’s planning policies for England 

and how these are expected to be applied at a local level. The 

NPPF is a material consideration when making decisions on 

planning applications or appeals.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) is a planning 

practice online resource covering a range of planning issues.

Can be used to permit different types of development (in 

full or outline) without the need for planning permission.                               

A plan prepared by a town or parish or a neighbourhood forum 

for a particular neighbourhood area (made under the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

A strategic planning document being prepared on behalf of the 

Oxfordshire City and District Councils to provide a joined-up 

approach to planning across the county. 

If a decision to refuse planning permission on a planning 

application has been made by a local council, the applicant can 

appeal against the decision made. The Planning Inspectorate 

will organise for an independent Inspector to review the decision 

made and will make a decision.

The Planning Enforcement Team can investigate when a 

person carries out development without the benefit of having 

planning permission. The team investigate what action, if any, is 

appropriate to take.

The Planning Inspectorate (PINS) is an executive agency 

sponsored by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 

Local Government. PINS deal with planning appeals, national 

Page 184

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILS

40

September 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Planning 
Permission

Referendum

Stakeholders 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement

Supplementary 
Planning 
Documents 

infrastructure planning applications, examinations of local plans 

and other planning-related and specialist casework.

Formal permission from a Local Planning Authority for the 

erection or alteration of buildings or similar development.

A general vote by the electorate on a single political question 

which has been referred to them for a direct decision. A 

neighbourhood plan referendum is used to ask voters whether 

they want the Neighbourhood Plan to be used to decide 

planning applications in the neighbourhood area.

Stakeholders can affect or be affected by a council’s actions, 

objectives and policies. The council will consult with key 

stakeholders at different stages of planning.

The SCI sets out standards to be achieved by the council 

in relation to involving the community in the preparation, 

alteration and continuing review of all Development Plan 

Documents (DPDs) and in determining planning applications for 

development.

A planning policy document that adds further detail to the 

policies in the local plan. They can be used to provide further 

guidance for development on specific sites, or on particular 

issues, such as design. Supplementary Planning Documents 

are capable of being a material consideration in planning 

decisions but are not part of the Development Plan.

Page 185

Agenda Item 12



41

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE AND VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCILSSeptember 2021

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Planning Policy Team
135 Eastern Avenue, 

Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB
Tel: 01235 422600

Email: planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.
 

These include large print, Braille, audio, email,
Easy Read and alternative languages. 

Please contact customer services to discuss 
your requirements on 01235 422600.

Page 186

Agenda Item 12



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning  

Author: Emma Turner 

Telephone:07717 779171 

E-mail: emma.turner@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Anne Marie Simpson 

Tel: 07738 568907 

E-mail: anne-marie.simpson@southandvale.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date:  2 December 2021 

 

 
 

Updated Joint Planning Enforcement 

Statement 

 

Recommendations 

(a)  that Councillors consider the content of the report and feedback from Scrutiny 
Committee 

(b)  that Cabinet approves the new Enforcement Statement and approach to managing 
planning enforcement. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To inform Cabinet about the revised joint Planning Enforcement Statement (Appendix 
1) which was last updated in 2016. 

2. Seek Cabinets agreement on the new approach to triaging cases and revisions to the 
Enforcement Statement. 

Corporate Objectives  

3. The investigation and actions to mitigate planning harm supports the Corporate Plan, 
2020 - 2024, themes of Homes and infrastructure that meet local needs, Protect and 
restore our natural world and Action on the climate emergency. 

Background 

4.  Central Government sets out national planning policy in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). At paragraph 59 of the NPPF it states that local planning 

Page 187

Agenda Item 13

mailto:emma.turner@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:anne-marie.simpson@southandvale.gov.uk


authorities ‘should consider publishing a local enforcement plan to manage 
enforcement proactively, in a way that is appropriate to their area’. 

5.   It is 5 years since we last updated our statement. There has been lot of changes to the 
planning system during this period e.g. revised NPPFs. The current enforcement 
statement and approach is resource intensive and along with the impact from the 
recent pandemic we are not able to manage the workload. Although during the first 
lockdown we limited site visits which reduced our ability to progress case 
investigations, the development industry and residents did not stop breaching planning 
or reporting alleged breaches. During this period, we had a significant increase in 
reported allegations. This has led to a backlog of cases. We currently have, for both 
councils, 700 live investigations of which 241 cases are unallocated (131 cases for 
South and 110 for Vale). 

Main issues 
 
6.   In spring 2021 the enforcement team went through a thorough review of the function 

and the team are working through the resulting action plan. Updating the Enforcement 
Statement has been identified as an important step in helping the team to become 
more efficient and effective. The updated document aims to communicate more clearly 
the enforcement teams’ role within the wider planning service and the public and 
town/parish councils’ role as informants in the process. The enforcement teams’ role is 
to maintain the integrity of the planning system and planning decisions made by the 
councils. They therefore investigate allegations for the councils not for residents. It is 
also important to recognise that in the first instance, the objective of planning 
enforcement is not to punish those who are in breach of planning but to remedy the 
planning harm caused by the planning breach. The councils also do not ‘police’ new 
development. 

7.   As part of the function review, an assessment has been undertaken on the triage and 
prioritising of cases, and the amount of time spent on issues that have little impact and 
considered not to cause unacceptable planning harm. 

8.   Historically when the council considered an alleged breach of planning, the case was 
not closed until the site had been visited and the breach of planning remedied. This 
resulted in the enforcement team continuing to use resources to pursue minor 
breaches of planning that were not causing harm to public amenity and/or interest. 

9.   The proposed risk-based approach (harm assessment) will use a set of scored 
planning criteria to rate the impact a planning breach is having and if it doesn’t reach 
the threshold set it will be closed as not expedient to pursue and the informant advised 
of the outcome. Only cases that are considered to have the potential for planning harm 
will be allocated to an officer for a site visit and further investigation.  

10. This new method will allow officers to filter out a number of cases and be able to spend 
more time on investigations where there is more potential for unacceptable planning 
harm and need for formal action. It is also expected that this approach will help reduce 
the backlog of cases and once completed, the capacity to act more proactively e.g. 
dealing with major development sites. 

District Councillor and wider engagement 
 
11. As part of reviewing the Statement, we have engaged with all councillors and sought 

their comments. 

Page 188

Agenda Item 13



12. Officers produced a narrated presentation about the Statement and its new approach, 
including the harm assessment and priorities. The presentation also included some 
context about planning enforcement.  

13. A councillor Q&A session was held on 23rd November which was well attended. 
Comments and feedback centred around GDPR and communication with town/parish 
councils and the wider public. It was suggested that officers put a package of 
information together for town/parish councils to help them understand the new 
approach. Similarly, to ensure there is information on the councils website to help 
explain the revised approach to our residents.  

13. We have not sought public engagement on the revised enforcement statement as it 
would not be meaningful consultation. This is because the enforcement function is 
limited by regulations, appeal and court outcomes and the agreed resources. 

Options 

14. Cabinet can either approve the statement or to reject the statement and continue with 
the current approach. However, we should review our statement on a regular basis 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

15. In maintaining public confidence in the planning system (NPPF), the revised statement   
should help ensure new development and relevant planning conditions support climate 
and biodiversity mitigation 

Financial Implications 

16. The work to review the statement including the councillor engagement is within the 
existing planning budget. 

 

Legal Implications 

17. There are no legal implications by this work. The NPPF says Local Planning 
Authorities ‘…should consider publishing a local enforcement plan to manage 
enforcement proactively…’ 

Risks 

18. The risk of producing a revised statement is low as although the council may get 
complaints about our new approach in the statement, so long as we follow these 
procedures this should limit findings of fault by the Ombudsman. 

Conclusion 

19. Effective enforcement is important to maintain public confidence in the planning 
system (NPPF). The updated Enforcement Statement sets out the preferred approach 
for the councils to manage the planning enforcement function and provides a 
framework for the team to be able to work in a more efficient and effective way. 

 
 

Background Papers 

Appendix 1; Draft Joint Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 

Page 189

Agenda Item 13



               

 

 

Planning Enforcement Statement 

 
This document aims to communicate the planning enforcement teams’ role within the 

wider planning service and the public and town/parish councils’ role as informants in 

the process. The enforcement teams’ role is to maintain the integrity of the planning 

system and planning decisions made by the councils. They therefore investigate 

allegations for the councils not for residents. In the first instance, the objective of 

planning enforcement is not to punish those who are in breach of planning but to 

remedy the planning harm caused by the planning breach. The councils do not 

‘police’ development. More details on the legal and national policy basis of our work 

can be found using the links at the end of this document. 

 

Mission Statement 

The planning enforcement teams role is to investigate allegations of breaches 

of planning control in a timely manner and take effective action in the public 

interest where unacceptable planning harm is identified. 

 

How: We will do this by 

 Prioritising cases with the greatest planning harm (Appendix 1).  
 Making decisions in each case in accordance with planning law, national 

policies, guidance and the adopted development plan. 
 Intervening only where taking action is proportionate and necessary in the 

council’s assessment. 
 

Why:  We do this 
 To ensure the integrity of the planning system and decision-making 

process. 
 To support the Corporate Plan objectives of the Councils. 
 To support our local communities. 

 

 What we commit to do 

 We will acknowledge all reports of alleged breaches of planning control within 
2 working days. 

 We will assess and prioritise cases on the basis of the planning harm that 
may be caused. 

Page 190

Agenda Item 13



 We aim to complete our investigations and make a decision on what action to 
take within 6 weeks of a case being allocated to an officer in 80% of our 
cases. 

 Formal enforcement action is taken at the discretion of the council. 

 We are not investigating for you and we do not investigate on behalf of third 
parties. All investigations are undertaken on behalf of the council. 

 We will not provide you with updates on cases in order to comply with the 
Data Protection Act 2018 and UK General Data Protection Regulations. 

 We will provide you with a written confirmation of the outcome of the case 
once it has been completed. 

 

What we cannot/will not do 

 We will not accept anonymous information. If you wish to remain anonymous, 
you can submit your information via your ward councillor or parish council 
representatives. 
 

 We will not become involved in neighbour disputes. 
 

 We cannot take formal action against building work that had been completed 
for more than 4 years, unless it’s a listed building. 
 

 We cannot take formal action against a material change of use of land that 
has been continuous for more than 10 years. 
 

 We cannot take formal action against a breach of a condition of a planning 
approval that has been breached for more than 10 years. 
 

 We cannot take formal action against a new dwelling built without planning 
permission after 10 years. 
 

 We cannot consider the following as they are not planning issues; 
  

 

 Obstruction of a highway or 
public right of way 
 

 Parking of commercial or other 
vehicles on the highway in 
residential areas or on grass 
verges 
 

These matters are either subject to 

Oxfordshire County Council controls or if 

there is a highway safety issue can be 

reported to the police 

 

 Trespass on land 
 

These are private matters not dealt with 

under planning legislation. Details of the 

Party Wall Act 1996 can be found on line 

at; https://www.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-

Page 191

Agenda Item 13

https://www.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-guidance


 Deeds and covenant 
restrictions 
 

 Boundary disputes 
 

1996-guidance.  Any advice on civil 

matter should be sought from a solicitor, 

or the Citizens Advice Bureau. 

 

 Clearing land of hedges, 
bushes or undergrowth 

 

Unless subject to Ancient Hedgerows 

Regulations 1997. Details can be found at 

https://www.gov.uk/countryside-

hedgerows-regulation-and-management 

 

 Internal works to a non-listed 
building 

 

 

Structural works may be subject to 

building control regulations. The councils’ 

building control team can be contacted at: 

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-

and-advice/planning-and-

building/building-control 

 

 Parking a caravan within the 
curtilage of a residential 
building provided its use is 
incidental or ancillary to the 
main dwelling. 

 

 

In most cases caravans are not classed 

as buildings and therefore it is their use 

that is subject to planning controls. 

However, if you are in any doubt contact 

the planning department for advice 

 

 Insertion of additional windows 
in residential dwellings.  

 

Once a building has been occupied 

windows may be inserted into existing 

walls provided there is not a planning 

condition to prevent the insertion of 

additional windows or a restriction set by 

permitted development rights 

 

 Health and safety issues 
including noise and activity on 
building sites 

These matters are ordinarily the 

responsibility of the Health and Safety 

Executive. They can be contacted at: 

http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/contact.htm 

Page 192

Agenda Item 13

https://www.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/countryside-hedgerows-regulation-and-management
https://www.gov.uk/countryside-hedgerows-regulation-and-management
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/building-control
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/building-control
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/building-control
http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/contact.htm


Reporting an alleged breach of planning control 
 

Privacy Statement 

The information provided by you is collected for the purposes of investigating an 
alleged breach of planning control. We need to collect this information in order to 
maintain accurate records and so that we can liaise with you during the investigation 
and inform you of its outcome. Sharing your information with us constitutes explicit 
consent from you for us to process your data for this purpose. 

We will keep your personal data secure within our organisation but we may also 
disclose information in certain circumstances outside the organisation. We will only 
do this if the law permits us to do so and in accordance with our contracts with these 
organisations. This includes requirements to keep your data secure.  

Please see further details about the councils’ privacy policies using the links below; 

South Oxfordshire district Council                         
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-
council/privacy/privacy-policy/ 

Vale of the White Horse District Council              
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-
council/privacy/privacy-policy/ 

 

Important considerations before you make your allegation 
 

It is important that you read this section carefully prior to submitting the form; 
 

 You can make a referral/report by using our online form. 
 

 We ask that you use this form as it ensures that we have the minimum 
information required to decide on whether to pursue the case.  

 

 Before reporting a suspected breach of planning, please check the Planning 
Permission Register (see links below) to see if planning permission has been 
granted for the development. 
 

South Oxfordshire District Council 
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-   
development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-and-comment-on-a-planning-
application/ 
 
Vale of the White Horse District Council 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-
development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-an-application-and-comment/ 
 

Page 193

Agenda Item 13

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/privacy-policy/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/privacy-policy/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/privacy-policy/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/privacy-policy/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-%20%20%20development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-and-comment-on-a-planning-application/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-%20%20%20development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-and-comment-on-a-planning-application/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-%20%20%20development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-and-comment-on-a-planning-application/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-an-application-and-comment/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/comment-on-planning-applications/find-an-application-and-comment/


 Please provide as much information about the location and nature of the 
alleged breach. 

 

 Please read our privacy statement above which explains how we will process 
and protect your personal data. 
 

 Please be aware your role is as an informant we are not investigating the 
issue you have raised for you. As stated elsewhere in the statement our role 
is to investigate matters on behalf of the councils. 

 

What happens once we have received your form 
 

 We will acknowledge receipt of the form within 2 working days. 
 

 We may need to contact you to discuss the case further, so it is important we 
have your contact details. 
 

 We will investigate the information you provided. If we are satisfied that there 
is a breach of planning control, we will assess the allegation using our harm 
assessment form. 
 

 If the score is above our threshold, we will allocate the case to an officer and 
the case will be processed in accordance with our site visit priorities. 

 

 If the harm assessment is below our threshold, we will close the case as not 
expedient and inform you of this in writing. 

 

 It can take many weeks to investigate and resolve a planning enforcement 
case. E.g, there is a statutory three week period if we serve a Planning 
Contravention Notice and there is an eight or thirteen week period for 
consideration should the developer decide to submit a planning application 
part way through the enforcement investigation. 

 
Please see the flowchart (Appendix 2) at the end of this statement that shows the 
enforcement investigation process. 

 

Site visit priorities following allocation to an officer 

Priority 1 Site visit within 48 hours 

 

 Permanent damage to the environment e.g. demolition or significant alteration to a 
listed building 
 

 Unauthorised works to a protected tree (by Preservation Order or planning 
condition) or qualifying trees in a conservation area. 

 

Page 194

Agenda Item 13



 

Priority 2 Site visit within 10 working days 

 

 Less immediate but harmful development with potential to escalate 
e.g. buildings part constructed and works in progress 

 

 Major development site building works just commenced 
This does not include land clearance of shrubbery etc 
 

 Development within 12 months of immunity 
 

Priority 3 Site visit within 20 working days 

 

 Other breaches likely to remain stable  
e.g. development that has been completed 
 

 Non-compliance with planning conditions 
 

 Display of advertisements unless details given give rise to concerns about 

highways safety 

 

 Breaches of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development)(England) Order 2015 (as amended) known as PD rights. 

 
 
 

 

We do not provide updates  

Under the Data Protection Act 2018 and UK General Data Protection Regulations, 

the council has a duty to protect personal data, including that of both: 

 the person who is the subject of the investigation and 
 the person reporting the issue/s.  

Enforcement information is also likely to be exempt from release under Freedom of 

Information Act 2000/Environmental Information Regulations 2004 whilst live 

investigations are ongoing. We need to maintain confidentiality whilst investigating 

cases and divulging information in relation to active investigations could prejudice 

the ongoing proceedings. 

We therefore do not provide you with updates or information during the course of our 
investigation. You will receive details of the outcome of the investigation once it has 
been completed. 

Page 195

Agenda Item 13



Enforcement Register 

We are legally required to maintain an Enforcement Register. This register contains 
details of formal notices served including the address, the breach identified, the date 
for compliance and when the notice was complied with. Notices will only be removed 
from the register if they are formally quashed or withdrawn by the council.  
All notices remain part of the planning history. Please follow the links below to view 
the registers. 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNoticeC
riteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice 
 
Vale of the White Horse District Council 
https://data.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNotic
eCriteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice 
 

 

Possible outcomes of our investigations 
 
Caselaw and Government quotes 
 

‘The planning enforcement procedure is intended to be remedial 
rather than punitive’ 
Lord Justice Carnwarth Tapecrown Ltd v Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government [2006] EWCA Civ 1744 

 
‘There are a range of ways of tackling alleged breaches of planning 
control, and local planning authorities should act in a proportionate 
way.’ 
 
‘Addressing breaches of planning control without formal 
enforcement action can often be the quickest and most cost 
effective way of achieving a satisfactory and lasting remedy.’ 
Government National Practice Guidance. Enforcement and post-permission matters 
paragraphs: 003 & 011 updated 22 July 2019 

 
 
No breach 
If we establish that no breach of planning control has occurred, we will take no 
further action. 
Voluntary compliance 
This could include the relevant party agreeing to cease an unauthorised use, remove 
an unauthorised development or submitting a retrospective application. 
 
Not expedient 
Where a technical breach of planning control has occurred, but it is not proportionate 
to take enforcement action due to the low level of planning harm, or where officers 
are satisfied that planning permission would be granted without the imposition of 
conditions.  
 

Page 196

Agenda Item 13

https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNoticeCriteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNoticeCriteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice
https://data.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNoticeCriteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice
https://data.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=EnforcementNoticeCriteria&TYPE=EnforcementNotice


Lawful due to the passage of time 
Where a breach of planning control is established, but the activity has been going 
on, or the structure has been substantially complete for so long, the development is 
immune from enforcement action and has become lawful. 
 
Service of an Enforcement Notice 
An Enforcement Notice will clearly state: 

 The matters that constitute a breach of planning control. 

 The steps required to remedy the breach of Planning control. 

 The date by which the steps to remedy the breach must be completed. 

 There is a right of appeal to this type of notice for the person/s served. 
 

Service of a Breach of Condition Notice 
This will require compliance with a condition that has been imposed on a planning 
permission. There is no right of appeal to this type of notice. 
 
Service of a Stop or Temporary Stop Notice                                                   

These are used to stop an unacceptable activity on land. A Stop Notice may only be 

served in conjunction with an Enforcement Notice referred to above. A Temporary 

Stop Notice only lasts for 28 days. 

Service of a Section 215 Notice (Untidy land)                                                                 

These notices are used to require the proper maintenance of land and buildings. 

They will set out what the issue is, what person responsible is required to do and the 

timeframe to achieve compliance. The appeal to this notice is heard in the 

Magistrates Court. 

 

What to do if we contact you about your development 
 

If it is possible to investigate the concerns raised without disturbing you and establish 
that there is no breach of planning control, we will not contact you.  
 
If we do contact you about your development, please work with us to resolve the 
matter as quickly and effectively as possible. 
 
Our initial contact may be in person by an unannounced site visit, or it may be via 
telephone or letter. 
 
We do not conduct investigations for third parties. 
 
Powers of Entry 
We have legal powers to enter land and/or premises to undertake our official duties, 
and the wilful obstruction of an officer exercising a right of entry is a criminal offence. 
On entry we always identify ourselves and are able to show written authority if 
required. We must give you 24 hours’ notice before we can access a building used 
as a dwelling house. 
 

Page 197

Agenda Item 13



 We will work with you to understand the nature of the development you have 
undertaken. 

 We may need to inspect, measure and photograph the site. 

 We will consider the development on its merits against planning law and local 
and national planning policies and guidance. 

 If the Council considers that your development involves a breach planning 
control that would not be granted planning permission and causes planning 
harm, it can take formal action against you. 

 We will always give you information on what your options are to resolve any 
breaches identified. 

 We will ordinarily give you the opportunity to remedy any breach before formal 
action is taken. 

 
Planning Contravention Notice (PCN) 
As part of our investigation, we may serve you and any other parties with an interest 

in the land with a PCN. This notice allows the planning authority to formally require 

the recipient to answer questions and provide information we need for enforcement 

purposes eg: about any operations being carried out, any use of, or any activities 

being carried out on the land. It also gives you the opportunity to formally respond 

constructively to the local planning authority by providing any additional information 

you think it relevant to your situation and how any suspected breach of planning 

control may be satisfactorily remedied. 

Planning Enforcement Order (PEO)                                                                 

Where there has been deliberate concealment of a breach of planning control, we 

may apply to the Magistrates Court for a PEO.  Where a PEO is granted we have 

one year and 22 days to serve an enforcement notice irrespective of how long ago 

the breach first occurred. The 4 year and 10 year periods for immunity do not apply. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 198

Agenda Item 13



Appendix 1 

 

Harm Assessment – Triage Scheme 

Procedure for initial processing reported breaches of 

planning control.  

 
Purpose                                                                                                                   
This document sets out the council’s harm assessment procedure in relation to the 
handling of identified breaches of planning control. It assesses the “planning harm” 
the breach is perceived to cause and provides a process for the efficient closure of 
cases. 

 
Background 
In the past when the council considered an alleged breach of planning 
control the case was not closed until the site had been visited and the 
breach of planning control remedied. This resulted in the enforcement team 
continuing to use resources to pursue minor breaches of planning control 
that were not causing harm to public amenity and/or interest. 
 
The Scheme 
The assessment is applied to all allegations made to the council identified 
by officers as being in breach of planning control. The scheme allows the 
team to assess the information and grade the “harm” of that breach against 
a series of scored planning criteria.  

 
The agreed level of harm triggering a site visit and further investigation (the 
score) is 5 and above. Where the cumulative score is 4 and under, it is not 
considered to be expedient to pursue the breach as the impact on public 
amenity and/or interest will be/is considered negligible.  

 
Cases that don’t meet the threshold will be closed and advisory 
correspondence will be sent to the informant that no action will be taken. 
 

Breaches of planning control that attract a score of 5 or more will be visited 
and further investigated by officers. 

 
Operational Aspects 
The harm assessment form will be completed as part of the triage process 
within 5 working days of a report being received. If no further action is to be 
taken, then the informant will be contacted in writing and informed of the 
outcome of our assessment. If the threshold is exceeded, then the case will 
be prioritised for a site visit in accordance with the priorities set out in the 
Enforcement Statement and allocated to an enforcement officer for further 
investigation.  
 
Conclusion 

Page 199

Agenda Item 13



The harm assessment approach provides: 
 

 A quantitive and qualitative assessment of harm to public 

amenity/interest. 

 A procedure that is open and transparent. 

 A quick and effective processing of incidents. 

 A flexible system to make efficient use of resources. 

 Equality of treatment of dealing with incidents. 
 

The criteria and scoring are considered an effective way to identify 
minor/trivial breaches of planning control, as well as providing an 
opportunity for it to be used in prioritising of other breaches of planning 
control to be progressed by the enforcement team. 
 
The details of the scheme will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 200

Agenda Item 13



TRIAGE HARM ASSESSMENT FORM  
 
Each new allegation identified as a breach of planning control will be allocated 

scores as set out below to assess its harm. The total will provide its harm score. 

Cases below the threshold score of 5 will not be visited and a decision made based 

in a desk assessment only. 

 

Points Allocation Score 

1 Is the breach: a breach of 
condition (3) 
 
Worsening/ 
ongoing (2) 
 
Stable (0) 
 
Score each issue 

 

2 Highway safety issue: Yes (2) 
 
No (0) 

 

3 Other safety issues: Yes (2) 
 
No (0) 

 

4 Causing/potential to cause a 
statutory or serious 
environmental nuisance 

Yes (1) 
 
No (0) 

 

5 Age of breach: Within 12 months 
of immunity (2) 
 
 
Over 12 months 
to immunity (0) 

 

6 Is there planning harm: Widespread 
(2)  
 
Local (1) 
  
None (0) 

 

7 Irreversible harm: 
Biodiversity 
Protected species 
Trees 
Conservation area 
Listed Building 

Yes (2) 
 
No (0) 
 
(2 points per 
issue) 

 

8 Flood Risk Zone 3 (2) 
 
Zone 1-2 (1) 
 

 

Page 201

Agenda Item 13



NFR (0) 

9 Listed building 
(or affecting the character or 
setting of a listed building) 

Yes (3) 
 
No (0) 

 

10 Particularly sensitive site e.g. 
Conservation area, 
SSSI, 
AONB, 
Greenbelt 
Scheduled monument 

  Listed Garden,  
  Archaeological importance 

Yes (1) 
 
No (0) 
 
 
 
(1 point per 
designation) 

 

11 Cumulative Impact? Yes (1) 
 
No (0) 

 

TOTAL POINTS (HARM SCORE)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 202

Agenda Item 13



 

 

Page 203

Agenda Item 13



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

Report of Head of Corporate Services 

Author: David Wilde 

Telephone: 07540 349135 

E-mail: David.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

South Cabinet member responsible: Andrea Powell 

Tel: 07882 584120 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk  

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Dates: 2nd (South) / 3rd (Vale) December 2021 

 

 

Customer Transformation Strategy for the councils 

Recommendation 

Cabinet is asked: 
 
a) to approve the Customer Transformation Strategy and proposed roadmap for 

delivery 
b) to appoint the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services as the lead Cabinet 

Member, and the Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations as the 
executive sponsor and to delegate further decisions on the initiation of the 
programme to the Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations in 
discussion with the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services. 

  

 

Purpose of report 

1. The councils have a technology and digital strategy in place to support high quality and 
efficient service delivery. Currently customer transactions are handled through a 
disparate set of individual IT systems and across a wide range of teams, and are driven 
by each service rather than being designed around the customer.  

 

Page 204

Agenda Item 14

mailto:David.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

2. Some services are using inappropriate IT systems for customer processing (garden 
waste, waste treatment services and mobile homes ground rent all use the finance 
systems with significant custom-built elements). 

3. The councils do not currently have a clear view on service delivery from the 
perspective of the residents and businesses they serve. To address this the Customer 
Transformation Strategy (Appendix A) sets out six core principles to be applied across 
all services, and proposes a baselining exercise to understand the scope of 
transformation required and the roadmap for delivery. 

4. Adopting these principles and applying them to the way services are delivered will 
require significant change over time but will result in much more efficient and customer 
centred councils. 

5. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the Customer Transformation 
Strategy and its roadmap to ensure success.  

Corporate objectives  

6. The move to customer centred service provision through digital channels, with a CRM 
solution at its heart, will support the councils’ carbon reduction ambitions by reducing 
the reliance on paper and avoiding unnecessary journeys for specific service activities. 
It can also be used to engage with residents and businesses digitally to encourage 
positive climate change activities.  

7. With fit for purpose technology platforms underpinning the proposed Customer 
Transformation Strategy, services can be flexed in accordance with the councils’ 
strategic objectives and resident and business needs, rather than being tied to a 
number of different specifications written several years ago and distributed across 
various contracts.  These are all delivered separately and without a customer centred 
view of what is really happening across them. 

8. The use of core principles to drive effective customer services will release efficiencies 
through streamlining of services, taking out duplication, avoiding repeat activities and 
supporting technology adoption across service lines (the banking sector has 
demonstrated these benefits very well). 

Background 

9. Customer services across both councils has been provided on a service-by-service 
basis for many years, delivered by a mix of in-house and outsourced providers. This 
means the customer experience for residents and businesses is complex, difficult to 
navigate and focussed on particular solutions, rather than being designed with those 
customers in mind. 

10. The Customer Transformation Strategy for the Councils sets out a new approach to 
delivery, modelled on customer centred service design and delivery rather than being 
product or service driven.  

11. Procuring a Customer Relationship Management system is a critical part of the 
councils’ technology provision which will support the delivery of the Customer Strategy. 
Without it the councils will be unable to join the dots between services around our 
residents and businesses. This will then identify how customer service provision can be 

Page 205

Agenda Item 14



 

 

streamlined to ensure delivery against the core principles of “once and done” for 
transactional activity and “right first time” where we have an ongoing relationship.   

12. However, the principles in the strategy cover more than just customer engagement. 
They include the drive to tackle the environmental challenges faced today and in the 
future, place safeguarding at the heart of all resident engagement, drive out waste 
through streamlining and automation, build confidence in the way the councils are run 
by being transparent in the way business is done and ensure service owners are 
accountable for what is delivered. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

13. The move to customer centred service provision through digital channels will support 
the councils’ carbon reduction ambitions by reducing the reliance on paper and 
avoiding unnecessary journeys for specific service activities. It can also be used to 
engage with residents and businesses digitally to encourage positive climate change 
activities.  

14. Increased self service and access to services based on the resident or business will 
reduce the need for repeat engagements and the need to travel. Informed consent 
models covering a range of interactions with the Councils will enable services to be 
delivered right first time, consolidated and the way the customer wants it, reducing 
unnecessary work, and the use of resources such as paper and postage.  A more 
streamlined service also means reduced carbon emissions.  

15. The use of a Customer Relationship Management solution will enable a more proactive 
approach to increasing the use of services on the customer’s terms (for instance 
promoting recycling and garden waste or providing notifications of what’s happening 
locally), providing a more informed relationship between residents and the Councils 
which can actively engage with environmental improvements. 

Financial implications 

16. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the councils’ overarching financial position. For both councils, the position reflected 
in the councils’ medium-term financial plans (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in 
February 2021 showed that they are both due to receive less in revenue funding than 
they plan to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  For South this gap is £4.3 million and at Vale it is 
£2.6 million.  
 

17. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. 
As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to 
eliminate the funding gap in future years. 

 
18. This programme will be driven by the core principles set out in the Customer 

Transformation Strategy which are designed to take out cost created by duplication, 
failure demand through errors and redirection and overly complicated routes for 
residents and businesses to engage with council services. As such the projects 
delivered under this programme will deliver cost efficiencies over the 3-year period set 

Page 206

Agenda Item 14



 

 

out in the roadmap. 
 

19. The effort required to deliver the end-to-end services transformations that will deliver 
against the core principles will be significant, challenging longstanding operational 
practices and changing the direction from being service specific to customer centric. As 
such the change effort will need investment. The level of investment will be assessed 
following the completion of the baseline exercise to understand where services are, 
and the gap is clearly understood.  
 

20. The service review and redesign workstream set out in the roadmap will include the 
formulation of the full business case for each project within it. These will be subject to 
the councils’ management regime for approving projects. 
 

Legal implications 

21.  As individual projects within the Customer Transformation Strategy and its roadmap 
are progressed, legal advice will be required in considering terms of existing contracts 
and in each procurement of new systems and software including approval and 
preparation of contracts.  

Risks 

22. The main risks to delivery of the Strategy are: 

a) Lack of co-operation from outsourced delivery partners. This will be mitigated as 
part of contract reviews and by including the core principles in future contracts. 
  

b) Customers do not take up the revised service models as digital by default. This will 
be mitigated by including customers in the service design process to ensure it is fit 
for purpose and meets their needs. 
 

c) Efficiencies from streamlining services, increasing self-service and removing 
duplication are not realised. The service review and redesign process will include 
the creation of full business cases to ensure efficiencies are identified and 
delivered. 
 

d) Information sharing prevents the creation of a rounded (360 degree) view of 
customers. This will be mitigated using information sharing protocols and the 
application of informed consent models for access to services. 
 

e) Services are too heavily committed on delivering existing services to undergo a 
service review and redesign. This will be mitigated by capacity planning and the 
inclusion of investment needs as part of any business case.  
  

Other implications 

23. The successful implementation of the strategy and supporting projects will also enable 
relevant services to access and use technology which is designed for their business 
areas and support better alignment with core corporate systems (Finance, CRM, HR 
and Payroll), in turn supporting better decision making for customer centred service 
delivery. 

Page 207

Agenda Item 14



 

 

Conclusion 

24. The Customer Transformation Strategy provides a clear direction for the councils to 
transform service delivery in line with the needs of residents and businesses, it 
supports the ambitions around tackling climate change and will enable the operational 
services to be more effective and efficient.  

 

Background papers 

 
Adopted IT Strategy (Cabinet decision, October 2021) 

Page 208

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 1 Date: 22/11/21 

   

Our Customer Transformation Strategy:  

 

Re-imagined front doors for public services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 209

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 2 Date: 22/11/21 

 

Customer centred delivery in a digital world: our re-imagined front doors 

1. Purpose 

 

(i) Establishing our core principles for meeting customer needs 

(ii) Define, set and discuss our range of current front doors for public services 

(iii) Setting our foundations: identify what we really need in the future 

(iv) Gap analysis: defining what it will take to move from present to future delivery 

(v) Enabling the move from present to future – roadmap 

 

2. Context 

 

2.1 Our Councils recognise that there is a compelling need to rethink how we engage with our 

residents and businesses in a digital world by adopting consumer centric principles for 

effective customer service to support the delivery of our Corporate Plans. These principles 

are: 

 

A. Re-imagined front doors – our service engagement points are easy to use, designed 

around our residents and businesses and their needs, not our organisational structure 

B. “Once and done” or “right first time” – right outcome achieved without repeat 

referrals and the need for the customer to chase 

C. Safeguarding – we never compromise the safety of those for whom we are providing 

services and we meet our statutory obligations 

D. Efficient and environmentally positive – delivered in the most cost effective way for 

the councils whilst helping to tackle the Climate Emergency  

E. Transparent – how we deliver services is clear and understood by our customers 

F. Accountable – we take ownership of service fulfilment and ensure complaints and 

follow-up on commitments are dealt with quickly and properly 

 

2.2 Currently, we engage with our customers in three main ways: 

 

 Through our voice channels, mainly the various customer contact centres we have 

in our services and delivered on our behalf by our service providers (for instance 

Biffa for waste services or Greenwich Leisure for health and leisure services)  

 

 Face to face through our public buildings, other physical points of presence (bus 

stops, street furniture) and via partner locations 

 

 Digitally through our mobile, web and social media channels 

 

2.3 Our residents and business also engage with us through more traditional channels (email 

and post) but we expect these to be picked by the services running the main customer 

Page 210

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 3 Date: 22/11/21 

channels. 

 

2.4 The digital story from other partially comparable industry sectors (finance, retail, transport) 

tells us these routes must not be explored in isolation to achieve effective service 

fulfilment on a “once and done” or “right first time” basis. They must be considered as part 

of the single customer journey to achieve exactly those outcomes driven by user centred 

service design. 

 

2.5 To support this design process there are some foundations against which we can re-

imagine our front doors using customer and digital principles, defined as: 

 

 Voice services – setting our simple and complex services 

 

 Points of presence – matching geography with service demand and people 

 

 Digital – keeping it simple, clear, easy to use, accessible and relevant 

 

  

Page 211

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 4 Date: 22/11/21 

3. Voice and Contact Centre Services 

3.1 Current situation 

3.1.1 A voice and contact centre is defined as a remote access point where a resident or 

business can complete a transaction with the councils or one of their delivery partners or 

gain information, advice and guidance using digital telephony. This can include automated 

as well as human interaction and covers both fixed and mobile platforms. This can include 

monitoring services and both push and pull engagement. 

3.1.2 The council has a number of different contact centres: 

 The main switchboard delivered by Capita 

 The Revenues and Benefits service delivered by Capita 

 The Councils’ own customer service centre 

 Biffa’s contact centre 

 Greenwich Leisure’s contact centre 

3.1.3 Each centre operates on a combination of corporate and discrete voice technology 

platforms and there are hand-offs between them some of them, based on complexity of 

service (Contact Centre to Revenues and Benefits for example). 

3.1.4 These services provide a wide range and depth of provision, ranging from simple 

reporting through to complex assessments to provide support for our most vulnerable 

residents. For many, voice-based services remain the best method of engagement for 

reasons of accessibility and digital capability. 

3.2 Discussion 

3.2.1 There are a number of myths around what voice services actually are. The first of these is 

that this is about telephony. In fact, voice service provision now includes in-home and 

other device based interactive solutions (Alexa, Siri, Cortana), robotic process automation 

(RPA), voice to text and back again and smart TVs. The range of voice-based activities is 

only set to grow with more Internet of Things (IoT) based products coming to market. 

3.2.2 The second myth is that voice is the preferred method for customers. This is entirely 

dependent on the quality of other services in terms of usability, availability and 

accessibility. Many contact centres now use RPA to stream calls and tackle the easy 

questions and they also integrate with other communications methods like web chat and 

Instant Messaging (IM) which tackles the third myth: that contact centres are call centres. 

Contact centres are in fact unified communications hubs that span the full range of digital 

capabilities and commonly provide two-way communications services, with monitoring and 

follow-up activities included to maximise the productivity of the staff during quiet periods. 

3.2.3 Focussing on those capabilities and to maximise the effectiveness of a contact centre, the 

unified communications solutions should be a single technology platform spanning a 

number of physical services. This will ensure a consistent experience and provides the 

ability to seamlessly support customers without the organisation getting in the way, whilst 

maintaining the centres of expertise needed for more complex workloads. 

3.2.4 In terms of which services should be handled by a contact centre and what the most 

efficient route for a customer should be, the customer principles need to be applied across 

Page 212

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 5 Date: 22/11/21 

all service lines but not in isolation. This needs to be done as part of user centred service 

design to test that the offer actually meets the customer need in the most effective way. 

3.2.5 To aid the process and avoid over-engineering the design work, individual services can be 

pre-categorised as: 

a) Simple transaction – straightforward request for an item or service (including fault 

reporting) involving minimal eligibility assessment 

b) Registered service – those that require registration based on pre-defined criteria 

that can be actioned automatically 

c) Facilitated service – those that require engagement with professionals to guide the 

applicant or user through the process 

d) Advocacy service – those where someone is acting on behalf of the customer 

e) Information provision – requests for standard information that can be addressed 

through Q&A processes 

3.2.6 Those categorised as a), b) or e) offer significant opportunities for RPA or forms driven 

processes and offer the potential to consolidate and standardise the council’s contact 

centres - “once and done”. 

3.2.7 Those in c) and d) require more specialised support and therefore lend themselves to 

having centres of excellence integrated into the relevant services - “right first time”. 

3.3 Action  

(i) Consolidate all contact centre technologies onto a standard enterprise level 

platform and deploy across all existing contact centre services 

 

(ii) Categorise council services as once and done or right first time in baseline 

assessment 

 

(iii) Service redesign the contact centres to consolidate once and done services for 

efficiency and improved customer experience  

 

(iv) To establish a single view of the resident or business across technology platforms 

via the deployment of a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) solution and 

enable the application programme interfaces (API) with other systems to deliver a 

summary view. 

   

  

Page 213

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 6 Date: 22/11/21 

4. Points of presence 

4.1 Current situation 

4.1.1 A point of presence is defined as a physical location where a resident or business can 

complete a transaction with the councils or one of their delivery partners or gain 

information, advice and guidance. This can be a building (open to the public) or a digital 

connection point (like a kiosk, notice board, bus shelter or internet connected device). It 

can be staffed or accessed on a self-service basis and it can be owned by the councils or 

another organisation with which the councils have an agreement to provide their services. 

4.1.2 Our councils, like many others, have a civil estate which has grown with the Districts and 

our services, but does it meet the needs of our communities today?  

4.1.3 In parallel with our estate, there are those of the NHS, County and Parish Councils, 

Education, the Police, central government and a variety of other public service delivery 

partners. 

4.1.4 A longstanding criticism of public services is the need for residents to go to more than one 

office to transact with each agency. A resident and business perspective of where to place 

our points of presence is driven by where they need to go to help them with:   

 What they need for a good quality of life  

 How they can learn, access knowledge and improve their life chances 

 working together to build and sustain their communities 

 sustaining and growing their businesses, creating jobs and wealth  

 being looked after when they are vulnerable and in need of support 

4.1.5 Today’s technology no longer requires dedicated buildings for public sector organisations 

outside of very specialised provision (hospitals, waste recycling and treatment, 

transportation, crime prevention and management). 

4.1.6 The planned new office headquarters for the councils is an ideal opportunity to embrace 

collaborative working and a face-to-face point of presence which supports multi-agency 

working and there is scope to develop this model through the Beacon and Cornerstone 

sites. 

4.2 Discussion 

4.2.1 IT Networks allow secure multi-agency working and cloud-based technology services 

provide full access to business resources for staff. Banks, as an example, have 

fundamentally redesigned their points of presence to successfully provide a mix of 

confidential and public spaces and enable multi-service use driven by demand. The public 

sector can do the same. 

4.2.2 There is a distinction to be made between office space for a mobile workforce and public 

points of presence to meet the needs of our residents and businesses. The former will 

only reduce in demand as home-based working continues to become the norm for most, 

but recent research has highlighted the need for teams to come together and for 

recognised workspaces for staff to support work/life balance.  

4.2.3 This can be met by the provision of more generic and high quality work and collaboration 

spaces which can be open to all businesses on locations, rather than separating out 

Page 214

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 7 Date: 22/11/21 

different sectors (Regus, WeWork). Why can’t public and private sector organisations 

share the same space, especially where collaboration is already happening? As well as 

releasing excess public estate, such provision can add to a location’s economic growth 

prospects and reduce travel, all positive benefits for local communities and the climate. 

Often the blockers to this are cost in terms of investment required (don’t build cheap), 

ongoing charges and sharing benefits from asset disposals. All of these can easily be 

resolved through transparent commercial models between involved parties.  

4.2.4 Points of presence aren’t just about offices and public buildings. Oxfordshire and within 

that our Districts have access to a significant physical footprint through the transport 

network, including bus stops and other street furniture as well as via delivery partners 

across the private, not for profit and wider charity sectors. These are all deeply embedded 

channels for information dissemination and in the digital world they can be real-time, 

interactive and more tightly targeted than before. 

4.2.5 So if public services are able to co-locate with each other and those in the wider business 

and community arenas, share points of presence to engage with residents and 

businesses, what does this mean for the current buildings estate and what do we really 

need going forward? Alignment between local service demand, resident and business 

locations and the types of points of presence needed to meet that demand can set the 

physical front doors required. A gap analysis with that and the current estate will identify: 

 why residents and businesses need to visit a building 

 what services can be delivered through alternative means (digital, service redesign) 

 Where the locality demand is (access, concentration, pattern) 

 which locations are no longer required 

 where new sites may be needed 

4.2.6 Points of presence determined by local service need and near to those who need it will 

improve productivity and customer experience as well as supporting more fundamental 

service redesign based on user need and not constrained by organisational boundaries. 

Productivity gains and customer experience improvements will be achieved by reducing 

repeat activities in line with the once and done and right first time principles. Efficiencies 

will be achieved by reducing estate costs through multi-agency working and the resulting 

reduction in overall property provision. 

4.2.7 The Oxfordshire One Public Estate Programme is ideally placed to support this element of 

the strategy, working with public service partners across our Districts to ensure we all 

have the most effective face to face services, delivered in the places they’re needed and 

under a transparent and fair commercial model.  

4.2.8 The Covid-19 pandemic has fundamentally challenged organisation centric thinking 

around points of presence, demonstrated by the successful collaboration with partners 

through community hubs, and we can continue to build on that success going forward.  

4.3 Action 

(i) Integrate the customer and digital principles into a Property and Estates Strategy 

 

(ii) Complete a data alignment exercise spanning type of service delivered, service 

demand, service delivery location and population profile of service users 

Page 215

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 8 Date: 22/11/21 

 

(iii) Engage Oxfordshire One Public Estate (OPE) in the gap analysis as well as the 

location identification  

 

(iv) Assess location needs based on workspace, public engagement, economic 

development and access to information  

 

(v) From the location needs identify where shared sites could be facilitated through 

collaboration with delivery partners 

 

(vi) Establish a technology enterprise architecture across the points of presence that 

ensures effective service delivery across the Districts 

 

(vii) Engage with the core principles across OPE partners to underpin points of 

presence use for shared locations  

 

  

Page 216

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 9 Date: 22/11/21 

5. Digital 

5.1 Current situation 

5.1.1 A digital service is defined as a fully automated internet based delivery system where a 

resident or business can complete a transaction with the councils or one of their delivery 

partners or gain information, advice and guidance. It is accessed through all 

communications media (worldwide web, mobile platforms and entertainment channels) 

and is integrated with business delivery systems to ensure end to end transaction 

completion.  

5.1.2 The councils have recently overhauled both main web sites and are making use of a 

variety of digital engagement tools (mobile apps and smart forms) but they have been built 

around specific transactional services and as such are not aligned to customer as 

residents or businesses, instead they are driven by very specific process completion. 

5.1.3 More widely the councils have several cross cutting organisational strategies and plans 

currently in flight or in the early stages of development: 

 

Strategies  Status  Position  

Corporate Plan and Recovery Roadmap  Both agreed  Corporate Plan adopted, 
Roadmap to be developed  

Finance transformation and investment strategy  Agreed in 
Corporate Plan  

Approach to be agreed  

Technology and digital strategy  Approved October 
2021 

Being implemented  

Data and intelligence strategy  Not started  Not started  
 

Resident and business engagement strategy  
 

Not started  Not started  

Joint local plan  Principle agreed Individual local plans are 
adopted  

Economic plans  Agreed  To be reviewed under 
Recovery Roadmap  

Property and estates strategy  
 

In development  Under discussion  

 

5.1.4 All of these include an element of re-imagining customer service as well as driving the 

adoption of digital solutions to support the transformation effort. There are also several 

unique features within each of these programmes which will provide new capabilities for 

service delivery (spatial redesign, tackling climate change, full mobile working and next 

generation connectivity to name a few) and support radically different ways of meeting 

resident and business needs. 

5.2 Discussion 

5.2.1 The core digital capability is currently weak, and the councils need to do more to unlock 

the wider digital capabilities available: 

Page 217

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 10 Date: 22/11/21 

 Enabling the inherent digital capability of the whole workforce by using the tools 

available 

 User centred service redesign, building on the recent success around supporting 

vulnerable people during Covid-19, for effective and targeted information, advice 

and guidance 

 Applying the full range of digital tools available, driven by user preference and 

demand 

 Unlocking the knowledge available through analytics to better inform decision 

making 

 Adoption of new place-based technologies to better manage our Districts in terms 

of connectivity, service demand, economic growth and quality of life 

5.2.2 The adopted Technology Strategy addresses each of these areas in detail, contains a set 

of core principles for the adoption and use of technology and sets out 4 delivery 

programmes to ensure best value from the investment. These must be aligned to the 

Councils’ Corporate Plans to minimise duplication of effort and make the most effective 

use of the resources required and the strategy should be adopted as an enabler, 

alongside the customer service principles, to ensure our re-imagined front doors to service 

delivery are the most efficient and effective routes to delivering services on a “once and 

done” or “right first time” basis.  

5.2.3 The valuable lessons learnt in service redesign, customer engagement and 

communication with residents, delivery partners and businesses through the Covid-19 

pandemic must be sustained for the future of service delivery, fundamentally reshaping 

how residents can access advice and guidance based on their needs and not the 

organisation’s structure and the where the digital engagement tools used for volunteering 

and resource mobilisation can redefine how best to meet community needs. 

5.3 Action 

(i) Embed the technology and customer service principles in all service transformation 

projects 

(ii) Apply the lessons learnt from Covid-19 response and recovery to future customer 

service design and delivery 

(iii) Review all service delivery methods across all front doors against the technology 

and customer service principles to minimise duplication of provision, considering 

access to services for the digitally excluded 

(iv) Establish the single view of the resident/business through the CRM and APIs with 

other business systems 

 

  

Page 218

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 11 Date: 22/11/21 

6. The baseline for redesigning customer services 

6.1 The journey between customer and service fulfilment can best be described as complex 

and confusing, illustrated below, and requires a complete baseline assessment of services 

against the principles in the strategy to understand the size of the gap between the current 

position and future model. 

 

 

  

6.3 Knowing where services are physically accessed and delivered is more valuable if it is 

also known how much of the population can reach those services and this will need to be 

mapped against the geographies of the councils to support better alignment with resident 

and business needs. 

6.4 The significant range of entry points for services also needs to be baselined with a view to 

streamlining their provision, joining up the customer experience and reducing hand-offs to 

others in the delivery chain. 

6.5 The completed baseline exercise covering services against principles, points of presence 

and channels will support the development of the roadmap for customer transformation. 

  

Page 219

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 12 Date: 22/11/21 

7. What does good look like and the need for a gap analysis 

7.1 The high level findings from the proposed baseline exercise on all services will show how 

we are delivering against the principles set. We can also compare our performance with 

other similar councils to define our ambition for service transformation. 

7.2 So what does good look like? One of the exemplar councils in England is Cornwall and its 
high level of customer service delivery was achieved from a combination of fundamental 
service redesign driven by structural change (moving to Unitary Council) and a significant 
new investment in technology (£17million over 3 years). That said, the clear focus on 
customer centred service design and the adoption of the same principles as those being 
applied in South and Vale councils means that we should look to benchmark against 
Cornwall and the other high performing councils in our ambition for the future.  

7.4 The technology strategy has already identified the systems investment required to ensure 
the councils have the right IT tools to support the move to customer centred service 
delivery. What we now need to do is understand how far the gap is between where we are 
now and what it will take to transform our services in line with the customer service 
principles. Exemplars for comparison will be Cornwall, Guildford and Cheltenham. 

  

Page 220

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 13 Date: 22/11/21 

8 Bridging the gap 

8.1 The exemplar councils have achieved good customer centred service delivery based on 
the same principles we are applying and they have remodelled (or are planning to) both 
the service processes and the access method end to end to meet customer need in 
complex multi-agency environments across many services which exists in the 
County/District/Health/Economic local government model. 

8.2 On points of presence, the shared ambitions of the public agencies in Oxfordshire in terms 
of future estate offer significant potential to consolidate services around the once and 
done and right first time principles and move away from building dependent delivery which 
often fragments the customer journey, especially where more than one agency is 
involved. Using these we can challenge whether we are delivering services from the most 
accessible and efficient locations which will in turn inform future estates needs to meet the 
needs of our communities and businesses. 

8.3 Our contact centres continue to be significant service delivery channels and here the 
advances in digital delivery and communications technologies offer real opportunities to 
automate further and drive up self-service. The implementation of a single contact 
management system combined with the increased deployment of end to end digital once 
and done services will unlock those. 

8.4 Focussing on the end to end services delivered on a once and done basis, there is 
significant scope to both simplify and automate many of them in terms of customer access 
and fulfilment.  

8.5 On the services delivered on a right first time basis, these are typically more complex, 
longer term and often delivered with partners. The focus here must be taking out 
duplication or redirection by building customer journeys based on successful outcomes 
and not individual service/institutional obligations.  

8.6 So, to address our gaps we need to: 

 Ensure ALL digital services deliver an end to end experience, not part way there 

 Consolidate services around defined service groups with an agreed outcome that 
meet the customer need and not individual service obligation 

 Ensure the right channels are made available for services, based on customer 
capability, reach and most efficient methods of delivery 

 Standardise and consolidate our technology platforms by channel, ensuring they 
can deliver on a right first time or once and done basis (voice services, single view 
of the customer, applications integration or interoperability, public access to digital, 
user centred web and mobile access) 

 Build on the lessons learnt on customer engagement through the Covid19 
pandemic 

 Engage with delivery partners to streamline services and remove duplication and 
redirection 

 Automate information giving services through voice and digital capabilities, 
including digital points of presence 

 Close down services no longer in use or being delivered by others  

  

Page 221

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 14 Date: 22/11/21 

9 Roadmap and governance 

9.1 The customer transformation roadmap at Annex A will enable a sustainable 

transformation of services over 3 years, implementing and maintaining the customer 

principles and ensuring the core elements of customer service delivery are in place to 

support the necessary service redesigns to achieve those “once and done” and “right first 

time” outcomes. It also addresses all the actions identified throughout this review and 

recommissioning work.  

9.2 The roadmap comprises 4 workstreams to: 

 Confirm the principles and establish the ground rules 

 Bridge the gap between current service delivery and the 2 core principles 

 Create the enablers for transforming services  

 Identify and roll out service redesign opportunities 

9.3 The principles and ground rules will ensure the programme stays focussed on outcomes 

and aligned to the findings from the baseline assessment and recommended direction of 

travel.  

9.4 By bridging the gap between where our individual services are and where they should be 

in terms of once and done/right first time, this workstream will drive some immediate 

changes to delivery by completing the implementation of end to end digital experiences 

where more fundamental service redesign isn’t needed and streamline what we have to 

take out failure demand through duplication or unnecessary hand-offs, delivering early 

efficiencies whilst improving customer experience. 

9.5 The enablers for transforming services will ensure the foundations are solid for digitally 

enabled service redesign, ensuring the technology platforms and applications are fit for 

purpose, our future points of presence are capable of meeting the changing needs of 

residents, businesses and visitors now and in the future and our contact centre is efficient, 

well equipped and delivering solutions. The enablers will require investment and whilst 

they will not deliver efficiencies in their own right, they must be designed efficiently 

through standardisation, consolidation, ease of use and inbuilt resilience.  

9.6 The service redesign workstream takes forward the business specific projects needed to 

deliver in line with the principles, efficiently, coherently and in many cases in partnership 

with others. These projects will deliver the greatest efficiencies through consolidation, 

retirement of legacy activities, wiping out failure demand and better use of our resources 

(people, property, technology).  

9.2 Governance 

 

9.2.1 The roadmap for the future of public service delivery will need to be taken forward as a 

single programme with an Executive Sponsor as it impacts all council portfolios in depth 

whilst also establishing standards across all projects and utilising shared enabling 

resources. The proposed governance structure is as follows: 

 

 

Page 222

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 15 Date: 22/11/21 

 
 

 

   

9.2.2  The decisions needed to initiate this programme are to: 

 

a) Appoint the lead Cabinet Member and the Executive Sponsor 

b) Confirm the corporate programme management function as the central co-ordinator 

c) Appoint the workstream leads 

d) Appoint the project sponsors for the enabling and delivery projects 

 

9.2.3 Once completed the programme needs to be aligned with the other initiatives in play to 

ensure strong alignment going forward. Ongoing reporting and management 

accountability for programme delivery should be delegated to the South and Vale Senior 

Management Team to provide cross council visibility as the body best placed to resolve 

issues as they arise and keep the programme on track.  

 

10 Summary and Next Steps 

(i) Approve principles and strategy 

(ii) Approve roadmap 

(iii) Approve governance  

(iv) Ensure alignment with Corporate Plans to embed customer and technology 

principles 

(v) Execute plan and roadmap (from January 2022) 

  

Page 223

Agenda Item 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 16 Date: 22/11/21 

  

Annex A 

Customer Transformation Roadmap 
RE-IMAGINED FRONT DOORS FOR RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES

1South and Vale Customer Transformation

Workstream Services & 

Project

Jan-Mar 2022 Apr-Jun 2022 Jul-Sep 2022 Oct-Dec  2022 Funding Lead

Principles Service group and 

customer definition

Approved & 

operational

Complete Invest Customer 

Svces

Principles Core principles 

baseline

Approved & 

operational

Complete Invest SMT

Bridging the 

gap

Once and Done 

digital by default

Complete baseline 

of services

Amend services Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Customer 

Svces

Bridging the 

gap

Right First Time 

centres of excellence

Customer journey 

maps

Implement 

redesign

Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Business 

Services

Enabling front 

doors

360 degree view of 

the customer

CRM procurement 

commenced

Services aligned 

for migration

Align to service 

redesign/review  

projects

Deployed Invest to save 

(GW)

Corporate 

Svces

Enabling front 

doors

Our points of 

presence

Baseline & define 

PoPs

Community Hubs 

identified (FBCs)

Community Hub 

model deployed

Services aligned Invest to save 

(Property)

Customer 

Svces

Enabling front 

doors

Contact centre & 

Voice services

Design & approve Consolidate Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Customer 

Svces

Service 

redesign

Garden Waste Service redesign implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service 

redesign

Property and asset 

mgt

Service redesign Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service Owner

Service 

redesign

Housing Mobile homes 

redesign

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service 

redesign

Technical services, 

grounds 

maintenance

Service redesign Implement Complete Invest to grow 

(commercial)

Communities

 

  

P
age 224

A
genda Item

 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 17 Date: 22/11/21 

 
RE-IMAGINED FRONT DOORS FOR RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES

4South and Vale Customer Transformation

Workstream Services & 

Project

Jan-Mar 2023 Apr-Jun 2023 Jul-Sep 2023 Oct-Dec  2023 Funding Lead

Service review Waste management Integration with 

service provider

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Principles Core principles 

applied to delivery 

partners

Contracts review Implement Complete BAU Finance

Bridging the 

gap

Once and Done 

digital by default

Customer feedback 

on new services

Amend services as 

required 

Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Customer 

Svces

Service review Leisure Integration with 

service provider

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Enabling front 

doors

Our points of 

presence

Align to new Office 

Plan and mobile 

councils

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(Property)

Customer 

Svces

Enabling front 

doors

Contact centre & 

Voice services

Design & approve 

new voice services

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Customer 

Svces

Service review Planning Operations Service redesign Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service review Land Searches Future model 

defined

Service redesign Implement Subject to 

contract 

timescale

Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service review Help for businesses, 

grants

Reprocure new 

service

implement Complete Invest Service owner

 

  

P
age 225

A
genda Item

 14



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Customer Transformation Strategy 

 
Status: Issued V2.0 Page 18 Date: 22/11/21 

 
RE-IMAGINED FRONT DOORS FOR RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES

5South and Vale Customer Transformation

Workstream Services & 

Project

Jan-Mar 2024 Apr-Jun 2024 Jul-Sep 2024 Oct-Dec  2024 Funding Lead

Enabling front 

doors

Future state Digital 

Services

Service design for 

2025

Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Principles Core principles 

applied to delivery 

partners 2

Contracts review 2 Implement Complete BAU Finance

Bridging the 

gap

Once and Done 

digital by default

Customer feedback 

on new services

Amend services as 

required 

Complete Invest to save 

(consolidate)

Customer 

Svces

Service review Licencing Service redesign Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Enabling front 

doors

Our points of 

presence

Redesign to meet 

new Office Model

Implement Complete Invest to save 

(Property)

Customer 

Svces

Service review Revenues & Benefits Future service 

model definition

Service redesign New model from 

Sept 2025

Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service 

redesign

IT and Digital Future service 

model definition

Service redesign New model from 

Sept 2025

Invest to save 

(transform)

Service owner

Service review Regulatory Services Service redesign Implement Complete Invest to save 

(transform)

Service Owner

Service review Democracy TBC

Service review Communications 

TBC

 

P
age 226

A
genda Item

 14



Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

Report of Head of Corporate Services 

Author: David Wilde 

Telephone: 07540 349135 

E-mail: David.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: N/A 

 

South Cabinet member responsible: Andrea Powell 

Tel: 07882 584120 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk  

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Dates: 2nd (South) / 3rd (Vale) December 2021 

 

 

Housing and Homelessness IT solution 

Recommendations 

Cabinet is asked: 
 
(a) To approve the budget based on proposed costs required for this project. The 

breakdown of those costs for each council is shown in Annex A.   

(b) To agree the procurement route by which to procure an IT solution for the Housing 
and Homelessness service for both councils using the Government GCloud 12 
Framework Agreement.  

(c) To delegate authority to the Head of Corporate Services in consultation with the 
respective cabinet members to award the contract and to enter into the contract 
and any ancillary documents.  

(d) To note the transfer of the mobile homes site rents into the Housing IT system for 
future management of those customer accounts.  

 

Purpose of report 

1. The councils have a technology strategy in place to support high quality and efficient 
service delivery. This project is part of the delivery programme for the strategy and will: 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 227

Agenda Item 15

mailto:David.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


a. Procure a new Cloud based contract for the provision of the recommended IT 
solution for Housing and Homelessness services, reducing the ongoing revenue 
costs and providing commercial certainty for the next 4 years. 

b. Ensure the systems support more efficient working for the housing and 
homelessness service and for mobile home rents management. 

2. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the investment required to deliver this 
project following production of the full business case.  

Corporate objectives  

3. The delivery of this project will reduce the costs of the provision of the IT solution 
through the migration to an upgraded and fully Software as a Service (SaaS) model 
and will put in place a contract for up to 4 years using a compliant procurement 
process. 

4. The solution will also be used to manage mobile home rents, currently administered via 
the finance system using complex manual processes which can be automated.      

Background 

5. The Housing IT solution is used to manage the Councils’ homelessness and housing 
services, including Choice Based Lettings, provision of temporary housing and advice 
and guidance for residents, all to improve homelessness prevention and support 
compliance with the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. 

6. The current IT solution has been procured through a rolling annual contract. This 
contract is a traditional hosting and maintenance contract which has been in place for 
many years. During this time the technology market for business systems has evolved 
into a commodity model, where the system is in fact provided as a complete managed 
service, called Software as a Service, or SaaS.  

7. In addition to this, HM Treasury, through its Crown Commercial Service, has 
established a range of Framework Agreements for the purchase of goods and services 
which meet government standards and support and simplify procurement for public 
sector organisations. For SaaS solutions the preferred framework is GCloud 12.  The 
advantages of the SaaS model and GCloud 12 procurement route are: 

 Responsibility for the platform and application performance and version control sits 
with the supplier, avoiding upgrade costs and additional maintenance fees 
 

 Financial and insurance liabilities for the supplier are covered by the UK 
government framework agreement as stipulated conditions for being part of it 
 

 This service can be procured compliantly in accordance with the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 on the basis of a 2-year contract with options to extend for up to 
2 more years, providing flexibility for the councils to support other changes that 
may occur in terms of local government reorganisation and service delivery 

 Being a small part of a much larger buying consortium provides additional 
purchaser leverage to influence current and future developments by service 
providers 
  

Page 228

Agenda Item 15



8. As has already been done with the Human Resources and Financial Management 
systems, the recommended SaaS solution will follow the standard implementation and 
will be operated by the councils under the new in-house systems administration 
function with the IT service, giving direct control and providing resilience which is 
currently absent from the systems.   

Options 

OPTION & 
RECOMMENDATION 

ARGUMENT 

A: do nothing. Retain 
existing IT system as 
it is 
 
NOT 
RECOMMENDED 

The system is out of date and not effective in supporting service 
delivery.  
 
It is also going to be out of support in the near term, is relatively 
expensive to maintain and is preventing services from operating 
effectively.  
 

B: upgrade existing 
system via the 
GCloud 12 
government 
framework 
 
RECOMMENDED 

The recommended technology solution is now available as a SaaS 
solution and is the primary solution for Housing and Homelessness 
services where housing stock has been transferred and the need 
for a full housing management solution is not required. 
 
GCloud 12 provides a robust procurement option which delivers 
good value for money on costs through the pre-qualification 
process carried out when establishing it, and minimises the cost of 
the procurement exercise itself. 
 
The upgraded recommended SaaS solution is a better option for 
mobile home rents management than the finance system as it is 
designed for this type of work, supporting simplification of the 
service and an improved customer experience. 
 

C: Start again with a 
new solution and full 
procurement 
 
NOT 
RECOMMENDED 

The councils have been using a rolling contract for some time for 
their current application and whilst this is an unsustainable 
procurement approach, the product is the dominant one in the 
market for councils without significant retained housing services. 
 
Market testing showed the recommended application to be a 
successful and significant product in the local government market 
for councils without significant retained housing functions and it 
was shown to meet all the business needs.  
 
The cost of this option will therefore be significantly higher due to 
the current commitment in place and the investment needed to 
procure and create a new solution.  

 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

9. The housing and homelessness solution, delivered as a SaaS solution, support the 
wider move to carbon neutral and negative technology solutions provisioned by 
suppliers through the adoption of Cloud platforms through design and economies of 
scale. 

Page 229

Agenda Item 15



Financial implications 

10. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the councils’ overarching financial position. For both councils, the position reflected 
in the councils’ medium-term financial plans (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in 
February 2021 showed that they are both due to receive less in revenue funding than 
they plan to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  For South this gap is £4.3 million and at Vale it is 
£2.6 million.  
 

11. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. 
As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to 
eliminate the funding gap in future years. 

 
12. The transformation budget will fund the one-off investment and deliver a full return on 

investment within 20 months, with net savings thereafter. 
 

13. The details of the project budget and financial return are contained in Annex A of this 
report and are confidential for commercial reasons. 
 

Legal implications 

14. Following procurement under the GCloud 12 Framework and the decision taken to 
award the contract, a drawdown contract under the GCloud 12 Framework terms will 
be entered into with the selected provider in order to protect the councils’ interests.  

Risks 

15. The main risks to the project are: 

a) Challenge from another supplier to the procurement approach. This is very low 
because this project is making use of a government Framework Agreement.  
 

b) The recommended solution does not meet business needs. This has been market 
tested with a number of other councils who have implemented the solution and 
continue to use it successfully.  
 

c) The return on investment expected is not realised. This is dependent on the extent 
to which services use the upgraded solution to support end to end service 
transformation and as such is under the control of the councils. 
  

Other implications 

16. The successful implementation of the project will also enable relevant services to 
access and use technology which is designed for their business areas and support 
better alignment with the upgraded finance system, in turn supporting better decision 
making for asset management. 

Page 230

Agenda Item 15



Conclusion 

17. This project is a core enabler for the councils to consolidate housing and 
homelessness services into a fit for purpose technology solution, it supports the 
ambitions around tackling climate change and will enable the operational services to be 
more effective.  

 

Background papers 

Adopted IT Strategy (Cabinet decision, October 2021)  

Page 231

Agenda Item 15



Document is Restricted

Page 232

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 234

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Review of gambling policy
	Appendix A - Proposed new gambling policy
	Appendix B - Summary of changes to gambling policy
	Appendix C - Report of responses to consultation

	8 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22
	9 Council tax base 2022/23
	10 War pensions and war widow(er)'s pension disregard top up in housing benefit
	11 Distributing the SO Charitable Lottery's Central Fund
	12 Joint statement of community involvement
	Appendix 1 - Summary Table - all comments
	Appendix 2 - Joint Statement of Community Involvement
	Glossary
	2. 	Planning Policy
	Policy documents we prepare                                     and how you can get involved
	Neighbourhood Planning 
	Consultation on planning policy documents
	Monitoring of planning policies
	Looking ahead

	What is a Statement of Community Involvement?
	Our Vision and Values for Community Involvement 
	Our Methods of Community Involvement 

	3. 	Development Management 
	Consultation on planning applications
	Planning Appeals
	Section 106 (Planning Obligations) 
	Pre-application advice
	 Planning Enforcement 



	13 Planning enforcement statement
	Appendix 1 - Planning Enforcement Statement

	14 Customer transformation strategy
	Appendix A - South and Vale Customer Transformation Strategy

	15 Housing and homelessness IT solution
	17 Minutes
	18 Housing and homelessness IT solution

